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Growth is a journey

company that sustains a sound and responsible rate of growth will enhance shareholder
value. Recent history has repeatedly exhibited the danger in seeking growth as a quick fix to enhance

stock prices at the expense of building a solid, competitive business.

Growth is a journey that marks its own progress, posting tangible milestones and sustainable results.

The success reached through growth reguires patience, perseverance and creativity. To pursue growth

recklessly eventually leads to the detriment of a business and its shareholders.

In recent years CFS Bancorp, Inc. has developed and implemented an effective strategy to achieve
- sustainable growth. We do not undertake this journey with the expectation of easy or quick rewards.
The principles on which we base this strategy are excellence and patience. We approach each project

with vision and creativity.

The management team of CFS remains committed to a sound growth strategy. We are growing a
core business that provides long-term shareholder value with a reliable dividend. It is a journey we

will continue successfully for many years to come.



EXECUTIVE REPORT

To the Shareholders, Customers and Friends of CFS Bancorp,

CFES Bancorp, Inc. is intent on continuing the
growth of Citizens Financial Services, FSB as
the premier community bank in the northwest

Indiana and Chicago metropolitan regions.

The resolve of our Board of Directors and management team has
never been greater, and we intend to leverage this determination
into creating a community bank that will appreciate in franchise

value while aggressively and efficiently serving our markets.

The focus of our Company is not fixed solely on the short-term.
Although short-term results are certainly important, the Board
believes that the financial industry has entered an era that will
reward those companies that build a presence and long-term
viability in the appropriate markets. Reflecting confidence in the
future earnings prospects for the Company, in 2003 our Board
increased the level of dividends paid to shareholders of CFS

Bancorp for the third year in a row.

The Company's determinaticn is also refiected in the fact that
our management team continues to undergo the refinement
needed to ensure that Citizens becomes and remains a significant
resource for both commercial and retail clients. The adage that
“people are our greatest asset” has never been more appropriate
than itis in today’s environment. Qur managerial, supervisory,
sales and service personnel are just as important as high-quality
facilities, products and technology. These individuals are the
necessary catalyst for us to reach our goal of becoming the

most efficient, profitable, customer-centric community bank

in our market.

Toward this end, in 2003 we added several key service and sales
professionals as well as two experienced executives to our senior
management group. Zoran Koricanac, who has spent over

20 years in banking and bank consulting for commercial lending,

relationship management philosophy and loan process

management, was hired to lead our rapidly expanding Commercial

Lending Department.

Charles Cole, also with nearly 20 years experience in banking and
financial management, was brought in to replace our retiring
Chief Financial Officer, John Stephens. Mr.Cole, a member of the
AICPA, the lllinois CPA Society and the Financial Managers
Society, most recently served as the CFO at a financial institution
in the Chicago metropolitan area. Both individuals are solid

additions to our leadership team.

The Company also significantly upgraded its expertise in the
areas of audit, compliance and corporate governance with the
hiring of Carol Romes, Vice President-Internal Auditor. Ms. Romes
brings a wealth of experience to these functions having spent
over 20 years in large bank environments, with 17 of those 20
years being in an internal audit capacity. Her level of knowledge
and professionalism is essential to maintaining credibility in a
highly regulated industry like ours. In conjunction with a revised
Audit Committee Charter and an experienced and active Audit
Committee, Ms. Romes, who is also a CPA, has added a new level
of proficiency for the greater protection of the Company and

its shareholders.

From a location standpoint, to strategically position our offices
and continue expanding our footprint, Citizens opened facilities
in two vibrant new lllincis markets, Naperville and Bolingbrook,
while closing four grocery store branches in markets where an
overlap existed from nearby facilities. Combined with the 2002
lllinois office openings in Orfand Park and Oak Lawn and the
scheduled openings of new offices in Dyer, Indiana in 2004 and
Tinley Park, Illinois in early 2005, we continue to expand our
potential customer base in growth-oriented business and

residential hubs.

Additionally, in the first quarter of 2004, we are adding 6,000

square feet of office space at our new Dyer location to provide



adequate room for the expansion of our Commercial Lending

function.

Regarding this expansion, Citizens approved $249 million in
commercial real estate and business loans in 2003, which
necessitated the hiring of six commercial loan officers and
seven credit administration professionals to bolster our rapidly

growing lending function.

On the retail side, as was common around the country in 2003,
record-shattering loan refinancings dominated our loan activity.
During the year, we originated over $145 million in residential
and consumer loans. More importantly, we accomplished a signif-
icant upgrade in our consumer loan operations to provide a more
efficient processing experience for borrowers. We automated
the processing of home equity loans and reduced the time from
application submission to closing to eight days. We also auto-
mated our underwriting process on residential loans and can

now provide qualifying customers immediate approval.

Also on the retail side, we expanded our loan product offerings

to ensure that both existing and new customers would be able

to have all of their lending needs met at Citizens. We experienced
an exceptional increase in home equity loans as we surpassed
$66 million in new home loan originations during 2003, a $24

million increase over 2002.

We are also pleased to report that, in spite of the lowest interest
rates in 40 years, we were able to grow our savings base by $21

million during the year. This growth was boosted by a $6 million

©

Chairman and CEQ Thomas E Prisby with Vice Chairman, President and COQ James W. Prisby

increase in core deposits as of December 31,2003 as our clients
took advantage of an expanded menu of business products and
two highly successful retail promotions offered in the fourth

quarter of 2003.

The Bank also effected a dramatic improvement in net fee
income in 2003. The outsourcing of our investment program to
the independent Financial Marketing Group (iFMG) provided
revenue of $650,000 as we surpassed our sales and income
goals for the year by the end of the third quarter. The $36 million
in annuities and other investments sold by IFMG in 2003 also
provided excellent alternatives to our depositors in the low

interest rate environment that prevailed throughout the year.



An additional improvement in fee income resulted from our
popular new Overdraft Privilege Program (ODP) for retail and
business checking customers who occasionally need a courtesy
overdraft to cover expenses. We expect the IFMG and ODP

programs to continue to grow steadily in the coming years.

in the technology arena, Citizens’ staff sustained a remarkable
effort throughout the year in connection with upgrading our
core processor in 20c¢4 for data processing services. After an
arduous analysis of five vendors, our team selected Fiserv Tl as
the best option to service our customers. The migration to Fiserv

is scheduled for mid-April 2004.

As part of this change in processors, we anticipate significant
upgrades in our online banking and bill pay capabilities. These
alternative delivery channels are becoming critical to savvy
customers who want the most expeditious, easy-to-use services

available for both business and personal needs.

In December 2003, the directors of Citizens elected Robert Ross
of Munster and Joyce Simon of Chicago to join the Bank Board
as of January 1, 2004. Both individuals are former partners

of international accounting firms and bring an added level of
expertise and oversight to the Bank’s dedicated and hard-

working Board of Directors.

We truly feel that our Company and the Bank now have their
strongest Boards and management teams ever. Our directors
and executive team are knowledgeable, determined and flexible.
Our managers, supported by a supervisory group that constantly
implements the best in banking practices while helping each
other provide the best service possible to customers, are effec-
tively driving our organization toward the accomplishment of
numerous initiatives that are making Citizens a high-quality

community bank for both business and retail clients.

Also in 2003, the Citizens Savings Foundation, which was
established in connection with our initial public offering in 1998,

contributed $290,000 to deserving charitable organizations in

our varied local communities. The Citizens Savings Foundation
has been a godsend at a time when many deserving organiza-
tions are facing cutbacks from their usual sources of funds.
Additionally, the involvement of our staff in many of these same

organizations has been critical to their continued viability.

The directors, officers and staff of CFS Bancorp and Citizens
Financial Services are excited about the direction of the
Company and the ability of the Bank to take adva ntége of the
opportunities that a strengthening economy is creating. While
maintaining a strong capital base, we are growing in those
markets and products which should enhance our value as a
public company through the emergence of a progressive bank

that truly makes a difference in the communities it serves.

Thank you for your support!

Loy Tty

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

ARSI

Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer
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Milka Kattan
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ASSISTANT SECRETARIES
Jody Edinger
Thomas Guiden
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Ruth Haney

Lucy Johnston

Mary Kmak

Donna Kosinski
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Debra Lundy
Gwendolyn Mommsen
Sandra Ores
Margaret Smith
Patricia Smolinski
Susan Steinkraus
Charles Stinnett
Lorraine Teggelaar

ASSISTANT TREASURERS
Susan Davis

Donald Greening
Diane Plikuhn

Diane Steapleton
Edna Willis

FIRST VICE PRESIDENTS
William Anderson
Elizabeth DeBolt
Anthony Lara

Julie Lavin

Mary Panas

Zeljko Tomasic

SECOND VICE PRESIDENTS
Michelle Baranick
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Sherry Kimble

Robert Pettay
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The strategy of Citizens Financial Services is to develop long-term growth. While adding desirable locations
and innovative banking products to attract new customers will be the primary methods used to generate this
growth, the focus of our accounting professionals will insure that our progress is measured, sustzinable and
cost-effective. Fiscally sound growth requires a sophisticated strategy for the future and constant fine-tuning

during everyday operations.

Financial Services Group meets the challenge

Toward this end we have maintained a high level of professionalism in the financial services group while
adding some new faces. With the retirement of Chief Financial Cfficer Jack Stephens, Chuck Cole has joined
Citizens Financial Services as its new CFO. Mr. Cole brings over 20 years of banking and financial management
experience and is joined by Joyce Fabisiak, our new Director of Finance who is responsible for the Company’s

public reporting. Kathy Bogdan, Vice President — Controller, has been with Citizens since 1983.

In addition to the responsibilities involved in accounting and financial planning, these professionals share in
the responsibility for complying with numerous government regulations. The Sarbanes/Cxley Act of 2002 has
significantly changed the corporate landscape and created a number of challenges for all public companies.
CFS Bancorp has welcomed this challenge and has already implemented a number of initiatives to ensure

compliance with the Act.

These compliance initiatives include:

« Hiring of a new Director of Public Reporting

« Revising the Audit Committee Charter

« Adopting a Code of Conduct and Ethics

« Establishing a New Disclosure and Ethics Committees

« Installing a new Confidential Ethics Reporting Hotline

We have also added financial expertise to our Bank’s Board of Directors with the election of Robert Ross and
Joyce Simon, both former partners of international accounting firms. Our commitment to accountability and

trust cannot be overstated and will remain foremost during our journey toward growth.

Programs have grown while costs remain steady

Over the past five years, it is important to note that we have successfully contained our costs while expanding
into new markets and opening new branch locations. We have also invested substantially in developing a
commercial business function without increasing overall costs. Total non-interest expense as a percent of
average assets has remained relatively flat at 2.0%. With cost-saving improvements and the implementation
of new technologies, we have been able to continue to invest in employee compensation, benefits and training
without raising overall costs. Total compensation costs, our single largest expense, remained at 1.2% of average

assets even during this period of growth.

Growth through accountability equals long-term success!
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Commercial lending and business services

In 2003, CFS Bancorp continued its strong effort to develop and enhance programs to support commercial and
small business growth. In our evolution to become a more commercially-oriented, community-based banking
organization, we have made great strides in building lasting relationships with business customers. We believe
the key to fostering long-term customer relationships is maintaining an effective stream of communication
and professional advice. This is provided through our relationship managers who properly analyze and recom-

mend credit and cash management services to enhance our customers’ businesses.

A personal approach proves successful

A key commercial growth strategy for the Company has been the development of a regional team approach
that supports the local businesses in our communities. It not only provides better proximity to clients for
our commercial loan staff but is also designed for more efficient processing and servicing. These are critical

elements in fostering successful relationships with business customers.

Due to increased business demand in 2003, CFS hired six new commercial loan officers, all selected for their
knowledge of local markets. A key to our success is that these professionals also serve as active members of

business and civic organizations in their communities.

Three specific regions have been established to support local commercial needs:
« The West Region is located in our Bolingbrook, lllinois office.
« The Central Region is planned for a new facility in Tinley Park, lllinois to be opened in 2005,

‘ith a full range of business « The East Region will be focated in our new Dyer, Indiana facility on Route 30.

oducts, CFS can accommodate ‘

1e financial needs of local CFS has grown its commercial loan production substantially since 1999. In 2003, commercial loan production
1sinesses; CFS employees

eana Yusko and Wendy Linde
enter picture) are always commercial loan portfolio grew $96 miliion in 2003.

was $249 .5 million with an additional $108.7 million in commercial loan participations. Overall, the Bank's net

-ailable to assist customers.

Business accounts/cash management services
The Business Resource Center (BRC) has been well received by our business customers. The BRC is always
accessible to clients to provide support for cash management services including business online banking,

merchant services, ACH, and wire transfer services.
In 2003, the BRC activated 243 new business online banking accounts, a new service unveiled in February 2003.

New business services that were developed as a result of customer requests included a business overdraft

service and an interest-bearing business checking product for sole proprietors and non-profit organizations.

The portfolio of commercial and business checking accounts grew $12.5 million in 2003, an 82% increase.
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At CFS Bancorp, we measure success by how well we meet customer needs and expectations. Retail banking
customers responded enthusiastically to new products and programs this year, giving us a number of

success stories.

Lending success
We originated a record $66.6 million in Home Equity Lines of Credit (HELOC) in 2003, an increase of 57.4% over
last year. While loan growth was primarily fueled by a low interest rate environment, customer usage of the loans

also increased due to a successful implementation of cur HELOC equity access card and direct mail programs.

We also took advantage of the favorable home mortgage climate by streamlining the loan process to be more
competitive. We enhanced our residential loan processing system and implemented automated underwriting,

resulting in quicker approvals and closings. We hired two Mortgage Loan Specialists to meet increased Renée Valdivia along with

Gwen McCray and Debbie Girton

provide service with a smile at

$57.4 million in 2003, up 40% over the prior year. the CFS Customer Service Center:
Service Representatives Connie

. Duke, Leslie Hernandez, Gloria
New products, new offices Haddad and Carol Plesha are

demand in the lllincis and Indiana markets. As a result, total residential mortgage loan production was

The tax deferred annuity products continue to be a popular choice for our customers in ali of CFS Bancorp’s always ready to serve; Online
. . . . . banking is our future.
markets. Tax deferred annuity sales through the Independent Financial Marketing Group in 2003 resulted in

$36 million of new production.

Through our successful marketing efforts, CFS Bancorp customers continue to increase their usage of our
alternative banking channels. Compared to the previous year, debit card usage increased 19%, bill pay

increased 87%, ATM activity increased 26%, and online banking transfers increased 31%. To accommodate
increased usage, online banking is scheduled for implementation of enhanced features and functionality

in early 2004.

The opening of new CFS branches in Naperville and Bolingbrook, Illinois further expands our “footprint™in the
Chicago metropolitan area. These growing, vibrant communities provide enormous potential for both retail

and commercial business and complement our existing lllinois presence.

Outstanding customer service

In 2003, Citizens again received outstanding customer service ratings as measured by Customer Service
Profiles, Inc. Compared to the industry benchmark of 9o%, the Bank’s branches scored a 92% satisfaction
rating, while cur Customer Service Center scored 95%. We are committed to providing a strong customer
service foundation, which ensures continued customer satisfaction and increased usage of Citizens products

and services.




ize growth opportunities

Home Equity Lines of
Credit

Residential mortgage
loan production




| Chicago

5 Lake Michigan
;—-—\__ﬁﬂ
L
B NAPERVILLE 1
Ml WILLOWBROOK 7 B HEGEWISCH / CHICAGO
= |
Sy i
-
H OAK LAWN
B BOLINGBROOK
Il EAST CHICAGO HARBOR
PALOS HEIGHTS
o B EAST CHICAGO
B HARVEY
Il ORLAND PARK M HAMMOND
B W sOUTH HOLLAND (2 LOCATIONS)
B MUNSTER (BRANCH & CORPORATE OFFICE)
H FLOSSMOOR n I HIGHLAND
MUNSTER 45th

B Dver M MERRILLVILLE

B SCHERERVILLE

B CROWN POINT

I VALPARAISO

Imdiana

Citizens Financial Services Office Locations

Indiana

CROWN POINT

155 North Main Street
Crown Point, IN 46307
(219) 663-4758

DYER-WALT'S FOODS
1218 Sheffield
Dyer, IN 4631
{219) 865-0989

EAST CHICAGO

4740 Indianapolis Boulevard
East Chicago, IN 46312

(219) 397-5080

EAST CHICAGO-HARBOR

2121 East Columbus Drive
East Chicago, IN 46312
(219) 357-0033

HAMMOND
5311 Hohman Avenue
Hammond, IN 46320

(219) 933-0432

HIGHLAND

3853 45th Street
Highland, IN 46322
(219) 924-1579

MERRILLVILLE
803 West 57th Avenue
Merrillville, IN 46410
(219) g80-8005

MUNSTER, MAIN OFFICE
707 Ridge Road
Munster, IN 46321
(219) 836-5500

MUNSTER
1720 45th Street
Munster, IN 46321

(219) 924-1720

SCHERERVILLE

7650 Harvest Drive
Schererville, IN 46375
(219) 864-0947

VALPARAISO

855 Thornapple Way
Valparaiso, IN 46385
(219) 465-1602

Minois

BOLINGBROOK

310 South Weber Road
Bolingbrook, IL 60490
(630) 771-9500

FLOSSMOOR

3301 West Vollmer Road
Flossmoor Commons Shopping
Center

Flossmoor, IL 60422

(708) 957-6091

HARVEY

154th Street at Broadway
Harvey, IL 60426

(708) 210-2607

HEGEWISCH

13323 South Baltimore
Hegewisch/Chicago, IL 60633
(773) 371-8503

NAPERVILLE

2547 Plainfield/Naperville Road
Suite 152

Naperville, IL 60564

(630) 357-1089

OAK LAWN

10644 South Cicero Avenue
Oak Lawn, IL 60453

(708} 952-3571

ORLAND PARK

9161 West 1515t Street
Orland Park, IL 60462
(708) 226-2260

PALOS HEIGHTS

7101 West 127th Street
Palos Heights, IL 60463
(708) 671-2064

SOUTH HOLLAND

601 East 162nd Street
South Holland, IL 60473
(708) 210-2662

SOUTH HOLLAND DRIVE-UP CENTER
425 East 170th Street

South Holland, iL 60473

{708) 210-2689

WILLOWBROOK
7229 South Kingery Hwy
Willowbrook, IL 60527
(630) 789-4290







Selected Consolidated Financial Data

CFS BANCORP, INC.

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

Selected Financial Condition Data

AT DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2007 2000 1999

Total assets $1,569,428 |$1,584762 $1,604,134 $1,710,376 $1,649,535
Loans receivable, net 971,541 930,348 883,352 998,727 882,676
Securities, available-for-sale 327,789 335,702 323,383 313,383 331,749
Securities, held-to-maturity — 21,402 37,034 249,641 297,803
Deposits 975,755 954,222 945,948 934,012 925,047
Borrowed money 418,490 449,431 462,658 548,076 494,699
Stockholders’ equity 155,953 160,662 171,284 199,368 205,433
Non-performing assets to total assets 1.46% 1.02% 0.94% 0.75% 0.75%
Stockholders' equity to total assets 9.94 10.14 10.68 11.66 12.45
Stockhclders’ equity per outstanding share $ 12.78 |$ 1268 % 1257 % 11.88 §% 10.97
Allowance for losses on loans to

non-performing foans 46.01% 56.60% 55.23% 60.65% 50.48%
Allowance for losses on loans to total loans 1.06 0.92 0.86 0.71 0.67
Selected Operations Data

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Interest income $ 71,272 |$ 88561 $ 108,107 $ 118876 $ 104,609
interest expense 43,678 53,068 70,288 73,033 57,543
Net interest income 27,594 33,493 37,819 45,843 47,066
Provision for losses on loans 2,326 1,856 1,150 3,375 675
Net interest income after provision

for losses on loans 25,268 31,537 36,669 42,468 46,391
Non-interest income 11,757 11,313 10,728 6,081 5,191
Non-interest expense 32,886 32,674 31,433 31,035 30,210
Income before income taxes 4,139 10,176 15,964 17,514 21,372
Income tax expense 601 2,971 4,791 6,821 8,282
Net income 3,538 7,205 11,173 10,693 13,090
Earnings per share {basic) 0.31 0.60 0.80 0.66 0.69
Earnings per share (diluted) 0.30 0.58 0.77 0.66 0.68
Cash dividends declared per common share 0.44 0.40 0.36 0.36 0.34
Selected Operating Ratios
Net interest margin 1.86% 2.20% 2.36% 2.83% 3.18%
Average interest-earning assets to

average interest-bearing liabilities 110.73 110.96 112.09 113.59 118.70
Ratio of general and administrative

expenses to average total assets 2.10 2.04 1.86 1.84 1.88
Return on average assets 0.23 0.45 0.66 0.63 0.85
Return on average equity 2.28 4.30 5.82 5.34 5.70
Efficiency ratio 87.60 75.25 68.43 53.82 57.95

%




Selected Quarterly Results of Operations

CFS BANCORP, INC.

2003
8T 2ND 3RD 4TH
{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER
Interest income $18,603 $17,683 $16,990 $17.996
Interest expense 11,825 11,211 10,333 10,309
Net interest income 6,778 6,472 6,657 7,687
Provision for losses on loans 478 509 502 837
Non-interest income 2,250 2,648 2,969 3,890
Non-interest expense 7,583 7.655 7,842 9,806
Income before income taxes 967 956 1,282 934
Income tax expense (benefit) 313 258 315 (285)
Net income 654 698 967 1,219
Earnings per share (basic) 0.06 0.06 0.09 0.11
Earnings per share (diluted) 0.06 0.06 0.08 0.10
Dividends declared per share 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.11
2002
ST 2ND 3RD 4TH

{DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER
Interest income $21,978 $22,128 $22,047 $20,408
Interest expense 14,013 12,978 13,291 12,786
Net interest income 7,965 9,150 8,756 7,622
Provision for losses on loans 200 350 500 906
Non-interest income N 2,246 2,494 2,639 3,934
Non-interest expense 7,786 8,452 8,324 8,112
Income before income taxes 2,225 2,842 2,571 2,638
Income taxes €61 859 755 696
Net income 1,564 1,983 1,816 1,842
Earnings per share {basic) 0.13 0.16 0.15 0.16
Earnings per share (diluted) 0.12 0.16 0.15 0.15
Dividends declared per share 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10
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Thomas F. Prisby
Chairman and CEO

James W. Prisby
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Sally A. Abbott
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Gregory W. Blaine
Retired Chatrman
TN Technologies

Thomas J. Burns
President
Burns-Kish Funeral Homes

Gene Diamond
Regional Chief Executive Officer
St. Margaret Mercy Healthcare Centers

Frank D. Lester
President
Union Tank Car Company

Charles R.Webb
Retived Executive Vice President
Keefe, Bruyette and Woods, Inc.

CFS Bancorp, Inc. Corporate Information

Shareholder Information

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS
CFS Bancorp, Inc.

707 Ridge Road
Munster, Indiana 46321
219-836-9990

INVESTOR INFORMATION

Investors and analysts interested in
additional information may contact:
Michael P Prisby

Assistant Vice President

CFS Bancorp, Inc.

707 Ridge Road

Munster, Indiana 46321
219-836-9990

STOCK INFORMATION

CFS Bancorp, Inc. trades on the
NASDAQ National Market under
the ticker symbol CITZ.

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT

Dividend reinvestment is available to
registered shareholders with 100 or
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When used in this Annual Report on Form 10-K or future filings by the Company with the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC), in the Company’s press releases or other public or stockholder communica-
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tions, the words or phrases “would be,” “will allow,” “intends to0,” “will likely result,” “are expected to,” “will

continue,” “is anticipated,” “estimate,” “project,” or similar expressions, or the negative thereof, are intended
to identify “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

The Company wishes to caution readers not to place undue reliance on any such forward-looking
statements, which speak only as of the date made, and to advise readers that various factors, including
regional and national economic conditions, changes in levels of market interest rates, credit and other risks
which are inherent in the Company’s lending and investment activities, legislative changes, changes in the cost
of funds, demand for loan products and financial services, changes in accounting principles and competitive
and regulatory factors, could affect the Company’s financial performance and could cause the Company’s
actual results for future periods to differ materially from those anticipated or projected. Such forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance. The Company does not undertake, and specifically
disclaims any obligation, to update any forward-looking statements to reflect occurrences or unanticipated
events or circumstances after the date of such statements.

PART 1.
Item 1. Business
General

CFS Bancorp, Inc. (including its consolidated subsidiaries, the Company) was organized in March 1998
at the direction of the Board of Directors of Citizens Financial Services, FSB (the Bank or Citizens Financial)
for the purpose of holding all of the capital stock of the Bank and in order to facilitate the conversion of the
Bank from a federally-chartered mutual savings bank to a federally-chartered stock savings bank (Conver-
sion). In connection with the Conversion, the Office of Thrift Supervision (OTS) approved the Company’s
application to become a savings and loan holding company. The Company now conducts business as a
registered unitary savings and loan holding company and is subject to oversight and examination by the OTS.
See “Regulation — Regulation of Savings and Loan Holding Companies.”

The Company’s assets consist of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Bank, investments made
with the portion of the net proceeds from the sale of Company shares in the Company’s July 1998 initial
public offering (Offering), which was undertaken in conjunction with the Conversion, retained by the
Company, and the Company's loan to the Bank for the employee stock ownership plan (ESOP). The
Company has no significant liabilities. The management of the Company and the Bank are substantially
identical, and the Company neither owns nor leases any property but instead uses the premises, equipment and
furniture of the Bank. The Company does not employ any persons other than officers who are also officers of
the Bank. In addition, the Company utilizes the support staff of the Bank from time to time. Additional
employees may be hired as appropriate to the extent the Company expands or changes its business in the
future.

The Bank is subject to examination and comprehensive regulation by the OTS, which is the Bank’s
chartering authority and primary federal regulator., The Bank is also regulated by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC), administrator of the Savings Association Insurance Fund (SAIF). The Bank
is also subject to certain reserve requirements established by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve
System (FRB) and is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) of Indianapolis, which is one of
the 12 regional banks comprising the FHLB System.

Citizens Financial is a federally-chartered stock savings bank that was originally organized in 1934. The
Bank conducts its business from its executive offices in Munster, Indiana, as well as 22 banking centers located
in Lake and Porter Counties in northwest Indiana and Cook, DuPage and Will Counties in Illinois. The
Company also has an Operations Center located in Highland, Indiana which is dedicated to its Customer Call
Center and other back office operations.




At December 31, 2003, the Company had $1.57 billion in total assets, $975.8 million in deposits,
$418.5 million in borrowed funds and $156.0 million of stockholders’ equity. The Bank is primarily engaged in
attracting deposits from the general public and using those funds to originate loans and invest in securities.

During 1998, the Bank began leveraging its capital base, using borrowings to provide additional funds to
support its lending and investing activities. Historically, the Bank’s primary lending emphasis was on loans
secured by the first liens on single-family (one-to four-units) residential properties located in its market area.
However, the Bank decided not to participate aggressively in the substantial refinancing of home loans that
occurred nationally due to record low interest rates during the three years ended December 31, 2003. Instead
the Bank’s strategy in recent periods has been to accumulate liquidity in order to take advantage of loans and
other investments that are expected to become available as the economy improves and interest rates rise to
higher levels.

The Bank also originates commercial real estate and multi-family residential loans, construction and land
development loans, home equity lines of credit (HELOC) and other commercial and consumer loans. Since
1998, the Bank shifted its lending emphasis, increasing its involvement in commercial real estate loans, multi-
family residential mortgage loans, and construction and land development loans, while concurrently reducing
its originations of single-family residential loans.

The Bank’s revenue is derived from interest on loans, mortgage-backed and related securities and
investments, loan and deposit fees, and investment commissions. The Bank’s operations are significantly
impacted by general and economic conditions, the monetary policy of the federal government, including the
Federal Reserve Board, legislative tax policies and governmental budgetary matters. In the past, the Bank’s
revenue has been largely dependent on net interest income, which is the difference between interest earned on
interest-bearing assets and the interest expense paid on interest-bearing liabilities. However, the Bank has
focused on generating other sources of income through loan and deposit fees, investment commissions and
other non-interest income to be a significant source of revenue.

Available Information

CFS Bancorp, Inc. is a public company and files annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements
and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company’s filings are available to
the public at the SEC’s web site at http://www.sec.gov. Members of the public may also read and copy any
document the Company files at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington,
D.C. 20549. You can request copies of these documents by writing to the SEC and paying a fee for the
copying cost. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for more information about the operation of the public
reference room. In addition, the Company’s stock is listed for trading on the Nasdaq National Market and
trades under the symbol “CITZ.” You may find additional information regarding the Company at
www.nasdag.com.

In addition to the foregoing, the Company maintains a web site at www.cfsbancorp.com. The Company
makes available on its Internet web site copies of its Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to such documents as soon as reasonably
practicable after it files such material with or furnishes such documents to the SEC.

Corporate Governance

The Company has established certain committees of its Board of Directors, specifically audit, compensa-
tion, and nominating committees. The charters of these committees as well as the Company’s Code of
Conduct and Ethics can be found on the above mentioned Company website. The information is also available
in printed form to any shareholder who requests it by writing to the Company in care of the Vice President —
Corporate Secretary, 707 Ridge Road, Munster, Indiana 46321.
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Market Area and Competition

Citizens Financial operates out of its headquarters in Munster, Indiana, which is located in Lake County
in northwest Indiana. Citizens Financial maintains 22 banking centers in Lake and Porter Counties in
northwest Indiana and in Cook, DuPage and Will Counties in Illinois. The areas served by Citizens Financial
are part of the Chicago Metropolitan Statistical Area.

Citizens Financial has historically concentrated its efforts in the market surrounding its offices and has in
recent years broadened that market into the geographic Midwest mainly through the development of
commercial lending relationships. The Bank’s market area reflects diverse socioeconomic factors. Tradition-
ally, the market area in northwest Indiana and the suburban areas south of Chicago were dependent on heavy
manufacturing. While manufacturing is still an important component of the local economies, service-related
industries have become increasingly significant to the region in the last decade. Growth in the local economies
can be expected to occur largely as a result of the continued interrelation with Chicago as well as suburban
business centers in the area.

The Bank faces significant competition both in making loans and in attracting deposits. The Chicago
metropolitan area is one of the largest money centers in the United States, and the market for deposit funds is
highly competitive. The Bank’s competition for loans comes principally from commercial banks, other savings
banks, savings associations and mortgage-banking companies. The Bank’s most direct competition for deposits
has historically come from savings banks, commercial banks and credit unions. The Bank faces additional
competition for deposits from short-term money market funds, other corporate and government securities
funds and from other non-depository financial institutions such as brokerage firms and insurance companies.

Lending Activities

General. The Bank offers various loan products including single-family and multi-family residential
mortgage loans, commercial real estate loans, construction and land development loans, home equity lines of
credit, commercial business loans, and consumer loans. The Bank’s lending strategy is to diversify its portfolio
to limit risks associated with a particular loan type or industry while building a quality portfolio. The Bank has
established specific industry concentration limits in a manner that will not hamper its lenders in the pursuit of
new business in a variety of sectors. ’

Loan underwriting focuses on the financial strength of the borrower and guarantors, the cash flow of a
business, and the underlying collateral. While the Bank offers both fixed and adjustable rate products, the
emphasis remains on adjustable rate products to better control interest rate risk.

The types of loans that the Bank may originate are subject to federal and state laws and regulations.
Interest rates charged by the Bank on loans are affected principally by the demand for such loans, the supply
of money available for lending purposes, the rates offered by its competitors and the risks involved on such
loans. These factors are, in turn, affected by general and economic conditions, the monetary policy of the
federal government, including the Federal Reserve Board, legislative tax policies and governmental budgetary
matters.




Loan Portfolioc Composition. The following table sets forth the composition of the Bank’s loans at the
dates indicated.

December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
Amount of Total Amount  of Total Amount  of Total Amount of Total Amount  of Total

(Dollars in thousands)

Mortgage loans:
Single-family residential .. § 317,645 30.57% $386,050  39.34% $535,197 58.38% § 700,790 66.62% $669,280  65.46%

Multi-family residential . . 87,888 8.46 71,170 7.25 51,635 5.63 41,903 3.98 33,840 3.51
Commercial real estate . . . 340,807  32.80 271,426  27.66 142,663 1556 124,477  11.83 93,320 9.68
Construction and land

development:

Single-family residential 16,488 1.59 12,118 1.23 17,208 1.88 29,889 2.84 39,045 4.05

Multi-family residential 73,197 7.05 63,893 6.51 26,443 2.88 43,689 4.16 36,843 3.82

Commercial and land

development........ 92,348 8.94 88,951 9.06 76,168 8.31 70,486 6.70 57,417 5.96

Home equity ........... 71,360 6.87 45,106 4.60 41,416 4.52 20,534 1.95 16,001 1.66
Total mortgage loans .... 1,000,233  96.28 938,714 9565 890,730  97.16 1,031,768  98.08 945746  98.14

QOther loans:
Commercial, non-real

estate ............... 36,222 3.49 40,034 4.08 23,996 2.62 17,503 1.66 13,646 1.42
Consumer.............. 2,422 0.23 2,610 0.27 2,066 0.22 2,727 0.26 4,215 0.44
Total loans receivable .... 1,038,877 100.00% 981,358 100.00% 916,792 100.00% 1,051,998 100.00% 963,607 100.00%

Less:
Undisbursed portion of

loan proceeds ......... 54,076 39,704 24,454 45,022 73,086
Allowance for losses on

loans ................ 10,453 8,674 7,662 7,187 5,973
Net deferred yield

adjustments . ......... 2,807 2,632 1,324 1,062 1,872

Loans receivable, net ...... $ 971,541 $930,348 $883,352 $ 998,727 $882,676

Contractual Principal Repayments and Interest Rates. The following table sets forth scheduled
contractual amortization of the Bank’s loans at December 31, 2003, as well as the dollar amount of such loans
which are scheduled to mature after one year which have fixed or adjustable interest rates. Demand loans,
loans having no schedule of repayments with no stated maturity and overdraft loans are reported as due in one
year or less.

Total at Principal Repayments Contractually Due
December 31, In Year(s) Ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005 - 2008 Thereafter

(Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage loans:

Single-family residential ......................... $ 317,645 § 1407 $ 16,369  $299,869
Multi-family residential ...................... ... 87,888 22,678 38,883 26,327
Commercial real estate ......................... 340,807 24,486 94,962 221,359
Construction and land development ............... 182,533 88,595 82,668 11,270
Home equity ... 71,360 5,090 3,382 62,888
Other loans:

Commercial . ... . . i 36,222 18,757 9,886 7,579
CONSUMIET ..t 2,422 1,011 1,387 24

Total(1) ..o e $1,038,877  $162,024  $247,537  $629,316

(1) Of the $876.9 million of loan principal repayments contractually due after December 31, 2004,
$331.0 million have fixed interest rates and $545.9 million have variable interest rates which reprice from
one month up to five years,



Scheduled contractual loan amortization does not reflect the expected term of the Bank’s loan portfolio.
The average life of loans is substantially less than their contractual terms because of prepayments and due-on-
sale clauses, which give the Bank the right to declare a conventional loan immediately due and payable in the
event, among other things, that the borrower sells the real property subject to the mortgage and the loan is not
repaid. The average life of mortgage loans tends to increase when current market rates of interest for mortgage
loans are higher than rates on existing mortgage loans and, conversely, decrease when rates on existing
mortgage loans are higher than current market rates as borrowers refinance adjustable-rate and fixed-rate
loans at lower rates. Under the latter circumstance, the weighted average yield on loans decreases as higher
yielding loans are repaid or refinanced at lower rates.

Loan Activity. The following table shows the Bank’s loan activity during the years indicated.
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)
Gross loans held at beginning of year . ... .. $ 981,358 §$ 916,792 $1,051,998 $ 963,607 $ 744,501
Originations of loans:
Mortgage loans:
Single-family residential ............. 57,431 41,007 23,541 85,871 164,302
Multi-family residential.............. 10,218 22,588 2,477 6,165 13,910
Commercial real estate . ............. 91,353 136,994 23,191 31,035 52,596
Construction and land development:
Single-family residential ........... 19,584 10,337 12,893 37,832 47,197
Multi-family residential............ 20,209 41,339 6,629 15,166 37,874
Commercial and land development .. 29,633 46,450 43,482 38,465 57,788
Home equity....................... 66,638 42,331 30,689 19,078 13,163
Other loans:
Commercial .................... ... 98,077 76,137 14,831 17,883 21,009
Consumer...............covvinin. 1,654 2,947 1,328 825 3,715
Total originations . .................. 394,799 420,130 159,061 252,320 411,554
Purchases of participating interests in loans:
Single-family residential ............. — 2,515 12,920 13 24
Multi-family residential.............. 37,694 7,840 — — —
Commercial real estate .. ............ 65,442 46,861 1,108 — —
Commercial ....................... 5,562 8,709 15,000 — —
Total purchases .................. 108,698 65,925 29,028 13 24
Total originations and purchases ...... 503,497 486,055 188,089 252,333 411,578
Single-family residential loans sold ... ..... (12,697) (22,014) (5,873) (1,335) (8,628)
Muiti-family residential loans sold......... (918) (900) — — —
Transfers to real estate owned ............ (1,170) (2,382) (1,875) (1,721) (1,112)
Charge-offs.................... ... ... (760) (1,183) (855) (2,279) (171)
Repayments ........................... (430,433)  (395,010) (314,692) (158,607)  (182,561)
Net activity in loans .................... 57,519 64,566 {135,206) 88,391 219,106
Gross loans held at end of year ........... $1,038,877 $ 981,358 § 916,792  $1,051,998 $ 963,607

The lending activities of Citizens Financial are subject to the credit policy approved by the Bank’s Board
of Directors. Applications for residential mortgages are taken at all of the Bank’s offices by mortgage
originators and are forwarded to the Bank’s retail operations center for underwriting and analysis. Commercial
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loan requests are taken through business development efforts and commercial loan officer relationships. The
business bankers and commercial loan officers collect necessary information regarding the potential borrower
and request. The request and information are then forwarded to the Bank’s commercial loan credit analysts
who.complete the underwriting and analysis on the loan. The Bank requires that a property appraisal be
obtained in connection with all new real estate mortgage loans. Citizens Financial requires that title insurance
and hazard insurance be maintained on all properties secured by a first mortgage and that adequate flood
insurance be maintained if the property is within a designated flood plain. For HELOCs, the Bank requires an
appraisal or evaluanon and title search to confirm any liens on the property.

Certain oﬁicers of the Bank have been authorized by the Board of Directors to approve loans up to certain
designated amounts. The Loan Committee of Citizens Financial meets weekly and reviews all loans that
exceed individual loan authority. The full Board of Directors of Citizens Financial is provided monthly with a
listing of all loans approved during the period.

A federal savings bank generally may not make loans to one borrower and related entities in an amount
which exceeds 15% of its unimpaired capital and surplus (or approximately $20.1 million in the case of the
Bank at December 31, 2003), although loans in an amount equal to an additional 10% of unimpaired capital
and surplus may be made to a borrower if the loans are fully secured by readily marketable securities.

Generally, Citizens Financial’s aggregate loans to one borrower and related entities have been well below
the regulatory limits. As of December 31, 2003, Citizens Financial’s two largest relationships with one
borrower and related entities that comprise a common enterprise amounted to $19.4 million and $19.2 million,
and all of the Bank’s loans included in such relationships were performing in accordance with their terms.
Since January 2003, the Bank has had a general guideline of limiting any one loan or multiple loans to the
same borrower to 75% of the regulatory limit.

The Bank also monitors the aggregate loans to corporate groups. These are loans that are given to
individual entities that have a similar ownership group but are not considered to be a common enterprise.
While the individual loans are secured by separate property and underwritten based on separate cash flows, the
entities may all be owned or controlled by one individual or a group of individuals. The Bank’s limit to any
corporate group is 50% of Tier 1 capital. At December 31, 2003, Tier 1 capital was $131.5 million. Citizens
Financial’s two largest corporate group relationships at December 31, 2003 equaled $37.9 million and
$25.0 million, respectively. Both of these relationships are well below the group limit of $65.8 million and are
performing in accordance with their terms.

Single-Family Residential and Home Equity Lines of Credit. Substantially all of the Bank’s single-
family residential mortgage loans consist of conventional loans. Conventional loans are neither insured by the
Federal Housing Administration (FHA) nor partially guaranteed by the Department of Veterans Affairs
(VA). The vast majority of the Bank’s single-family residential mortgage loans are secured by properties
located in Lake and Porter Counties in northwest Indiana and Coock, DuPage and Will Counties in Illinois.

Historically, the Bank retained virtually all mortgage loans which it originated and did not engage in sales
of residential mortgage loans. Beginning July 1, 1999, the Bank instituted a new policy and began selling its
newly originated fixed-rate loans; such sales amounted to $12.7 million in 2003 and included the release of
servicing.

As of December 31, 2003, $317.6 million, or 30.6%, of the Bank’s total loans consisted of smgle-famﬂy
residential mortgage loans, Citizens Financial originated $57.4 million, $41.0 million and $23.5 million of
single-family residential mortgage loans in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Although the Bank will continue
to originate single-family residential mortgage loans, it anticipates that the commercial lending portfolio and
construction and land development loans will continue to increase as a percentage of total new loan
- originations as the Bank continues to focus on changing its asset mix based on its strategic plan.

Citizens Financial’s residential mortgage loans have elther fixed mterest rates or variable interest rates
which adjust periodically during the term of the loan. Fixed-rate loans generally have maturities of 15 or
30 years and are fully amortizing with monthly loan payments sufficient to repay the total amount of the loan
with interest by the maturity date. The Bank’s fixed-rate loans are generally originated under terms, conditions
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and documentation which permit them to be pre-sold in the secondary market for mortgages. By pre-selling
these loans, the Bank limits the interest rate risk associated with fixed rate loans. At December 31, 2003,
$72.9 million, or 23.0% of the Bank’s single-family residential mortgage loans, were fixed-rate loans.
Substantially all of the Bank’s single-family residential mortgage loans contain due-on-sale clauses, which
permit the Bank to declare the unpaid balance to be due and payable upon the sale or transfer of any interest
in the property securing the loan. The Bank enforces such due-on-sale clauses.

The adjustable-rate single-family residential mortgage (ARM) loans currently offered by the Bank have
interest rates which are fixed for the initial three or five years and are thereafter adjusted on an annual basis in
accordance with a designated index such as one-year U.S. Treasury obligations adjusted to a constant maturity
(CMT), plus a stipulated margin. The Bank’s adjustable-rate single-family residential real estate loans
generally have a cap of 2% on any increase or decrease in the interest rate at any adjustment date and include a
specified cap on the maximum interest rate over the life of the loan. This cap is generally 6% above the initial
rate. The Bank’s adjustable-rate loans require that any payment adjustment resulting from a change in the
interest rate of an adjustable-rate loan be sufficient to result in full amortization of the loan by the end of the
loan term and, thus, do not permit any of the increased payment to be added to the principal amount of the
loan, or so-called negative amortization. At December 31, 2003, $244.7 million, or 77.0% of the Bank’s single-
family residential mortgage loans, were adjustable-rate loans.

While the Bank has focused on providing adjustable-rate loans to decrease the risk related to changes in
the interest rate environment, these types of loans also involve other risks. As interest rates rise, the customers’
payments on an adjustable-rate loan also increase to the extent permitted by the loan terms thereby increasing
the potential for default. Also, when interest rates decline substantially, borrowers tend to refinance into fixed
rate loans. The Bank believes that these risks, which have not had a material adverse effect on the Bank to
date, generally are less than the risks associated with holding fixed-rate loans in an increasing interest rate
environment.

The volume and types of ARMs originated by Citizens Financial are affected by such market factors as
the level of interest rates, competition, consumer preferences and availability of funds. Accordingly, although
the Bank anticipates that it will continue to offer single-family ARMs, the increased emphasis over the past
few years on growing the Bank’s commercial real estate and multi-family residential loans and its construction
and land development portfolio has reduced the proportion of single-family residential loans to total loans.

The Bank’s single-family residential mortgage loans generally do not exceed amounts limited to the
maximum amounts contained in U.S. Government sponsored agency guidelines. In addition, the maximum
loan-to-value (LTV) ratio for the Bank’s single-family residential mortgage loans is generally 95% of the
secured property’s appraised value, provided that private mortgage insurance is generally obtained on the
portion of the principal amount that exceeds 80% of the appraised value.

At December 31, 2003, Citizens Financial’s home equity products amounted to $71.4 million, or 6.9% of
the Bank’s total loans. The majority of the Bank’s home equity products are HELOCs which are structured as
an adjustable rate line of credit with terms up to 20 years including a 10 year repayment period. The Bank also
offers home equity loans with a 10 year term which have a fixed-rate for the first five years and a one-time rate
adjustment after the fifth year. Both types of home equity products are secured by the underlying equity in the
borrower’s residence. The Bank’s HELOCs generally require LTV ratios of 90% or less after taking into
consideration any first mortgage loan. However, certain customers may qualify to receive up to 100% LTV.
The Bank originated $66.6 million, $42.3 million and $30.7 million of home equity loans in 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

Commercial Real Estate and Multi-Family Residential Loans. In recent years, the Company’s strategy
has changed to shift the loan portfolio to more commercial real estate and multi-family residential loans. In
order to focus on this shift, the Company significantly increased the number of experienced commercial loan
officers and employees to build a regionally structured Commercial Loan Department. The regional structure
allows the loan officers to build better relationships with the businesses in their communities. The Commercial
Loan Department will be located in the Bank’s new Dyer facility which is expected to open by May 2004. The
new commercial loan officers bring with them other business relationships which have allowed the Company
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to not only build more relationships within its market area but also expand and generate new business outside
of its historical lending area, mainly the geographic Midwest.

At December 31, 2003, Citizens Financial’'s commercial real estate loans and multi-family residential
loans amounted to $340.8 million and $87.9 million, or 32.8% and 8.5%, respectively, of the Bank’s total loan
portfolio, as compared to $93.3 million and $33.8 million, or 9.7% and 3.5%, respectively, of the Bank’s total
loan portfolio at December 31, 1999. The Bank originated $91.4 million of commercial real estate loans during
the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to $137.0 million and $23.2 million, respectively, in 2002 and
2001.

The Bank’s multi-family residential loans are concentrated in the geographic Midwest. The Bank
originated $10.2 million of multi-family residential loans in 2003 compared to $22.6 million and $2.5 million in
2002 and 2001, respectively. As of December 31, 2003, the Bank’s five largest commercial real estate and
multi-family residential loan relationships were $19.4 millien, $19.2 million, $18.3 million, $17.2 million and
$16.9 million, all of which were performing in accordance with their terms.

Commercial real estate and multi-family residential loans generally have 3 to 15 year terms with an
amortization period of 25 years. These loans often have interest rates that are fixed for an initial three or five
vear period and then adjust annually to a CMT plus a stipulated margin for the remainder of the term. The
Bank has also historically offered commercial real estate and multi-family residential loans with a fixed
interest rate for a five year term followed by a one time adjustment which is then fixed for the remaining term.
Commercial real estate and multi-family residential loans generally have shorter terms to maturity and higher
yields than the Bank’s single-family residential mortgage loans. Also, fees of between 0.5% and 1.0% of the
principal loan balance are charged to the borrower upon closing. These loans are subject to prepayment
penalties. The Bank generally obtains personal guarantees of the borrower’s principals as additional security
for any commercial real estate and multi-family residential loans.

The Bank’s commercial real estate loans are secured by hotels, medical office facilities, churches, small
office buildings, strip shopping centers and other commercial uses primarily Jocated throughout the Bank’s
market area and into the geographic Midwest. These loans are usually less than $15.0 million, and as of
December 31, 2003, the average size of the Bank’s commercial real estate loans was approximately
$1.3 million.

Citizens Financial evaluates various aspects of commercial real estate and multi-family residential loan
transactions in an effort to mitigate credit risk to the greatest extent possible. In underwriting these loans,
consideration is given to the stability of the property’s cash flow history, future operating projections,
management experience, current and projected occupancy, position in the market, location and physical
condition. In addition, the Bank also performs sensitivity analysis on cash flow, vacancy and interest rate
projections when underwriting the loans to determine how different scenarios may impact the borrowers’
ability to repay the loans. The Bank has also generally imposed a debt coverage ratio (the ratio of net income
before payment of debt service to debt service) of not less than 120% for commercial real estate and multi-
family residential loans. The underwriting analysis also includes credit checks and a review of the financial
condition of the borrower and guarantor. An appraisal report is prepared by an independent appraiser
commissioned by the Bank to substantiate property values for every commercial real estate and multi-family
residential loan transaction. All appraisal reports and any necessary environmental site assessments are
reviewed by the Bank before the loan closes.

Commercial real estate and multi-family residential lending entails substantially different risks when
compared to single-family residential lending because such loans often involve large loan balances to single
borrowers and because the payment experience on such loans is typically dependent on the successful
operation of the project or the borrower’s business. These risks can also be significantly affected by supply and
demand conditions in the local market for apartments, offices, warehouses, or other commercial space. The
Bank attempts to minimize its risk exposure by limiting such lending to proven businesses, only considering
properties with existing operating performance which can be analyzed, requiring conservative debt coverage
ratios and periodically monitoring the operation and physical condition of the collateral as well as the business
occupying the property.




As of December 31, 2003, the Bank had $7.8 million, or 2.3% of its commercial real estate loans
identified as non-performing loans while $3.7 million, or 4.2%, of its multi-family residential loans were
considered non-performing. Refer to “Asset Quality” for more information on non-performing loans.

The Bank also invests, on a participating basis, in commercial real estate and multi-family residential
loans originated by other lenders. In these transactions, the Bank reviews such loans utilizing the same credit
policies applicable to loans it originates. At December 31, 2003, participation loans purchased totaled
approximately $65.4 million and $37.7 million for commercial real estate and multi-family residential loans,
respectively.

Construction and Land Development Loans. As previously indicated, the Bank increased its emphasis
on construction and land development loans beginning in the second half of 1998. Historically, in the years
prior to the Bank’s Conversion, the Bank had concentrated its construction lending efforts primarily on
residential construction loans to local real estate builders, generally with whom it had an established
relationship. The Bank also originated such loans to individuals for the construction of their residences.
Commencing in the second half of 1998, the Bank expanded its efforts to originate construction loans for
commercial real estate and multi-family residential properties.

At December 31, 2003, the average size of construction loans for commercial real estate and multi-family
residential properties was approximately $4.1 million. At December 31, 2003, construction and land
development loans amounted to $182.5 million, or 17.6% of the Bank’s loan portfolio (including $54.1 million
of loans in process). Of the Bank’s construction and land development loans at December 31, 2003,
$16.5 million were construction/permanent, single-family residential loans which, by their terms, convert to
permanent mortgage loans upon the completion of construction. The Bank originated $69.4 million of
construction and land development loans during 2003, compared to $98.1 million and $63.0 million in 2002
and 2001, respectively. The amount of construction and land development loans originated in 2003 included an
aggregate of $49.8 million for commercial real estate and multi-family residential construction loans. Of the
Bank’s commercial real estate and multi-family residential mortgage loans at December 31, 2003, $40.2 mil-
lion were construction/permanent loans.

The Bank originates land loans to local developers for the purpose of developing the land (i.e., roads,
sewer and water) for sale. These loans are secured by a mortgage on the property which is generally limited to
75% of the appraised value of the property and are typically made for a period of up to two years. The Bank
requires monthly interest payments during the term of the loan. The principal of the loan is reduced as lots are
sold and released. All of the Bank’s land loans are secured by property located in its primary market area. In
addition, the Bank generally obtains personal guarantees from the borrower’s principals for construction and
land development loans.

The Bank’s loan underwriting and processing procedures require a property appraisal by an approved
independent appraiser and that each construction and development loan be reviewed by independent
architects, engineers or other qualified third parties for verification of costs. Disbursements during the
construction phase are based on regular on-site inspections and approved certifications. In the case of
construction loans on commercial projects where the Bank provides the permanent financing, the Bank usually
requires firm lease commitments on some portion of the property under construction from qualified tenants. In
addition, the Bank limits both its residential and commercial construction lending to northwest Indiana and
the Chicagoland area. At December 31, 2003, the Bank’s five largest construction and land development
relationships were $17.5 million, $17.0 million, $15.0 million, $13.9 million and $12.5 million, all of which
were performing in accordance with their terms.

Construction and development financing is generally considered to involve a higher degree of risk of loss
than long-term financing on improved, owner-occupied real estate. The Bank’s risk of loss on a construction
loan is dependent largely upon the accuracy of the initial estimate of the property’s value at completion of
construction or development and the estimated cost (including interest) of construction. If the estimate of
construction cost proves to be inaccurate, the Bank first requires the borrower to inject cash equity to cover
any shortfall. The Bank may then need to advance funds beyond the amount originally committed to permit
completion of the development. Construction and development loans generally are considered to be more
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difficult to evaluate and monitor than single-family residential mortgage loans. In addition, the Bank’s
commercial real estate and construction and development loans generally have larger principal balances than
its single-family residential mortgage loans.

In evaluating any new originations of construction and development loans, the Bank generally considers
evidence of the availability of permanent financing or a takeout commitment to the borrower, the reputation of
the borrower and the contractor, the amount of the borrower’s equity in the project, independent valuations
and reviews of cost estimates, pre-construction sale and leasing information, and cash flow projections of the
borrower. To reduce the inherent lending risk, the Bank may require performance bonds in the amount of the
construction contract and often obtains personal guarantees from the principals of the borrower.

As of December 31, 2003, $4.2 million, or 2.3%, of Citizens Financial’s construction and land
development loans were considered non-performing. Refer to “Asset Quality” for additional discussions on
non-performing loans.

Other Loans. Citizens Financial’s other loans consist primarily of commercial loans, consumer loans
and loans secured by deposit accounts. Included in the category of commercial loans are loans secured by
business assets other than real estate, unsecured loans, and secured and unsecured operating lines of credit. As
of December 31, 2003, Citizens Financial’s other loans amounted to $38.6 million compared to $42.6 million
and $26.1 million at December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The Bank is not actively marketing its
consumer loans and offers them primarily as a service to its existing customers.

Asset Quality

General.  All of the Bank’s assets are subject to review under its classification system. See discussion on
“Classified and Criticized Assets.” Loans are periodically reviewed by the Bank’s Loan Committee. The
Board of Directors also reviews the classified assets on a quarterly basis. When a borrower fails to make a
required payment on a loan, the Bank attempts to cure the deficiency by contacting the borrower and seeking
payment. Contacts are generally made prior to 30 days after a payment is due. If a delinquency continues, late
charges are assessed and additional efforts are made to collect the past due payments. While the Bank
generally prefers to work with borrowers to resolve such problems, when the account becomes 90 days
delinquent, the Bank may institute foreclosure or other proceedings, as deemed necessary, to minimize any
potential loss.

Loans are placed on non-accrual status when, in the judgment of management, the probability of
collection of interest is ‘deemed to be insufficient to warrant further accrual. When a loan is placed on non-
accrual status, previously accrued but unpaid interest is deducted from interest income. The Bank does not
accrue interest on loans past due 90 days or more.

Real estate acquired by the Bank as a result of foreclosure or by deed-in-lieu of foreclosure is classified as
real estate owned until sold. Foreclosed assets are held for sale and such assets are carried at the lower of fair
value minus estimated costs to sell the property or cost (generally the balance of the loan on the property at the
date of acquisition with any resulting losses being charged to the allowance for losses on loans). After the date of
acquisition, all costs incurred in maintaining the property are expensed, and costs incurred for the improvement
or development of such property are capitalized up to the extent of the property’s net realizable value.

Delinquent Loans. The following table sets forth information concerning certain delinquent loans, at the

dates indicated, in dollar amounts and as a percentage of each category of the Bank’s loan portfolio. The
amounts presented represent the total outstanding principal balances of the related loans. The following table
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contains information on loans that are 60 to 89 days delinquent. Loans that are delinquent 90 days or more are
included in the next table below in the non-accrual loans category.

December 31,

2003 2002 2001
60 — 89 Days 60 - 89 Days 60 - 89 Days
Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent
Percent of Percent of Percent of
Loan Loan Loan
Amount Category Amount Category Amount Category
(Dollars in thousands)
Residential:
Single-family .. ... ..ot $2,704 0.85%  $4,482 1.16% $ 3,154  0.59%
Multi-family .................... — — 614 0.86 1,945 3.77
Commercial real estate . ............ 943 0.28 535 0.20 4,842 3.39
Construction and land development . . . 1,657 0.91 341 0.21 625 0.52
Home equity ........ ... ... ... ... .. 49 0.07 161 0.36 56 0.14
Other:
Commercial .. ................... 470 1.30 781 1.95 374 1.56
Consumer ...................... 2 0.08 10 0.38 19 0.92
Total............. .. ... .. ..... $5,825 0.56% $6,924 0.71% $11,015 1.20%

Non-Performing and Under-Performing Assets. The following table sets forth information with respect
to non-performing and certain under-performing assets identified by Citizens Financial, including non-accrual
loans and other real estate owned. Citizens Financial had no accruing loans 90 days or more past due as to
principal or interest at any of the below-referenced dates.

December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)

Non-accrual loans:
Mortgage loans:

Single-family residential . ................ ... $ 5584 $ 7294 $8579 § 5230 § 7,303
Multi-family residential ................ . ... 3,685 36 36 — 460
Commercial real estate. . ................... 7,775 5,621 1,798 1,330 2,498
Construction and land development ............ 4,180 1,323 1,361 4,167 1,313
Home equity ... ... e 272 324 692 405 206
Other loans:
Commercial ......... ... . .. i 1,205 692 1,117 559 —
ConSUMET . . ..ottt 19 35 291 158 52
Total non-accruing loans ............ o 22,720 15,325 13,874 11,849 11,832
Other real estate owned, net .................... 206 893 1,128 1,058 609
Total non-performing assets................... $22,926 $16,218  $15,002 $12,907 $12,441
Performing troubled debt restructurings........... $ 296 $ 338 § 417 $ 58 $§ 668
Non-performing assets to total assets ............. 1.46% 1.02% 0.94% 0.75% 0.75%
Non-performing loans to total loans .............. 2.19 1.56 1.51 1.13 1.23
Total non-performing assets and troubled debt |
restructurings to total assets................... 1.48 1.04 0.96 0.79 0.79

During the fourth quarter 2003, three large loans were transferred to non-accrual. These loans included a
$2.2 million multi-family residential loan secured by an apartment complex, a $3.9 million commercial real
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estate loan secured by a strip mall and a $2.8 million construction and land development loan secured by an
apartment complex. The Company believes that these three loans are fully collateralized and its risk of loss, if
any, is minimal. Also included in non-accrual loans as of December 31, 2003 is a loan secured by a motel with
a carrying value of approximately $3.9 million. The property is currently operated by a court appointed
receiver. This property is expected to become real estate owned during the second quarter of 2004.

The interest income that would have been recorded during the year ended December 31, 2003, if all of
the Bank’s non-performing loans at the end of such period had been current in accordance with their terms
during such periods, was $1.3 million. The actual amount of interest recorded as income (on a cash basis) on
such loans during the period amounted to $658,000.

Classified and Criticized Assets. TFederal regulations require that each insured institution classify its
assets on a regular basis. Furthermore, in connection with examinations of insured institutions, federal
examiners have authority to identify problem assets and, if appropriate, classify them. There are three
classifications for problem assets:

« Substandard assets have one or more defined weaknesses and are characterized by the distinct
possibility that the insured institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.

» Doubtful assets have the weaknesses of substandard assets with the additional characteristic that the
weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions and
values questionable, and there is a high probability of loss.

» Loss assets are considered uncollectible and of such little value that continuance as an asset of the
institution is not warranted. '

Federal examiners have designated another category as “special mention” for assets which have some
identified weaknesses but do not currently expose an insured institution to a sufficient degree of risk to warrant
classification as substandard, doubtful or loss.

As of December 31, 2003, the Bank had an aggregate of $43.0 million of classified assets, 99.0% of which
were classified substandard and 1.0% of which were classified as doubtful, compared to $48.3 million of
classified assets as of December 31, 2002.

Additionaily, the Bank utilizes an independent third party to review its commercial real estate and multi-
family residential loans approximately three times per year. The recommendations provided by the third party
are reviewed during the Loan Committee meetings and management makes the final determination on the
loan classifications.

Allowance for Losses on Loans. The Bank’s policy is to establish allowances for estimated losses on
loans when it determines that losses are expected to be incurred on such loans. The allowance for losses on
loans is maintained at a level believed adequate by management to absorb losses inherent in the portfolio.
Management’s determination of the adequacy of the allowance is based on an evaluation of the portfolio, past
loss experience, current economic conditions, volume, growth and composition of the portfolio, and other
relevant factors. The allowance is increased by provisions for loan losses which are charged against income. As
shown in the table on the following page, at December 31, 2003, the Bank’s allowance for losses on loans
amounted to $10.5 million or 46.0% and 1.06% of the Bank’s non-performing loans and total loans receivable,
respectively. The Bank’s provision for losses on loans amounted to $2.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 and $2.0 million for 2002. Management of the Company believes that, as of December 31,
2003, the allowance for losses on loans was adequate.

A savings institution’s determination as to the classification of its assets and the amount of its valuation
allowances is subject to review by the OTS which can order the establishment of additional general or specific
loss allowances. The OTS, in conjunction with the other federal banking agencies, has adopted an interagency
policy statement on the allowance for loan and lease losses. The policy statement provides guidance for
financial institutions on both the responsibilities of management for the assessment and establishment of
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adequate allowances and guidance for banking agency examiners to use in determining the adequacy of
general valuation guidelines. Generally, the policy statement recommends that:

« institutions have effective systems and controls to identify, monitor and address asset quality problems;

« management has analyzed all significant factors that affect the collectibility of the portfolio in a
reasonable manner; and

« management has established acceptable allowance evaluation processes that meet the objectives set
forth in the policy statement.

The Bank’s policy for establishing loan losses is consistent with the OTS’ policy statement.

The following table sets forth the activity in the Bank’s allowance for losses on loans during the periods
indicated.
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)
Allowance at beginning of period .................. $ 8674 $ 7662 $7,187 $ 5973 $5357
Provision. ....... ..ot i 2,326 1,956 1,150 3,375 675
Charge-offs:
Mortgage loans:
Single-family residential . ............. e (83) (82) (120) (203) (138)
Multi-family residential .................... — (3) — — —
Commercial real estate. . ................... (178) (974) (429)  (2,048) —
Construction and land development ............ (142) (31) (6) (10) —_
Other 10aNS . .........ooovviiieanenna... (357) __ (93) _(300) (18) _ (33)
Total charge-offs . ........... ... ... ..., (760)  (1,183) (855)  (2,279) (171)
Recoveries:
Mortgage loans:
Single-family residential . ................... 49 210 124 64 70
Multi-family residential ............. e — — — 1 —
Commercial real estate..................... 4 24 56 — —
Construction and land development ............ 90 — — 50 —
Otherloans .................... P 70 5 — 3 42
Total TeCOVEriEs . . ..o oot eii et 213 239 180 118 112
Net loans charged-off to allowance for losses »
onloans ...t (547) (944) (675)  (2,161) (59)
Allowance at end of period ............... $10,453 $ 8,674 $7,662 $ 7,187  $5,973
Allowance for losses on loans to total non-performing
loans at end of period .. ............. ... ... ... 46.01% 56.60% 55.23% 60.65% 50.48%
Allowance for losses on loans to total loans at end of
period .. ... 1.06 0.92 0.86 0.71 0.67
Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding ........ 0.06 0.10 0.07 0.22 0.01

Allocation of the Allowance for Losses on Loans. Management of the Bank determines the sufficiency
of the allowance for losses on loans based upon its periodic assessment of the risk elements in its loan portfolio.
Management of Citizens Financial utilizes analytical data as well as anticipated borrower performance in light
of general economic conditions existing in the Bank’s market area.
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The determination of the adequacy of the allowance at December 31, 2003 specifically considered various
factors, including the balance of outstanding loans and the increases in the ratio of commercial real estate,
multi-family residential and construction and land development loans to total loans. These loans were in
excess of 58% of total loans receivable at December 31, 2003. Because of the increase in balances of these
types of loans and the fact that such loans have historically resulted in more losses than single-family
residential mortgage loans, during 2002, management adjusted the manner by which the allowance for losses
on loans is allocated. Previously, various percentages were assigned to loan categories based on management’s
analysis of their relative risks. Beginning in 2002, classified commercial type loans were evaluated and
allocated separately from the general allocation of the entire portfolio.

Management of the Bank will continue to monitor and modify its approach to estimate the allowances for
losses on loans as conditions dictate. While management believes that, based on information currently
available, the Bank’s allowance for losses on loans is sufficient to cover losses inherent in its loan portfolio at
this time, no assurance will be given that the Bank’s level of allowance for losses on loans will be sufficient to
absorb inherent losses in the portfolio or that future adjustments to the allowance for losses on loans will not be
necessary if economic and other conditions differ substantially from those used by management to determine
the current level of the allowance for losses on loans. In addition, the OTS, as an integral part of its
examination process, periodically reviews the Bank’s allowance for losses on loans and may require the Bank to
make additional provisions for estimated loan losses based upon judgments different from those of
management.

The Bank allocates its allowance for losses on loans by loan category. Various percentages are assigned to
the loan categories based on management’s analysis of their relative risks. The allowance for losses on loans
was allocated as follows for the years shown:

December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

Allowance Alowance Allowance Allowance Allowance
Allowance asa%of Allowance asa%of Allowance asa%of Allowance asa%of Allowance asa % of
Allocation  Category  Allocation  Category  Allocation  Category  Allocation  Category  Allocation  Category

(Dollars in thousands)

Residential real estate:

Single-family owner occupied .. $§ 488 0.13% $ 472 0.11% $2,262 0.40% $2,845 0.40% $2,663 0.40%
Single-family non-owner

occupied. . ............. ... 134 0.24 233 0.47 276 0.80 298 0.80 280 0.80
Multi-family .............. .. 2,352 2.31 2,282 2.29 716 1.00 773 1.00 409 1.00
Business/Commercial .......... 5,155 1.48 4,159 1.47 3,067 1.75 2,393 1.75 1,003 1.75

Business/Commercial non-real
estate ... ..ol 1,096 1.71 402 1.41 388 2.50 419 2.50 280 2.50
Developed Lots .. .............. 102 1.04 55 0.75 95 1.25 57 1.25 62 1.25
Land............. ... ... .... 566 1.57 432 1.33 247 1.75 198 1.75 221 1.75
Consumer .................... 447  12.70 277 0.71 48 2.00 73 2.00 73 2.00
Otherassets. .................. 113 — 189 — — — — — — —
Unallocated .. ................. — — 1713 — 563 — _ 131 — 982 —

$10.453 58,674 57,662 $7.187 85973

Securities Activities

General. The Company’s investment policy, which has been established by the Board of Directors, is
designed to prescribe authorized investments and outline the Company’s practices for managing risks involved
with investment securities. The policy emphasizes:

« principal preservation,
+ favorable returns on investment,

o liquidity within designated guidelines,
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» minimal credit risk, and
+ flexibility.

The Company’s investment policy permits investments in various types of securities including obligations
of the U.S. Treasury and federal agencies, investment grade corporate obligations (A rated or better), trust
preferred stocks, other equity securities, commercial paper, certificates of deposit, and federal funds sold to
financial institutions approved by the Board of Directors. In August 2003, the Company hired an independent
third party to provide investment advice to the Company.

The Company currently does not participate in hedging programs, interest rate swaps, or other activities
involving the use of off-balance sheet derivative instruments.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company held $327.8 million of available-for-sale securities which
represented 20.9% of its total assets. The net unrealized gain on the Company’s available-for-sale securities
totaled $1.4 million at such date.

At December 31, 2003, all of the Company’s investment securities were classified as available-for-sale,
and none were classified as held-to-maturity. Securities classified as available-for-sale are carried at fair value.
Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities are recognized as direct increases or decreases in
equity, net of applicable deferred income taxes. Securities which are classified as held-to-maturity are carried
at cost, adjusted for the amortization of premiums and the accretion of discounts using a method which
approximates a level yield.

During the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company sold $15.3 million of its held-to-maturity securities
resulting in gross gains of $1.4 million. Market conditions were deemed optimal for selling these securities and
allowed the Company to reinvest the proceeds into securities with anticipated higher total returns.

In conjunction with the sale of the above held-to-maturity securities, the Company reclassified the
remaining held-to-maturity portfolio totaling $3.2 million to available-for-sale as a reflection of its intent to
hold all investments as available-for-sale. The transfers of these securities to available-for-sale resulted in
$61,000 of additional unrealized gains as of December 31, 2003.
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The following table set forth information regarding the carrying and fair value of the Company’s
securities at the dates indicated.

December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value

(Dollars in thousands)

Available-for-sale:

Agency securities, corporate notes and
commercial paper(1)............. $132,127 $132,819 $ 30,767 § 31,087 $ 33,169 §$ 33,148

Participation certificates and
collateralized mortgage obligations.. 108,468 109,101 64,084 64,768 32,089 33,225

Real estate mortgage investment

conduits. ... 75,245 75,798 231,752 231,870 239,776 242,933
Trust preferred securities............ 4,934 4,667 4931 4,400 4,929 4,395
Equity securities. . ................. 5,657 5,404 4,400 3,577 7,489 7,646
Asset-backed note . .......... .. .. .. — — — —_ 2,026 2,036
Total available-for-sale securities . . . . . $326,431 $327,789 $335,934 $335,702 $319,478 $323,383

Held-to-maturity:
Participation certificates and

collateralized mortgage obligations. . $ — — $ 20,651 § 21,161 $ 28,644 §$ 29,234
Real estate mortgage investment

conduits . ... — — 751 816 8,390 8,510

Total held-to-maturity securities ... § — 3 — $ 21,402 $ 21977 $ 37,034 § 37,744

(1) The majority of the agency securities at December 31, 2002 and December 31, 2001 were callable agency
securities. The Company held no callable agency securities at December 31, 2003.

Debt Securities. The Company’s debt securities consist primarily of agency securities, which amounted
to $127.0 million, and commercial paper, which amounted to $5.8 million, at December 31, 2003. The
Company attempts to maintain a high degree of liquidity in its other securities and generally does not invest in
debt securities with estimated average lives in excess of 10 years.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company does not have any callable agency securities. Prior to 2003, the
Company purchased substantial amounts of callable agency securities, which are U.S. Government agency
debt obligations, generally having a contractual term to maturity of 10 years. These securities may be called
for redemption at predetermined dates (generally every three months) throughout their terms. During 1998
and the first half of 1999, virtually all of the Company’s callable agency securities were called within one year
of purchase. As interest rates rose during the second half of 1999, these agency securities were not called. This
trend continued into 2000, with no securities being called until late in the year, when rates again began to
decline. The trend toward lower interest rates continued for the next three years with 2003 seeing record low
interest rates. As of December 31, 2003, the contractual weighted average life of the Company’s investment
securities was 2.3 years.
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The following table sets forth certain information regarding the maturities and weighted average yield of
the Company’s debt securities.

At December 31, 2003

Weighted
Contractually Carrying Average
Maturing Value Yield
(Dollars in thousands)
ALeNncy SeCurities . ... 1 -5 years $127,031 2.54%
Corporate MOLES. . .o v vttt it 1 -5 years 15 10.00
Commercial PaAper ... ..ovvvti e Under 1 year 5,773 0.58
Trust preferred . ... o Over 10 years 4,667 1.73

Mortgage-Backed Securities. At December 31, 2003, the Company’s mortgage-backed securities
included $184.9 million of mortgage participation certificates, collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs)
and securities which qualified as real estate mortgage investment conduits (REMICs). At December 31,
2003, the unrealized gain on the Company’s mortgage-backed securities available-for-sale amounted to
$791,000 net of deferred income taxes. At December 31, 2003, all of the Company’s mortgage-backed
securities were classified as available-for-sale.

At December 31, 2003, $30.2 million, or 16.3%, of the Company’s mortgage-backed securities portfolio
consisted of adjustable-rate securities, as compared to $39.9 million, or 12.6%, and $28.7 million, or 9.2%, at
December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. :

Participation certificates represent a participation interest in a pool of single-family or multi-family
mortgages. The principal and interest payments on mortgage-backed securities are passed from the mortgage
originators, as servicers, through intermediaries (generally U.S. Government agencies and government-
sponsored enterprises) that pool and repackage the participation interests in the form of securities, to investors
such as the Company. Such U.S. Government agencies and government sponsored enterprises, which
guarantee the payment of principal and, in some cases, interest to investors, primarily include the Federal
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, the Federal National Mortgage Association and the Government
National Mortgage Association.

In contrast to pass-through mortgage-backed securities where cash flow is received pro-rata by all
security holders, the cash flow from the mortgages underlying a CMO is segmented and paid in accordance
with a predetermined priority to investors holding various CMQO classes. By allocating the principal and
interest cash flows from the underlying collateral among the separate CMO classes, different classes of bonds
are created, each with its own stated maturity. CMOs are typically issued by governmental agencies,
government sponsored enterprises and special purpose entities, such as trusts, corporations or partnerships,
established by financial institutions or other similar institutions. REMICs are a form of CMO with particular
attributes under the Internal Revenue Code. At December 31, 2003, $73.2 million of the Company’s REMICs
were issued by government-related entities while $2.6 million were issued by other issuers.

Source of Funds

General. Deposits are the primary source of the Bank’s funds for lending and other investment purposes.
In addition to deposits, the Bank derives funds from loan principal repayments, prepayments, and borrowings.
Loan repayments are historically a relatively stable source of funds, while deposit inflows and outflows are
significantly influenced by general interest rates and money market conditions. The Bank has used borrowings
in the past, primarily Federal Home Loan Bank advances, to supplement its deposits as a source of funds.

Deposits. The Bank’s deposit products include a broad selection of deposit instruments, including
checking accounts, money market accounts, statement and passbook savings accounts, and term certificate
accounts. Deposit account terms may vary with principal differences including: (i) the minimum balance
required; (ii) the time periods the funds must remain on deposit; and (iii) the interest rate paid on the
account.
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The Bank utilizes traditional marketing.methods to attract new customers and deposits, and it does not
advertise for deposits outside of its market area. The Bank does not utilize the services of deposit brokers. The
Bank traditionally has relied on customer service and convenience in marketing its deposit products. In the
past, the Bank has offered certificate of deposit promotions in an effort to increase market share and build
customer relationships. These promotions provided above-market-rate short-term certificates of deposit on
new money deposits to attract new customers. The Bank has implemented an initiative to attract core deposits -
in all markets by offering various limited-time promotions for new deposit accounts. The Bank may continue
to use certificate of deposit promotions in new markets to build its customer base. The Bank experienced a net
increase in deposits before interest credited of $6.2 million in 2003 and a net decrease in deposits of
$14.5 million in 2002. :

The following table sets forth the activity in the Bank’s deposits during the periods indicated.
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
‘ ' ’ (Dollars in thousands)

Beginning balance of deposits ................ ... ... .. $953,861  $945,444  $933,073
Net before interest credited . ............... ...t 6,227 (14,469)  (24,574)
Interest credited . ...... ... ... .. . . . . . . 15,281 22,886 36,945

Net increase in deposits .. ...ttt eriinenenn.. 21,508 8417 12,371

Ending balance of deposits..................... ... ..., 975,369 953,861 945,444
Accrued interest payable ....... .. ... ... L 386 361 504

Total dEPOSIS . ... ... ' $975,755  $954,222  $945,948

- The following table sets forth the amount and remaining maturities of the Bank’s certificates of deposit at
December 31, 2003.

Over Over

One Year Two Years Interest

Through Through Through Over Category

One Year Two Years Three Years  Three Years Totals

(Dollars in thousands)

000% t009%% . ...l $ 4218 § 24 $ - $ 1 $§ 4,243
100% t0 1.99% . .. ..o 187,480 10,103 2,467 8 200,058
200% t0299%. ... 185,984 13,596 5,048 1,554 206,182
300% t03.99% . . . oo 13,921 6,044 2,078 4,753 26,796
400% t04.99%. ... 4,439 903 1,943 9,247 16,532
500% t0 5.99% . ... 5,996 3,219 1,384 2,687 13,286
600% t0699% . ........ . .. ... 16,216 13,685 6,740 1,883 38,524
7.00% t089%% . ... ... 2,901 8,242 488 1,669 13,300
Total ... $421,155  $55,816 $20,148 $21,802 $518,921
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As of December 31, 2003, the aggregate amount of outstanding time certificates of deposit in amounts
greater than or equal to $100,000 was $133.2 million. The following table presents the maturity of these time
certificates of deposit.

December 31, 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

3 months Or 1SS . . .o e $ 44,859
Over 3 months through 6 months ........ ... ... ... 46,885
Over 6 months through 12 months ........... ... ... ... ... ... ..., 14,468
Over 12 months .. ..o 27,003

$133,215

The following table sets forth the dollar amount of deposits and the percentage of total deposits in various
types of deposits offered by the Bank at the dates indicated.
December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
(Dollars in thousands)
Savings accounts............... $204,621 20.98% $212,370 22.27%  $203,165 21.49%
Certificates of deposit .......... 518,921 53.20 497,575 52.16% 544,387 57.63%
Money market accounts......... 123,851 12.70 121,693 12.76% 89,205 9.44%
Checking accounts: '
Non interest-bearing ......... 36,358 3.73 31,318 3.28% 26,970 2.85%
Interest-bearing.............. 91,618 9.39 90,905 9.53% 81,217 8.59%
Subtotal . ................. 975,369 100.00% 953,861 100.00% 945,444 100.00%
Accrued interest payable . ....... 386 361 504
Total deposits . .............. $975,755 $954,222 $945,948
Borrowings

Although deposits are the Bank’s primary source of funds, the Bank’s policy has been to utilize
borrowings, such as advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB). The advances from the FHLB of
Indianapolis are secured by capital stock of the FHLB of Indianapolis, a blanket pledge of certain of the
Bank’s mortgage loans, investment securities, and mortgage-backed securities and the FHLB of Indianapolis
time deposits. The advances from the FHLB of Chicago are secured by stock in the FHLB of Chicago, FHLB
corporate notes and certain mortgage-backed securities. These advances are made in accordance with several
different credit programs, each of which has its own interest rate and range of maturities.

Of the total advances, $400 million are fixed-rate advances with an original scheduled maturity in 2010,
putable quarterly at the discretion of the FHLB of Indianapolis. At inception, the Bank received a lower cost
of borrowing on this type of advance than on similar termed non-putable advances in return for granting the
FHLB of Indianapolis the option to put the advances prior to their final maturity. If put, the FHLB of
Indianapolis will provide replacement funding at the then prevailing market rate of interest subject to standard
terms and conditions.

The $6.5 million advances from the FHLB of Chicago are fixed-rate advances that have a contractual
maturity in 2008. These advances are currently callable at the discretion of the FHLB of Chicago. If the
advances are called, the advances can either be paid off or converted to a new advance at the then prevailing
market rate of interest.
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The Bank also has $12.0 million of fixed-rate advances from the FHLB of Indianapolis which are
amortizing advances over the scheduled maturity dates ranging from 2014 to 2019.

All of the advances from FHLB of Indianapolis have prepayment penalties which are calculated based on
the present value of the future cash flows of the advances. Given the low interest rate environment at
December 31, 2003 and the relatively high interest rates on the advances, the penalty to prepay these advances
was estimated to be $54.7 million. The Bank’s Asset/Liability Committee regularly monitors the prepayment
penalty associated with these advances.

A summary of the Company’s borrowed funds at December 31, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:
. December 31,

2003 2002
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Rate Amount Rate Amount

{Dollars in thousands)
Secured advances from FHLB — Indianapolis:

Maturing in 2003 — fixed-rate . ...................... —% % — 522% $ 30,748
Maturing in 2010 — fixed-rate ....................... 5.92 400,000 5.92 400,000
Maturing in 2014 — fixed-rate .. ............... .. .... 6.71 1,244 6.71 1,259
Maturing in 2018 — fixed-rate .. ..................... 5.54 2,911 5.54 2,954
Maturing in 2019 — fixed-rate . ...................... 6.32 7,835 6.32 7,970
Secured advances from FHLB — Chicago: -
Maturing in 2008 — fixed-rate ................. . ..... 5.26 6,500 5.26 6,500
$418,490 $449,431
Weighted-average interest rate . . .............. R 5.92% 5.87%

Trust Activities

The Company also provides fiduciary services as a secondary line of business through the Bank’s Trust
Department for convenience to its existing customers. Services offered include fiduciary services for trusts and
estates and land trusts. As of December 31, 2003, the Trust Department maintained 20 trust/fiduciary
accounts with an aggregate principal balance of $2.7 million at such date. The Trust Department also
administered 73 beneficiary-managed land trusts during 2003. Gross revenue from the Trust Department for
the year ended December 31, 2003 was $16,000.

The accounts maintained by the Trust Department consist of “managed” and “non-managed” accounts.
Managed accounts are those accounts under custody for which the Bank has responsibility for administration
and investment management and/or investment advice. Non-managed accounts are those accounts for which
the Bank merely acts as a custodian. The Company receives fees dependent upon the level and type of service
provided. The Trust Department administers various trust accounts (revocable and irrevocable trusts, and
trusts under wills), estates and guardianships. Executive management of the department is provided by the
Bank’s Vice President — Corporate Counsel, subject to direction by the Trust Committee.

Subsidiaries

Prior to 2003, the Bank had three active, wholly-owned subsidiaries, CFS Holdings, Ltd., CFS Insurance
Agency, Inc. and CFS Investment Services, Inc. In 2002, the Bank sold the assets of the insurance agency and
began outsourcing the investment services operation. At the end of 2003, Citizens Financial had one active
wholly-owned subsidiary.

CFS Holdings, Ltd. (CFS Holdings) was approved by the OTS in January 2001 and was funded and
began operations in June 2001. CFS Holdings is located in Hamilton, Bermuda. It was funded with
approximately $140.0 million of the Bank’s investments and performs a significant amount of the Bank’s
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investment securities and mortgage-backed securities investing activities. Certain of these activities are
performed by a resident agent in Hamilton in accordance with the operating procedures and investment policy
established for CFS Holdings by the Bank. Revenues of CFS Holdings were $3.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 compared to $5.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Operating expenses of
this operation were $58,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to $61,000 for the prior year
period.

CES Insurance Agency, Inc. (CFS Insurance) was an independent insurance brokerage subsidiary
which offered a full line of insurance products to the general public. CFS Insurance operated out of the Bank’s
Insurance/Investment Center in Munster, Indiana. The Bank has owned CFS Insurance since 1972. Effective
November 30, 2002 the Bank sold the assets of this agency and entered into a five year lease, with the
purchaser, for the building from which the agency conducted its operations. Pre-tax profit on the sale of these
assets was approximately $1.1 million in 2002. CFS Insurance was marginally profitable in 2002 and less than
profitable in 2001 with revenues totaling $1.3 million and $1.1 million, respectively, and operating expenses
equal to $1.2 million and $1.2 million, respectively. This subsidiary is no longer active.

CES Investment Services, Inc. (CFS Investments) was primarily involved in the sale of mutual funds
and other securities to members of the general public in the Bank’s primary market area. CFS Investments
commenced full service securities brokerage activities in 1994. During August 2002, the Bank entered into an
agreement to outsource this activity with the Independent Financial Marketing Group (IFMG) and
discontinued providing these services directly through CFS Investment Services. As a result of this
outsourcing, the Company was able to significantly reduce the operating expenses associated with maintaining
CFS Investments while still being able to generate commission revenue through IFMG. The type of
investment products also switched from mutual funds to predominantly tax deferred annuities through this
outsourcing arrangement. CFS Investments had total commission revenue of $651,000, $770,000 and
$873,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. CFS Investments had total
operating expenses of $56,000, $948,000 and $1.1 million in each of the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively. Effective January 1, 2004, this subsidiary is no longer active and the commissions
earned from the outsourced relationship will be recognized by the Bank going forward.

Employees

Citizens Financial had 324 full-time equivalent employees at December 31, 2003. None of these
employees is represented by a collective bargaining agent, and the Bank believes that it enjoys good relations
with its personnel.

REGULATION
Regulation of Savings and Loan Holding Companies

The Company is a registered savings and loan holding company. The Home Owners’ Loan Act (HOLA),
as amended, and OTS regulations generally prohibit a savings and loan holding company, without prior OTS
approval, from acquiring, directly or indirectly, the ownership or control of any other savings association or
savings and loan holding company, or all, or substantially all, of the assets or more than 5% of the voting shares
thereof. These provisions also prohibit, among other things, any director or officer of a savings and loan holding
company, or any individual who owns or controls more than 25% of the voting shares of such holding company,
from acquiring control of any savings association not a subsidiary of such savings and loan holding company,
unless the acquisition is approved by the OTS.

Holding Company Activities. The Company currently operates as a unitary savings and loan holding
company. Generally, there are limited restrictions on the activities of a unitary savings and loan.holding
company and its non-savings association subsidiaries. If the Company ceases to be a unitary savings and loan
holding company, the activities of the Company and its non-savings association subsidiaries would thereafter
be subject to substantial restrictions. ‘
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The HOLA requires every savings association subsidiary of a savings and loan holding company to give
the OTS at least 30 days advance notice of any proposed dividends to be made on its guarantee, permanent or
other non-withdrawable stock, or else such dividend will be invalid.

Affiliate Restrictions. Transactions between a savings association and its “affiliates” are subject to
quantitative and qualitative restrictions under Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act. Affiliates of a
savings association include, among other entities, the savings association’s holding company and companies
that are under common control with the savings association.

In general, Sections 23A and 23B and OTS regulations issued in connection therewith limit the extent to
which a savings association or its subsidiaries may engage in certain “covered transactions” with affiliates to an
amount equal to 10% of the association’s capital and surplus, in the case of covered transactions with any one
affiliate, and to an amount equal to 20% of such capital and surplus, in the case of covered transactions with all
affiliates. In addition, a savings association and its subsidiaries may engage in covered transactions and certain
other transactions only on terms dand undér circumstances that are substantially the same, or at least as
favorable to the savings association or its subsidiary, as those prevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with nonaffiliated companies. A “covered transaction” is defined to include a loan or extension of
credit to an affiliate; a purchase of investment securities issued by an affiliate; a purchase of assets from an
affiliate, with certain exceptions; the acceptance of securities issued by an affiliate as collateral for a loan or

extension of credit to any party; or the issuance of a guarantee, acceptance or letter of credit on behalf of an
affiliate.

In addition, under OTS regulations, a savings association may not make a loan or extension of credit to an
affiliate unless the affiliate is engaged only in activities permissible for bank holding companies; a savings
association may not purchase or invest in securities of an affiliate other than shares of a subsidiary; a savings
association and its subsidiaries may not purchase a low-quality asset from an affiliate; and covered transactions
and certain other transactions between a savings association or its subsidiaries and an affiliate must be on
terms and conditions that are consistent with safe and sound banking practices. With certain exceptions, each
loan or extension of credit by a savings association to an affiliate must be secured by collateral with a market
value ranging from 100% to 130% (depending on the type of collateral) of the amount of the loan or extension
of credit.

The OTS regulation generally excludes all non-bank and non-savings association subsidiaries of savings
associations from treatment as affiliates, except to the extent that the OTS or the Federal Reserve Board
decides to treat such subsidiaries as affiliates. The regulation also requires savings associations to make and
retain records that reflect affiliate transactions in reasonable detail and provides that certain classes of savings
associations may be required to give the OTS prior notice of transactions with affiliates.

Financial Modernization. Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act enacted into law on November 12,
1999, no company may acquire control of a savings and loan holding company after May 4, 1999, unless the
company is engaged only in activities traditionally permitted for a multiple savings and loan holding company
or newly permitted for a financial holding company under Section 4 (k) of the Bank Holding Company Act.
Existing savings and loan holding companies, such as the Company, and those formed pursuant to an
application filed with the OTS before May 4, 1999, may engage in any activity including non-financial or
commercial activities provided such companies control only one savings and loan association that meets the
Qualified Thrift Lender test. Corporate reorganizations are permitted, but the transfer of grandfathered
unitary holding company status through acquisition is not permitted.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (Act) implemented legislative reforms
intended to address corporate and accounting fraud. In addition to the establishment of a new accounting
oversight board which will enforce auditing, quality control and independence standards and will be funded by
fees from all publicly traded companies, the bill restricts provision of both auditing and consulting services by
accounting firms. To ensure auditor independence, any non-audit services being provided to an audit client
require pre-approval by the company’s audit committee members. In addition, the audit partners must be
rotated. The bill requires the principal chief executive officer and the principal chief financial officer to certify
to the accuracy of periodic reports filed with the SEC, subject to civil and criminal penalties if they knowingly
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or willfully violate this certification requirement. In addition, under the Act, counsel are required to report
evidence of a material violation of the securities laws or a breach of fiduciary duty by a company to its chief
executive officer or its chief legal officer, and, if such officer does not appropriately respond, to report such
evidence to the audit committee or other similar committee of the Board of Directors or the Board itself.

The Act extended the period during which certain types of suits can be brought against a company or its
officers and provides for disgorgement of bonuses issued to top executives prior to restatement of a company’s
financial statements if such restatement was due to corporate misconduct and a range of enhanced penalties
for corporate executives who are guilty of fraud or other violations. Executives are also prohibited from insider
trading during retirement plan “blackout” periods, and loans to company executives are restricted. In addition,
a provision directs that civil penalties levied by the SEC as a result of any judicial or administrative action
under the Act be deposited to a fund for the benefit of harmed investors. The Federal Accounts for Investor
Restitution (FAIR) provision also requires the SEC to develop methods of improving collection rates. The
legislation accelerates the time frame for disclosures by public companies, as they must immediately disclose
any material changes in their financial condition or operations. Directors and executive officers must also
provide information for most changes in ownership in a company’s securities within two business days of the

change.

The Act also increases the oversight of, and codifies certain requirements relating to audit committees of
public companies and how they interact with the company’s registered public accounting firm (RPAF). Audit
committee members must be independent and are barred from accepting consulting, advisory or other
compensatory fees from the issuer. In addition, companies must disclose whether at least one member of the
committee is a “financial expert” as defined by the SEC and if not, why not. Under the Act, a RPAF is
prohibited from performing statutorily mandated audit services for a company if such company’s chief
executive officer, chief financial officer, comptroller, chief accounting officer or any person serving in
equivalent positions has been employed by such firm and participated in the audit of such company during the
one-year period preceding the audit initiation date. The Act also prohibits any officer or director of a company
or any other person acting under their direction from taking any action to fraudulently influence, coerce,
manipulate or mislead any independent public or certified accountant engaged in the audit of the company’s
financial statements for the purpose of rendering the financial statement’s materially misleading. The Act also
requires the SEC to prescribe rules requiring inclusion of an internal control report and assessment by
management in the annual report to shareholders. The Act requires the RPAF that issues the audit report to
attest to and report on management’s assessment of the company’s internal controls. In addition, the Act
requires that each financial report required to be prepared in accordance with (or reconciled to) generally
accepted accounting principles and filed with the SEC reflect all material correcting adjustments that are
identified by a RPAF in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and the rules and
regulations of the SEC.

Regulation of Federal Savings Banks

As a federally insured savings bank, lending activities and other investments of the Bank must comply
with various statutory and regulatory requirements. The Bank is regularly examined by the OTS and must file
periodic reports concerning its activities and financial condition.

Although the OTS is the Bank’s primary regulator, the FDIC has “backup enforcement authority” over
the Bank. The Bank’s eligible deposit accounts are insured by the FDIC under the SAIF, up to applicable
limits.

Federal Home Loan Banks. The Bank is a member of the FHLB System. Among other benefits, FHLB
membership provides the Bank with a central credit facility. The Bank is required to own capital stock in a
FHLB in an amount equal to at least 1% of its aggregate unpaid single-family and multi-family residential
mortgage loans, home purchase contracts and similar obligations at the beginning of each calendar year or 5%
of its advances from the FHLB, whichever is greater.

Regulatory Capital Requirements. OTS capital regulations require savings banks to satisfy minimum
capital standards: risk-based capital requirements, a leverage requirement, and a tangible capital requirement.
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Savings banks must meet each of these standards in order to be deemed in compliance with OTS capital
requirements. In addition, the OTS may require a savings association to maintain capital above the minimum
capital levels.

All savings banks are required to meet a minimum risk-based capital requirement of total capital (core
capital plus supplementary capital) equal to 8% of risk-weighted assets (which includes the credit risk
equivalents of certain off-balance sheet items). In calculating total capital for purposes of the risk-based
requirement, supplementary capital may not exceed 100% of core capital. Under the leverage requirement, a
savings bank is required to maintain core capital equal to a minimum of 3% of adjusted total assets. In
addition, under the prompt corrective action provisions of the OTS regulations, all but the most highly-rated
institutions must maintain a minimum leverage ratio of 4% in order to be adequately capitalized. A savings
bank 1is also required to maintain tangible capital in an amount at least equal to 1.5% of its adjusted total
assets.

These capital requirements are viewed as minimum standards by the OTS, and most institutions are
expected to maintain capital levels well above the minimum. In addition, the OTS regulations provide that
minimum capital levels higher than those provided in the regulations may be established by the OTS for
individual savings associations, upon a determination that the savings association’s capital is or may become
inadequate in view of its circumstances. The OTS regulations provide that higher individual minimum
regulatory capital requirements may be appropriate in circumstances where, among others: (i) a savings
association has a high degree of exposure to interest rate risk, prepayment risk, credit risk, concentration of
credit risk; certain risks arising from nontraditional activities, or similar risks of a high proportion of off-
balance sheet risk; (ii) a savings association is growing, either internally or through acquisitions, at such a rate
that supervisory problems are presented and are not managed adequately under OTS regulations; and (iii) a
savings association may be adversely affected by activities or condition of its holding company, affiliates,
subsidiaries or other persons or savings associations with which it has significant business relationships. The
Bank is not subject to any such individual minimum regulatory capital requirement.

The Bank’s tangible and core capital ratios were 8.46%, and its total risk-based capital ratio was 13.04% at
December 31, 2003. At such date, the Bank met the capital requirements of a “‘well-capitalized” institution
under applicable OTS regulations.

Certain Consequences of Failure to Comply with Regulatory Capital Reguirements. Any savings bank
not in compliance with all of its capital requirements is required to submit a capital plan that addresses the
bank’s need for additional capital and meets certain additional requirements. While the capital plan is being
reviewed by the OTS, the savings bank must certify, among other things, that it will not, without the approval
of its appropriate OTS Regional Director, grow beyond net interest credited or make capital distributions. If a
savings bank’s capital plan is not approved, the bank will become subject to additional growth and other
restrictions. In addition, the OTS, through a capital directive or otherwise, may restrict the ability of a savings
bank not in compliance with the capital requirements to pay dividends and compensation, and may require
such a bank to take one or more of certain corrective actions, including, without limitation: (i) increasing its
capital to specified levels, (ii) reducing the rate of interest that may be paid on savings accounts, (iii) limiting
receipt of deposits to those made to existing accounts, (iv) ceasing issuance of new accounts of any or all
classes or categories except in exchange for existing accounts, (v) ceasing or limiting the purchase of loans or
the making of other specified investments, and (vi) limiting operational expenditures to specified levels.
Noncompliance with the standards established by the OTS or other regulators may also constitute grounds for
other enforcement action by the federal banking regulators, including cease and desist orders and civil
monetary penalty assessments.

The HOLA permits savings, banks not in compliance with the OTS capital standards to seek an
exemption from certain penalties or sanctions for noncompliance. Such an exemption will be granted only if
certain strict requirements are met and must be denied under certain circumstances. If an exemption is
granted by the OTS, the savings bank still may be subject to enforcement actions for other violations of law or
unsafe or unsound practices or conditions.
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Prompt Corrective Action. The prompt corrective action regulation of the OTS, promulgated under the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991, requires certain mandatory actions and
authorizes certain other discretionary actions to be taken by the OTS against a savings bank that falls within
certain undercapitalized capital categories specified in the regulation. The regulation establishes five categories
of capital classification: “well-capitalized,” “‘adequately capitalized,” “undercapitalized,” “significantly under-
capitalized” and “critically undercapitalized.” Urider the regulation, the ratio of total capital to risk-weighted
assets, core capital to risk-weighted assets and the leverage ratio are used to determine an institution’s capital
classification. At December 31, 2003, the Bank met the capital requirements of a “well-capitalized” institution
under applicable OTS regulations.

Capital Distribution Regulation. In January 1999, the OTS amended its capital distribution regulation
to bring such regulations into greater conformity with the other bank regulatory agencies. Specifically, savings
associations that would be well-capitalized following a capital distribution are not subject to any requirement
for notice or application unless the total amount of all capital distributions, including any proposed capital
distribution, for the applicable calendar year would exceed an amount equal to the savings bank’s net income
for that year to date plus the savings bank’s retained net income for the preceding two years. However, because
the Bank is a subsidiary of a savings and loan holding company, the Bank is required to give the OTS at least
30 days notice prior to any capital distribution to the Company.

Qualified Thrift Lender Test. In general, savings associations are required to maintain at least 65% of
their portfolio assets in certain qualified thrift investments (which consist primarily of loans and other
investments related to residential real estate and certain other assets). A savings association that fails the
qualified thrift lender test is subject to substantial restrictions on activities and to other significant penalties. A
savings association may qualify as a qualified thrift lender not only by maintaining 65% of portfolio assets in
qualified thrift investments but also, in the alternative, by qualifying under the Internal Revenue Code as a
“domestic building and loan association.” The Bank is a domestic building and loan association as defined in
the Code.

FDIC Assessments. The deposits of the Bank are insured to the maximum extent permitted by the
SAIF, which is administered by the FDIC, and are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S.
Government. As insurer, the FDIC is authorized to conduct examinations of, and to require reporting by,
FDIC-insured institutions. It also may prohibit any FDIC-insured institution from engaging in any activity the
FDIC determines by regulation or order to pose a serious threat to the FDIC. The FDIC also has the authority
to initiate enforcement actions against savings institutions, after giving the OTS an opportunity to take such
action.

Under FDIC regulations, institutions are assigned to one of three capital groups for insurance premium
purposes — “‘well-capitalized,” “‘adequately capitalized” and “undercapitalized” — which are defined in the
same manner as the regulations establishing the prompt corrective action system, as discussed above. These
three groups are then divided into subgroups which are based on supervisory evaluations by the institution’s
primary federal regulator, resulting in nine assessment classifications. Effective January 1, 1997, assessment
rates for both SAIF-insured institutions and BIF-insured institutions ranged from 0% of insured deposits for
well-capitalized institutions with minor supervisory concerns to 0.27% of insured deposits for undercapitalized
institutions with substantial supervisory concerns. The Bank’s deposit insurance premiums totaled $154,000, or
0.016%, of its insured deposits for the year ended December 31, 2003.

The FDIC may terminate the deposit insurance of any insured depository institution, including the Bank,
if it determines after a hearing that the institution has engaged or is engaging in unsafe or unsound practices, is
in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations, or has violated any applicable law, regulation, order
or any condition imposed by an agreement with the FDIC. It also may suspend deposit insurance temporarily
during the hearing process for the permanent termination of insurance, if the institution has no tangible
capital. If insurance of accounts is terminated, the accounts at the institution at the time of the termination,
less subsequent withdrawals, shall continue to be insured for a period of six months to two years, as determined
by the FDIC. There are no pending proceedings to terminate the deposit insurance of the Bank.
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Community Reinvestment Act and the Fair Lending Laws. Savings institutions have a responsibility
under the Community Reinvestment Act (CRA) and related regulations of the OTS to help meet the credit
needs of their communities, including low and moderate-income neighborhoods. In addition, the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act (together, Fair Lending Laws) prohibit lenders from discriminat-
ing in their lending practices on the basis of characteristics specified in those statutes. An institution’s failure
to comply with the provisions of CRA could, at a minimum, result in regulatory restrictions on its activities,
and failure to comply with the Fair Lending Laws could result in enforcement actions by the OTS, as well as
other federal regulatory agencies and the Department of Justice. The Bank received a satisfactory rating
during its latest CRA examination in 2003.

Safety and Soundness Guidelines. The OTS and the other federal banking agencies have established
guidelines for safety and soundness, addressing operational and managerial, as well as compensation matters
for insured financial institutions. Institutions failing to meet these standards are required to submit compliance
plans to their appropriate federal regulators. The OTS and the other agencies have also established guidelines
regarding asset quality and earnings standards for insured institutions.

Change of Control. Subject to certain limited exceptions, no company can acquire control of a savings
association without the prior approval of the OTS, and no individual may acquire control of a savings
association if the OTS objects. Any company that acquires control of a savings association becomes a savings
and loan holding company subject to extensive registration, examination and regulation by the OTS.
Conclusive control exists, among other ways, when an acquiring party acquires more than 25% of any class of
voting stock of a savings association or savings and loan holding company, or controls in any manner the
election of a majority of the directors of the company. In addition, a rebuttable presumption of control exists
if, among other things, a person acquires more than 10% of any class of a savings association or savings and
loan holding company’s voting stock (or 25% of any class of stock) and, in either case, any of certain
additional control factors exist. :

Companies subject to the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, that acquire or own savings
associations are no longer defined as savings and loan holding companies under the HOLA and, therefore, are
not generally subject to supervision and regulation by the OTS. OTS approval is no longer required for a bank
holding company to acquire control of a savings association, although the OTS has a consultative role with the
FRB in examination, enforcement and acquisition matters. '

TAXATION

Federal Taxation

General. The Company and the Bank are subject to federal income taxation in the same general
manner as other corporations with some exceptions discussed below. The following discussion of federal
taxation is intended only to summarize certain pertinent federal income tax matters and is not a comprehen-
sive description of the tax rules applicable to the Bank:. The Bank’s federal income tax returns have been
closed without audit by the IRS through 1996,

The Company files consolidated tax returns with the Bank. Accordingly, it is anticipated that any cash
distributions made by the Company to its stockholders will be treated as cash dividends and not as a non-
taxable return of capital to stockholders for federal and state tax purposes.

Method of Accounting. For federal income tax purposes, the Bank reports its income and expenses on
the accrual method of accounting and uses a tax year ending December 31 for filing its consolidated federal
income tax returns. The Small Business Protection Act of 1996 (1996 Act) eliminated the use of the reserve

method of accounting for bad debts by large savings institutions, effective for taxable years beginning after
1995.

Bad Debt Reserves. Prior to the 1996 Act, the Bank was permitted to establish a reserve for bad debts
and to make annual additions to the reserve. These additions could, within specified formula limits, be
deducted in arriving at taxable income. As a result of the 1996 Act, large savings associations must use the
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specific charge-off method in computing their bad debt deduction beginning with their 1996 federal tax return.
In addition, the federal legislation requires the recapture (over a six year period with a deferral of one or two
years if certain requirements were met) of the excess of tax bad debt reserves at December 31, 1995 over those
established as of December 31, 1987. As of December 31, 2003, the Bank’s bad debt reserve was fully
recaptured.

Taxable Distributions and Recapture. Prior to the 1996 Act, bad debt reserves created prior to
January 1, 1988 were subject to recapture into taxable income if the Bank failed to meet certain thrift asset
and definitional tests, made certain excess distributions to, or redemption of, shareholders, or changed to a
bank charter. Under current law, pre-1988 reserves are subject to recapture only if the Bank makes certain
non-dividend distributions or redemptions or ceases to maintain a bank charter.

At December 31, 2003, the total federal pre-1988 reserve was approximately $12.5 million for the Bank.
This reserve reflects the cumulative effects of federal tax deductions by the Bank for which no federal income
tax provision has been made.

Minimum Tax. The Code imposes a minimum tax at a rate of 20% on a base of regular taxable income
plus certain tax adjustments and preferences (alternative minimum taxable income or AMTI). The minimum
tax is payable to the extent such tax is in excess of the regular tax. This excess is the alternative minimum tax
(AMT). Net operating losses can offset no more than 90% of AMTI. Payments of AMT may be used as
credits against regular tax liabilities in future years subject to certain limitations. The Bank has not been
subject to the AMT, nor does it have any such amounts available as credits for carryover.

Corporate Dividends-Received Deduction. The Company may exclude from its income 100% of
dividends received from the Bank as a member of the same affiliated group of corporations. The corporate
dividends-received deduction is 80% in the case of dividends received from corporations, the stock of which
the corporate recipient owns 20% or more but generally less than 80%, and corporations which own less than
20% of the stock of a corporation distributing a dividend may deduct only 70% of dividends received or
accrued on their behalf,

State and Local Taxation

Indiana State Taxation. The Company and the Bank are subject to an 8.5% franchise tax, imposed by
the State of Indiana, on the net income of financial (including thrift) institutions, exempting them from the
current gross income, supplemental net income and intangible taxes. Net income for franchise tax purposes is
federal taxable income before net operating loss deductions and special deductions, adjusted for certain items,
including Indiana income taxes, property taxes, charitable contributions, tax-exempt interest and bad debts.
Other applicable Indiana taxes include sales, use and property taxes. Beginning in 1999, the Company and the
Bank can apportion income outside of Indiana.

Illinois State Taxation. For Illinois income tax purposes, the Company and the Bank are taxed at a rate
of 7.3% of Illinois taxable income. For these purposes, “Illinois Taxable Income” generally means federal
taxable income, subject to certain adjustments (including the addition of interest income on state and
municipal obligations and the exclusion of interest income on United States Treasury obligations) and
apportionment. The exclusion of income on United States Treasury obligations has the effect of reducing the
[llinois taxable income of the Bank.

Delaware State Taxation. As a Delaware corporation not earning income in Delaware, the Company is
exempt from Delaware corporate income tax but is required to file an annual report with and pay an annual
franchise tax to the State of Delaware. The tax is imposed as a percentage of the capital base of the Company
with an annual maximum of $165,000.
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Item 2. Properties

Offices and Properties

The following table sets forth certain information relating to Citizens Financial’s offices at December 31,
2003. In addition, the Bank maintains 28 automated teller machin

Bank’s branch offices.

es (ATMs), with 26 of such ATMs at the

Net Book Value of

Lease Property and Leasehold

Owned or Expiration Improvements at Deposits at

Location Leased Date December 31, 2003 December 31, 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

Executive Office:
707 Ridge Road .
Munster, IN 46321 .................... Owned — $2,698 $143,311
Branch Offices:
5311 Hohman Avenue
Hammond, IN 46320 .................. Owned —_ 318 86,889
155 N. Main Street
Crown Point, IN 46307 ................ Owned — 302 89,244
1720 45th Street
Munster, IN 46321 .................... Owned —_ 551 109,644
4740 Indianapolis Blvd .
East Chicago, IN46312................ Owned — 223 44,457
2121 E. Columbus Drive(1) ‘
East Chicago, IN 46312................ Leased 2008 345 25,896
803 W. 57th Avenue ‘
Merrillville, IN 46410.................. Leased” 2006 — 28,230
855 Thornapple Way
Valparaiso, IN 46383 .................. Owned — 283 41,765
3853 45th Street ’
Highland, IN 46322 ................... Owned —_— 847 25,281
10644 S. Cicero Avenue
Qak Lawn, IL 60453 . ................. Leased 2005 10 20,132
9161 W. 151st Street
Orland Park, IL 60462 .. ............... Leased 2005 20 46,522
3301 W. Vollmer Road ‘
Flossmoor, IL 60422 ................... Leased 2007 75 55,136
154th Street at Broadway ‘
Harvey, IL 60426 ..................... Leased 2006 163 32,768
13323 S. Baltimore
Chicago, IL 60426 .................... Owned _ 217 30,399
601 E. 162nd Street .
South Holland, 11. 60473 . .............. Owned —_— - 230 62,799
7101 W, 127th Street C
Palos Heights, IL 60463 ................ Owned —_— 201 54,889
425 E. 170th Street(2) :
South Holland, IL 60473 ......... e Owned — 286 S —

(Table continued on next page)
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Net Book Value of

Lease Property and Leasehold
Owned or Expiration Improvements at Deposits at
Location Leased Date December 31, 2003 December 31, 2003

(Dollars in thousands)

1218 Sheffield Avenue(l)

Dyer, IN46311 ......ovviiiiin e, Leased 2004 $ — $ 20,841
7229 S. Kingery Highway :

Willowbrook, IL 60527 ................. Leased 2007 59 21,226
7650 Harvest Drive(3)

Schererville, IN 46375 ................. Owned — 1,849 18,583
2547 Plainfield/Naperville Road

Naperville, IL 60564 . .................. Leased 2006 151 7,322
310 S. Weber Road

Bolingbrook, IL 60490 ................. Owned — 1,179 8,635
1100 East Joliet Street(4)

Dyer, IN 46311 ......... ..ot Leased 2008 - — —

Other Properties:
1730 45th Street(5)

Munster, IN 46321 .................... Owned — 983 —
8149 Kennedy Avenue(6)
Highland, IN 46322 ................... Leased 2006 87 1,786
108660 State Route 83(7)

Willowbrook, IL 60527 ................. Leased 2004 — —

(1) Full service branch facility located in a local grocery store chain.

(2) Deposits included with office located at 162nd Street.

(3) Includes 3,570 square feet of space currently under lease to third party.
(4) Scheduled to open May 2004.

(5) Former site of Insurance and Investment Center currently under a five year lease (expiring in 2008) with
purchaser of insurance agency assets as lessor.

(6) Operations Center.

(7) Former branch location, currently leased on a monthly basis as an ATM site.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Legal Proceedings

In 1983, with the assistance of the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation (FSLIC) as set
forth in an assistance agreement (Assistance Agreement), the Bank acquired First Federal Savings and Loan
Association of East Chicago, East Chicago, Indiana (East Chicago Savings), and Gary Federal Savings and
Loan Association, Gary, Indiana (Gary Federal). The FSLIC-assisted supervisory acquisitions of East
Chicago Savings and Gary Federal were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting which
resulted in supervisory goodwill (the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired), an intangible
asset, of $52.9 million, compared to $40.2 million of goodwill as reported on a generally accepted accounting
principles basis. Such goodwill was included in the Bank’s regulatory capital. The Assistance Agreement
relating to the Bank’s acquisitions of East Chicago Savings and Gary Federal provided for the inclusion of
supervisory goodwill as an asset on the Bank’s balance sheet, to be amortized over 35 years for regulatory
purposes and includable in regulatory capital. Pursuant to the regulations adopted by the OTS to implement
the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 (FIRREA), the regulatory capital
requirement for federal savings banks was increased and the amount of supervisory goodwill that could be
included in regulatory capital decreased significantly. At September 30, 1989, the Bank had approximately
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$26.0 million of remaining supervisory goodwill. However, even excluding supervisory goodwill, the Bank
exceeded the capital requirements of FIRREA at such date.

On May 13, 1993, the Bank filed suit against the U.S. government seeking damages and/or other
appropriate relief on the grounds, among others, that the government had breached the terms of the
Assistance Agreement, The suit is pending in the United States Court of Federal Claims and is titled Citizens
Financial Services, FSB, v. United States (Case No. 93-306-C). The Bank was granted summary judgment on
its breach of contract claim, leaving for trial the issue of damages. The case is currently scheduled for trial in
June 2004.

The Bank is seeking damages of more than $20.0 million based on the report of its expert witness. The
Government has contended that the Bank suffered no compensable damage as a result of the breach. The
Bank is unable to predict the outcome of its claim against the United States and the amount of damages that
may be awarded to the Bank, if any, in the event that a judgment is rendered in the Bank’s favor.
Consequently, no assurances can be given as to the results of this claim or the timing of any proceedings in
relation thereto. The cost, including attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees and related expenses, of the litigation was
approximately $183,000, $258,000 and $436,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Other than the above-referenced litigation, the Company is involved in routine legal proceedings

occurring in the ordinary course of business, which, in the aggregate, are believed to be immaterial to the
financial condition of the Company.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

PART IL

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

The Company’s common stock is traded on the NASDAQ market System under the symbol “CITZ”. As
of December 31, 2003, there were 12,200,015 shares of common stock outstanding which was held by 2,373
stockholders of record. The following table sets forth the quarterly share price and dividends paid per share
during each quarter ‘of 2003 and 2002.

Share Price Dividend

2002 High Low Paid
First QUarter .. ...ttt $14.35 $13.34  $0.09
Second Quarter.......... .. 15.46 13.43 0.10
Third QUarter . ...t i 14.70 13.42 0.10
Fourth Quarter . ... ... 14.95 13.05 0.10
w

First Quarter ... ... o $14.39 $13.51 $0.10
Second Quarter . .. ... .. . 15.00 13.69 0.11
Third Quarter ... 14.98 13.84 0.11
Fourth Quarter ... ... .. 15.00 13.90 0.11
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)

Selected Financial Condition Data:

Total assets . ...........coviinn.. $1,569,428  $1,584,762 © $1,604,134  $1,710,376  $1,649,535
Loans receivable, net.............. 971,541 930,348 883,352 998,727 882,676
Securities, available-for-sale ........ 327,789 335,702 323,383 313,383 331,749
Securities, held-to-maturity ........ — 21,402 37,034 249,641 277,803
Deposits. . covv it 975,755 954,222 945,948 934,012 925,047
Borrowed money .......... AP 418,490 449,431 462,658 548,076 494,699
Stockholders’ equity............... 155,953 160,662 171,284 199,368 205,433
Non-performing assets to total assets 1.46% 1.02% 0.94% 0.75% 0.75%
Stockholders’ equity to total assets .. 9.94 10.14 10.68 11.66 12.45
Stockholders’ equity per outstanding

share ... .. .. ... ... . o L $ 1278  § 1263 $ 1257 § 11.88 § 10.97
Allowance for losses on loans to non-

performing loans................ 46.01% 56.60% 55.23% 60.65% 50.48%
Allowance for losses on loans to total

loans ........... ... .. . 0., 1.06 0.92 0.86 0.71 0.67

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

Selected Operations Data:

Interest income................... $ 71272 $ 86561 § 108,107 $ 118,876 § 104,609
Interest expense .................. 43,678 53,068 70,288 73,033 57,543
Net interest income .. ............. 27,594 33,493 37,819 45,843 47,066
Provision for losses on loans . ....... 2,326 1,956 1,150 3,375 675
Net interest income after provision

forlossesonloans .............. 25,268 31,537 36,669 42,468 46,391
Non-interest income . . ... P, - 11,757 11,313 10,728 6,081 5,191
Non-interest expense . ............. 32,886 32,674 31,433 31,035 30,210
Income before income taxes........ 4,139 10,176 15,964 17,514 21,372
Income tax expense ............... 601 2,971 4,791 6,821 8,282
Netincome..........ovveuinnvin.. $ 3538 % 7205 % 11,173 §$ 10,693 $ 13,090
Earnings per share (basic) ......... $ 031 § 060 $ 080 § 066 § 0.69
Earnings per share (diluted) ....... 0.30 0.58 0.77 0.66 0.68
Cash dividends declared per common

share ....... ... .. il 0.44 0.40 0.36 0.36 0.34
Dividend payout ratio ............. 146.67% 68.96% 46.75% 54.55% 50.00%
Selected Operating Ratios:
Net interest margin ............... 1.86% 2.20% 2.36% 2.83% 3.18%
Average interest-earning assets to

average interest-bearing liabilities 110.73 110.96 112.09 113.59 118.70
Ratio of general and administrative

expenses to average total assets . .. 2.10 2.04 1.86 1.84 1.88
Return on average assets........... . 0.23 0.45 0.66 0.63 0.85
Return on average equity .......... 2.28 4.30 5.82 5.34 5.70

Efficiency ratio................... 87.60 75.25 68.43 59.82 57.95




Selected Quarterly Results of Operations
2003 2002
4th Quarter 3rd Quarter 2nd Quarter 1st Quarter 4th Quarter 3rd Quarter 2nd Quarter 1st Quarter
(Doliars in thousands except per share data)

Interest income ............. $17,996 $16,990 $17,683 $18,603  $20,408 $22,047 $22,128 $21,978
Interest expense. ............ 10,309 10,333 11,211 11,825 12,786 13,291 12,978 14,013
Net interest income ......... 7,687 6,657 6,472 6,778 7,622 8,756 9,150 7,965
Provisions for losses on loans. . 837 502 509 478 906 500 350 200
Non-interest income ......... 3,890 2,969 2,648 2,250 3,934 2,639 2,494 2,246
Non-interest expense ......... 9,806 7,842 7,655 7,583 8,112 8,324 8,452 7,786
Income before income taxes .. 934 1,282 956 967 2,538 2,571 2,842 2,225
Income taxes ............... (285) 315 258 313 696 755 859 661
Net income ................ $ 1,219 $ 967 $ 698 $§ 6354 ' $ 1842 $ 1816 §$ 1983 $ 1,564
Earnings per share —basic ... § 0.11 $§ 0.09 §$ 0.06 $ 006 $ 016 $ 015 $ 016 § 0.13
Earnings per share — diluted . . . 0.10 0.08 0.06 0.06 0.15 0.15 0.16 0.12
Dividends declared per share . . 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.11 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Overview

During the year ended December 31, 2003, the financial services industry experienced a record low
interest rate environment. The Company felt the impact of this low rate environment through unprecedented
refinancing and prepayment activity in both the loan and securities portfolios which in turn decreased the
Company’s realized yields on interest-bearing assets.

In addition, while interest expense also decreased during the year, the interest expense on the Company’s
FHLB fixed-rate advances continued to adversely impact the Company’s net interest rate margin. The average
cost of these advances for the year ended December 31, 2003 was 5.98% and significantly impacted the
Company’s cost of interest-bearing liabilities. While the advances can be prepaid, the Company would incur a
substantial penalty which is calculated based on the present value of the future cash flows at current interest
rates. As of December 31, 2003, the Company estimated the prepayment penalty to be $54.7 million to pay off
the aggregate advances. Should interest rates increase, the Company expects the estimated prepayment
penalties to decrease. Until then, the cost of these borrowings are expected to significantly impact future
earnings.

In its efforts to mitigate the effects of the low interest rate environment, the Company continued its
strong effort to develop and enhance programs to support commercial and small business growth by hiring six
new commercial loan officers and seven credit administration professionals to bolster the rapidly growing
commercial lending function. The commercial real estate and multi-family residential loan portfolios grew
17.8% from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003. The compression of the net interest margin also caused
many in the industry, including the Company, to look for other, non-rate sensitive ways to increase income.
The Company increased non-interest income through fees from its Overdraft Protection Program (ODP) and
commissions from its alternative investment program as a way to offset the impact from low interest rates.

Non-interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 was adversely affected by a $1.3 million
contribution to the Company’s defined benefit pension plan which was made to keep the plan appropriately
funded and to avoid significantly higher estimated contributions in future years. Even after this contribution,
compensation and employee benefits in 2003 remained relatively flat at 2.0% of average assets. Also included
in non-interest expense is the $1.3 million amortization related to the cost of the Company’s RRP. The
Company amortized the costs of this plan over the five year vesting period. In May 2004, the plan will be fully
vested and the Company should realize a decrease in non-interest expense related to the RRP.
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Lower pre-tax income and tax planning efforts resulted in a reduction of total income tax expense to
$601,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $3.0 million in 2002. The effective tax rates dropped to
14.5% of pre-tax income compared to 29.2% for 2002. The Company estimates that its effective rate for 2004
should return to previous levels.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States and follow general practices within the industry in which it operates.
Application of these principles requires management to make estimates or judgments that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. These estimates are based on information
available as of the date of the financial statements; accordingly, as this information changes, the financial
statements could reflect different estimates or judgments. Certain policies inherently have a greater reliance
on the use of estimates, and as such have a greater possibility of producing results that could be materially
different than originally reported. Estimates or judgments are necessary when assets and liabilities are required
to be recorded at fair value, when a decline in the value of an asset not carried on the financial statements at
fair value warrants an impairment write-down or valuation reserve to be established, or when an asset or
liability needs to be recorded contingent upon a future event. Carrying assets and liabilities at fair value
inherently results in more financial statement volatility. The fair values and the information used to record
valuation adjustments for certain assets and liabilities are based either on quoted market prices or are provided
by other third-party sources, when available. When third-party information is not available, valuation
adjustments are estimated in good faith by management primarily through the use of internal cash flow
modeling techniques.

The most significant accounting policies followed by the Company are presented in Note [ to the
consolidated financial statements. These policies along with the disclosures presented in the other financial
statement notes and in this management’s discussion and analysis, provide information on how significant
assets and liabilities are valued in the financial statements and how those values are determined. Management
views critical accounting policies to be those which are highly dependent on subjective or complex judgments,
estimates and assumptions, and where changes in those estimates and assumptions could have a significant
impact on the financial statements. Management currently views the determination of the allowance for losses
on loans to be a critical accounting policy.

Allowance for Losses on Loans. The allowance for losses on loans represents management’s estimates of
probable credit losses inherent in the loan portfolio which is the largest asset type on the consolidated balance
sheet. Estimating the amount of the allowance for losses on loans requires significant judgment using estimates
such as the amount and timing of expected future cash flows on impaired loans, estimated losses on pools of
homogeneous loans based on historical loss experience, and consideration of current economic trends and
conditions, all of which may be susceptible to significant change. Loan losses are charged off against the
allowance, while recoveries of amounts previously charged off are credited to the allowance. The Company
establishes provisions for losses on loans, which are charged to operations, in order to maintain the allowance
for losses on loans at a level which is deemed appropriate to absorb losses inherent in the portfolio.

In determining the appropriate level of the allowance for losses on loans, management considers:
« past and anticipated loss experience,

« evaluations of real estate collateral,

+ current and anticipated economic conditions,

¢ volume and type of lending, and

* levels of non-performing and other classified loans.

The amount of the allowance is based on estimates, and ultimate losses may vary from such estimates.
Management assesses the allowance for losses on loans on a quarterly basis and makes appropriate provisions
to maintain the allowance at an appropriate level. The actual determination of the total provision is the
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combination of specific reserves, which may be established from time to time on individual classified assets
and a general reserve that is based in part on certain ratios applied to various loan pools as stratified by the
Company considering historical charge-offs and delinquency levels. To the extent that actual outcomes differ
from management estimates, an additional provision for loan losses could be required that could adversely
affect earnings or financial position in future periods. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral
part of their examination processes, periodically review the Bank’s provision for losses on loans and the
carrying value of its other non-performing assets, based on information available to them at the time of their
examinations. Any of these agencies could require the Bank to make additional provisions for losses on loans
in the future.

Additionally, the Company engages an independent third party to review its commercial loans and
commercial real estate loans every four to six months. The recommendations of this review are reviewed and
compared to the Company’s asset classification, and adjustments are made as deemed appropriate by
management.

Changes in Financial Condition

General. During the year ended December 31, 2003, the Company’s total assets decreased by
$15.3 million to $1.57 billion from $1.58 billion at December 31, 2002. The significant changes in the
composition of the Company’s balance sheet during the year ended December 31, 2003 include a:

» net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of $31.9 million,
« net decrease in securities of $29.3 million,

« net increase in loans receivable of $41.2 million,

+ net increase in total deposits of $21.5 million, and

» repayment of $30.9 million in advanceé from the FHLB.

The shift between securities and loans receivable is a direct result of the Company continuing its strategy
to shift its assets from lower yielding securities to higher yielding commercial loans. Management is focused
on developing its commercial relationships in its efforts to not only increase total yield on assets but to also
provide an additional source of low cost funding through commercial deposits. The Company is also
reinvesting excess funds in relatively low yielding assets with estimated average durations of two years or less
as well as overnight funds with the expectation that they will be readily available for investment in higher
yielding assets when the interest rate cycle turns upward.

The increase in deposits for the year was mainly a result of third and fourth quarter promotions for above-
market-rate short term certificates of deposit which were offered as part of the Bank’s efforts to increase
market share and build customer relationships. At December 31, 2003, the Company had approximately
$134.1 million outstanding in certificates of deposit with an average cost of 2.82% from these promotions
which will reprice during the first two quarters of 2004. As the Company continues to expand into new
markets, it may use similar promotions during 2004 to build market share and add new customer relationships.
The Company has not, and does not intend to, utilize any other source of brokered deposits for building its
deposit base in the future.

Stockholders’ equity decreased during the year ended December 31, 2003 by $4.7 million primarily due
to:

* $9.3 million in repurchases of 659,841 shares of the Company’s common stock for treasury through the
Company’s share repurchase program, and

» $4.8 million of dividends declared on the Company’s common stock during 2003.
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The above decreases in stockholders’ equity were partially offset by:
» 2003 net income of $3.5 million,

¢ a $1.0 million increase in accumulated other comprehensive income resulting from an increase in the
market value of securities, net of tax,

» $1.7 million from exercised stock options,

¢ $1.7 million in shares earned for the Company’s employee stock ownership plan (See Note 11 in the
consolidated financial statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K), and

* $1.3 million of shares held by the Company’s retention and retirement plan becoming vested and issued
to plan participants (See Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements).

During 2003, the Company repurchased 659,841 shares of its common stock at an average price of $14.05
per share pursuant to the share repurchase program announced in July 2002. In 1999, the Company began
aggressively repurchasing shares to reduce its excess capital and earn a more competitive return on equity
(ROE). Since its initial public offering, the Company has repurchased an aggregate of 11,530,903 shares of its
common stock at an average price of $11.74 per share. At December 31, 2003, the Company has 1,241,869 of
shares remaining for repurchase in its current share repurchase program.

At December 31, 2003, the Bank continues to maintain a strong capital structure with tangible and core
regulatory capital ratios of 8.46% and a risk-based capital ratio of 13.04%.

Average Balances, Net Interest Income, Yields Earned and Rates Paid

The table on the following page provides information regarding (i) the Company’s interest income recognized
from interest-earning assets and their related average yields; (ii) the amount of interest expense realized on
interest-bearing liabilities and their related average rates; (iii) net interest income; (iv) interest rate spread; and
(v) net interest margin. Information is based on average daily balances during the indicated periods.




Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Yield/Cost  Balance Interest Yield/Cost  Balance Interest  Yield/Cost
{Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Loans Receivable(1)
Real estate loans . ........... $ 927,851 $57,196 6.16% $ 883,265 $60,750 6.88% $ 920,461 § 69,398 7.54%
Otherloans ................ 40,380 2,273 563 33,288 1969 592 22,118 1,665 7.53
Total loans .. ............. 968,231 59,469 6.14 916,553 62,719 6.84 942,576 71,063 7.54
Securities(2) ................ 331,121 8,859 2.68 388,382 19,211 4.95 457,796 29,439 6.43
Other interest-earning assets(3) 187,283 2,944 1.57 215,549 4,631 2.15 204,563 7,605 372
Total interest-earning assets... 1,486,635 . 71,272 479 1,520,484 86,561 5.69 1,604,935 108,107 6.74
Non-interest earning assets .. ... 78,998 __ 80,628 82640
Total assets .................. $1,565,633 $1,601,112 $1,687,575
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Checking and money market
accounts .. ..., $ 230,439 2,174 094 § 193812 2,735 1.41 § 146,565 3,298 2.25
Savings accounts ............ 212,884 1,347 0.63 214,609 2,768 1.29 203,951 4,591 2.25
Certificates of deposit........ 458,014 13,755 3.00 502,970 20,214 4.02 586,677 32,958 5.62
Total deposits ............ 901,337 17,276 1.92 911,391 25,717 2.82 937,193 40,847 4.36
Borrowings . ................. 441,275 26,402 5.98 458,864 27,351 5.96 494,637 29,441 5.95
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,342,612 43,678 3.25 1,370,255 53,068 3.87 1,431,830 70,288 4.91
Non-interest bearing
liabilities(4) ................ 67,624 63,200 63,869
Total liabilities. ........... 1,410,236 1,433,455 1,495,699
Stockholders’ equity ........... 155,397 167,657 191,876
Total liabilities and
stockholders’ equity. .. ... $1,565,633 $1,601,112 $1,687,575
Net interest-carning assets. ... .. $ 144,023 $ 150,229 $ 173,105
Net interest income/interest rate
spread . ...l $27,594 1.54% $33,493 1.82% $ 37,819 1.83%
Net interest margin............ 1.86% 2.20% 2.36%
Ratio of average interest-earning
assets to average interest-
bearing liabilities . ........... 110.73% 110.96% 112.09%

)l

(1) The average balance of loans receivable includes non-performing loans, interest on which is recognized on

a cash basis.

(2) Average balances of securities available-for-sale are based on historical costs.

(3) Includes money market accounts, federal funds sold and interest-earning bank deposits.

(4) Consists primarily of demand deposit accounts.

Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table sets forth the effects of changing rates and volumes on the Company’s net interest
income. Information is provided with respect to (i) effects on interest income attributable to changes in rate
(changes in rate multiplied by prior volume); (ii) effects on interest income attributable to changes in volume
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(changes in volume multiplied by prior rate); and (iii) changes in rate/volume (changes in rate multiplied by
chariges in volume).
Year Ended December 31,

2003 compared to 2002 2002 compared to 2001
Increase (decrease) due to Increase (decrease) due to
Rate/  Total Net Rate/  Total Net
Rate Volume Volume Inc./(Dec) Rate Volume  Volume Inc./(Dec)

{Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets:
Loans receivable:

Real estate loans. . ................ $ (6,303) % 3,067 §$(318) % (3,554)$ (6,090) $(2,804) $ 246 §$ (8,648)
Otherloans . ..................... (95) 419 (20) 304 (357) 841  (180) 304
Total loans receivable .......... (6,398) 3,486  (338) (3,250) (6,447) (1,963) 66 (8,344)
Securities. .. ..o (8,820) (2,832) 1,300 (10,352) (6,794) (4,464) 1,030 (10,228)
Other interest-earning assets ... ....... (1,243) (607) 163  (1,687) (3,210) 408  (172) (2,974)
Total net change in income on interest-
€arning assets .. .................. (16,461) 47 1,125 (15,289) (16,451) (6,019) 924 (21,546)
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits:
Checking and money market ....... (907) 517 (171) (561) (1,230) 1,063 (396) (563)
Savings accounts.................. (1,410) (22) 1 (1,421)  (1,960) 240 (103) (1,823)
Certificates of deposit ............. (5,109) (1,807) 457  (6,459) (9,380) (4,702) 1,338 (12,744)
Total deposits . ................ (7426) (1,312) 297  (8,441) (12,570) (3,399) 839 (15,130)
BOTTOWINGS . . ..« oo 103 (1,048)  (4)  (949) 42 (2,129 (3) (2,090)
Total net change in expense on interest- ‘
bearing liabilities ................. (7,323) (2,360) 293 (9,390) (12,528) (5,528) 836 (17,220)
Net change in net interest income . ... .. $ (9,138)$ 2,407 $ 832 $ (5899)$ (3,923)% (491)$ 88 $ (4,326)

Results of Operations

The Company’s results are affected by the interest rate environment which continued even lower during
2003 from 2002 as the financial services industry experienced record low interest rates. The low interest rate
environment impacts both interest income and interest expense.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2002

Net Income. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2003 was $3.5 mittion, or $0.30 per diluted
share ($0.31 per basic share), compared to $7.2 million, or $0.58 per diluted share ($0.60 per basic share), for
the year ended December 31, 2002. The historically low interest rate environment continued in 2003 causing
further deterioration in the Company’s net interest margin. Net interest income for the year ended
December 31, 2003 decreased by $5.9 million or 18% from the previous year.

The Company’s results for the year ended December 31, 2003 were also adversely affected by a
$1.3 million contribution to the Company’s defined benefit pension plan to keep the plan appropriately funded
and to avoid significantly higher estimated contributions in future years. As with many pension plans, the
Company’s plan had been adversely affected by three years of declining investment returns and record low
interest rates which caused the level of funded benefits to drop significantly.

Net interest income. Net interest income is the principal source of earnings for the Company and
consists of interest income on loans and investment securities less interest expense on deposits and borrowed
funds. Net interest income is a function of the Company’s interest rate spread (which is the difference
between the average yield earned on the Company’s interest-earning assets and the average rate paid on its
interest-bearing liabilities) and the relative amounts of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.
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The Company’s average interest rate spreads were 1.54% and 1.82% for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2002, respectively. The Company’s net interest margin (which is net interest income as a percentage of
average interest-earning assets) was 1.86% and 2.20% during the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

The Company’s net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2003 totaled $27.6 million and
represented a $5.9 million decrease from $33.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The decrease in
net interest income was due primarily to the combined effects of the low interest rate environment and lower
average balances of interest-carning assets for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2002.

Interest Income. The Company reported total interest income of $71.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 compared to $86.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The $15.3 million or
17.7% decrease was primarily due to a $33.8 million decrease in total interest-earning assets as well as a
decrease in the average yield on interest-earning assets of 90 basis points for the year ended December 31,
2003 as compared to 2002.

The Company’s interest-earning assets continued to decline during 2003 as a result of unprecedented
refinancing activity which caused significant rate reductions within the loan portfolio and accelerated
amortization of premiums on its mortgage-backed securities portfolio. Given the continuing low interest rate
environment, the Company has reinvested these funds predominantly in relatively low yielding assets with
estimated average durations of two years or less as- well as overnight funds with the expectation that they will
be readily available for investment in higher yielding assets when the interest rate cycle turns upward. During
2003, the Company made considerable progress in its strategy to transfer assets from lower yielding securities
to higher yielding loans. During the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to the previous year, average
loan balances increased $51.7 million or 5.6% while the average balance of the Company’s securities portfolio
decreased $57.3 million or 14.7%. The Company believes it has made significant progress in positioning the
balance sheet to take advantage of the next interest rate cycle.

Interest Expense. In contrast to the adverse impact on the asset side of the balance sheet, the low
interest rate environment in 2003 provided some positive opportunities on the funding side. The Company
proactively managed its funding costs throughout 2003 by aggressively lowering the interest rate paid.on its
non-maturity deposits which historically have not been rate sensitive. Total interest expense amounted to
$43.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to $53.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002. The $9.4 million or 17.7% reduction in interest expense during 2003 was primarily the
result of a 90 basis point reduction in the rate paid on total deposits coupled with a $10.1 million decrease in
the average balance of total deposits.

Provision for Losses on Loans. The Company’s provision for losses on loans was $2.3 million for the
year ended December 31, 2003 compared to $2.0 million in 2002, The increase in provision is a result of the
Company’s increased emphasis on growing the commercial real estate and multi-family residential loan
portfolios which are generally deemed to involve more risk of loss than single-family residential real estate
loans. This change in emphasis has resulted in an increase in the allowance for losses on loans. The Company’s
allowance for losses on loans to total loans was 1.06% and 0.92% at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The Company’s non-performing loans were $22.7 million at December 31, 2003 compared to $15.3 mil-
lion at December 31, 2002, which represents an increase of $7.4 million. The primary changes in non-
performing loans by category included:

¢ a decrease in non-perfbrming single-family residential loans of approximately $1.7 million,

+ an increase in non-performing commercial real estate, multi-family residential and other commercial
loans of approximately $6.3 million, and

« an increase in non-performing construction and land development loans of $2.9 million.

The increase in non-performing commercial real estate, multi-family residential and construction and
land development loans was primarily due to three loans with aggregate carrying values of $8.9 million which
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were transferred to non-accrual status in the fourth quarter of 2003. The Company believes that these three
loans are fully collateralized, and its risk of loss, if any, is minimal on these loans. The ratio of the Company’s
allowance for losses on loans to non-performing loans was 46.0% at December 31, 2003 compared to 56.6% at
December 31, 2002.

Although management believes that the Company’s allowance for losses on loans was adequate at
December 31, 2003 based on available facts and circumstances, there can be no assurances that additions will
not be necessary in the future. Any such additional provisions for losses on loans would adversely affect the
Company’s results of operations.

Non-Interest Income. The Company reported non-interest income of $11.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 compared to $11.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. The primary reasons for
the increase in non-interest income in 2003 compared to 2002 were a:

+ $1.2 million increase in fees on deposit accounts, and
+ $1.5 million increase in net gains on the sale of securities,

which were partially offset compared to the Company’s results in 2002 by the absence of insurance
commissions of $1.2 million and the $1.1 million net gain on sale of insurance agency that were realized during
2002. ’

The increase in deposit fees during 2003 was mainly realized from the Company’s popular ODP for retail
and business checking customers. During the first full year of the program, the Company has 83% of its retail
and 69% of its small business accounts enrolled in the program which provides a discretionary service or
courtesy overdraft in case the customer’s account becomes overdrawn. Normal overdraft fees and charges still
apply under this program.

The Company also realized $651,000 of commission income during the first full year of outsourcing its
alternative investment program. Through this program the Company’s third party outsourcing partner sold
nearly $36 million of tax deferred annuities and other investments as an alternative investment to our
depositors during this low-rate environment. Management expects continued increases in overdraft fee income
from its ODP program as well as increased commission fee income from annuity sales through its outsourcing
arrangement.

Non-Interest Expense. The Company reported non-interest expense of $32.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 compared to $32.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.

While the Company’s salary expense remained relatively stable during 2003 compared to 2002,
compensation and employee benefits expense increased as a result of a $1.3 million payment to the Company’s
defined benefit pension plan during the fourth quarter of 2003. As with many pension plans, the Company’s
plan was adversely affected by three years of declining investment returns and record low interest rates which
caused the level of funded benefits to drop significantly. The voluntary contribution was made to keep the plan
funded at a level deemed appropriate. The Company froze the benefits associated with this plan in March
2003. Although no further benefits will accrue while the freeze remains in place, the freeze does not reduce
the benefits accrued to date. Even though the benefits are frozen, the Company will review the funding level
and will continue to make necessary contributions to keep the plan appropriately funded.

Professional fees were $1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 compared to $1.4 million for
2002. The increase in professional fees was mainly the result of the Company hiring independent third parties
to:

« perform an information systems technology assessment which led to the decision to move forward to
upgrade our core data processor and helped prioritize additional technology systems and upgrades
needed over the next few years,

» improve the process and underwriting for the Company’s Home Equity Lines of Credit
(HELOC) program which led to a successful implementation of our HELOC equity access card, and
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» implement an automated processing and underwriting program within the residential loan processing
system to provide the Company with a tiered pricing model which will lead to an improved yield and
turnaround time thus making the Company more competitive in originating residential mortgages.

Income Tax Expense. The Company’s income tax expense amounted to $601,000 and $3.0 million for
the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company’s effective tax rates were 14.5% and
29.2% for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The significant decrease in income tax
expense was a result of lower pre-tax income, the application of available tax credits and the effects of
permanent tax differences on the lower pre-tax earnings. The Company estimates that its effective rate for
2004 should return to previous levels.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001

Net Income. The Company reported net income of $7.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to net income of $11.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The Company’s net interest
income for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased $4.3 million from the year ended December 31,
2001. '

For the year ended December 31, 2002, results of operations were affected by:

+ lower average balances of interest-earning assets, which is comprised primarily of loans and securities,
as the result of continued accelerated repayments on mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities in
the low interest rate environment;

» higher interest-earning assets in 2002 compared to 2001 as the Company emphasized the origination of
commercial real estate, multi-family residential and construction and land development loans,

+ the realization of a $1.1 million gain on the sale of the insurance agency assets; and

» the absence of a $2.0 million gain on the sale of two LaPorte County Bank branches recognized in
2001.

Net Interest Income. The Combany’s average interest rate spreads were 1.82% and 1.83% for the years
ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The Company’s net interest margin was 2.20% and 2.36%
during the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The Company’s net interest income amounted to $33.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2002
compared to $37.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The 11.4% decrease from 2001 to 2002 was
a result of the:

» reduction in the ratio of average interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing liabilities to
110.96% in 2002 from 112.09% in 2001, and

+ utilization of $14.6 million of cash in 2002 for the Company’s stock repurchase program.

Interest Income. The Company reported total interest income of $86.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 compared to $108.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The $21.5 million or
19.9% decrease was primarily due to:

* a $69.4 million decrease in the average balances of securities from $457.8 million in 2001 to
$388.4 million in 2002,

+ a reduction-of 148 basis points in the average yield ‘earned on securities,

» the average balances of real estate loans decreasing by $37. 2 million to $883.3 million in 2002 from
$920.5 mitlion in 2001, and

+ a reduction of 66 basis points in the yield earned on real estate loans.
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Interest Expense. Total interest expense amounted to $53.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2002 compared to $70.3 million in 2001. The $17.2 million or 24.5% reduction in interest expense during 2002
compared to 2001 was primarily the result of a 154 basis point reduction in the rate paid on total deposits
coupled with a $25.8 million decrease in the average balance of total deposits.

Provision for Losses on Loans. The Company’s provision for losses on loans was $2.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2002 compared to $1.2 million in 2001. The Company increased its emphasis on
construction and land development loans, multi-family residential real estate loans, commercial loans, and
commercial real estate loans, all of which are generally deemed to involve more of an inherent risk of loss than
single-family residential real estate loans. This change in emphasis was the primary reason for the increase in
the allowance for losses on loans since 2001. The Company’s allowance for losses on loans to total loans was
0.92% at December 31, 2002 compared to 0.86% at December 31, 2001.

The Company’s non-performing loans were $15.3 million at December 31, 2002 compared to $13.9 mil-
lion at December 31, 2001. The primary changes in non-performing loans when comparing 2002 to 2001 were
an overall decrease in non-performing single-family residential loans of approximately $1.3 million and an
increase in non-performing commercial real estate loans. The incfease in non-performing commercial real
estate loans was primarily due to one loan of approximately $3.9 million on a motel, which became non-
performing in the third quarter of 2002. The ratio of the Company’s allowance for losses on loans to non-
performing loans was 56.6% at December 31, 2002 compared to 55.2% at December 31, 2001.

Non-Interest Income. The Company reported non-interest income of $11.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 compared to $10.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. The net increase was
the result of:

*» a $1.1 million gain recognized on the sale of the Company’s insurance agency assets in December 2002;
« the $1.5 million increase in deposit fees in 2002 compared to 2001; and

« the absence of a $2.0 million gain on the sale of two branch offices recognized in 2001.

The increase in deposit fees was a result of a re-evaluation of operations which was completed in 2001.

Also realized in 2002 was the sale of the insurance agency. In conjunction with the sale, the Company
changed its delivery method of investments by discontinuing the offer of non-deposit products through its
subsidiary. Instead, this activity was outsourced through a third party. Both the investment and insurance
subsidiaries had provided marginally incremental profit and loss results to the Company in recent years.

Non-Interest Expense. The Company reported non-interest expense of $32.7 million and $31.4 million
for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Compensation and employee benefits, the largest single component of non-interest expense, was
$20.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to $19.0 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001. While the Company’s salary expense was held flat in 2002 compared to 2001, salary
- expense levels were offset by increases in employee benefits expenses related to the Company’s pension plan
and ESOP plan.

After being fully funded for several years, funding was resumed for the pension plan year beginning
July 1, 2001 and ending June 30, 2002. Pension expense was $889,000 for the calendar year ending
December 31, 2002 compared to $134,000 for 2001. ESOP expense is recorded based on the shares to be
allocated for the year to participants in the plan multiplied by the average share price for the year. The average
share price for 2002 increased to $14.07. As a result, $177,000 of additional ESOP expense was recorded in
2002 compared to 2001.

Also included in compensation and employee benefits expense was $1.5 million in 2002 compared to
$1.4 million in 2001 from the Company’s Recognition and Retention Plan approved by the shareholders in
February 1999.
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Data processing expense amounted to $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 compared to
$1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. Data processing expense for 2002 included additional
costs of outsourcing some of the processing associated with a new proof of deposit system implemented in
2001. :

Income Tax Expense. The Company’s income tax expense amounted to $3.0 million and $4.8 million
for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The Company’s effective rates were 29.2% and
30.0% for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001. The Company has implemented several tax strategies
in the past few years that have resulted in significant reductions in its effective tax rates.

Liquidity and Commitments

The Company’s liquidity, represented by cash and cash equivalents, is a product of operating, investing
and financing activities. The Company’s primary historical sources of funds are:

« deposits,

» scheduled payments of amortizing loans and mortgage-bécked securities,

+ prepayments and maturities of outstanding loans and mortgage-backed securities,
» maturities of investment securities and other short-term investments,

+ funds provided from operations, and

« borrowings from the FHLB.

Scheduled payments from the amortization of loans, mortgage-backed securities, maturing investment
securities, and short-term investments are relatively predictable sources of funds, while deposit flows and loan
prepayments are greatly influenced by market interest rates, economic conditions and competitive rate
offerings. In addition, the Company invests excess funds in federal funds sold and other short-term interest-
earning assets which provide liquidity to meet lending requirements. At December 31, 2003, the Company had
cash and cash equivalents of $178.2 million which was a decrease of $31.9 million from December 31, 2002.

Liquidity management is both a daily and long-term function. Excess liquidity is generally invested in
short-term investments such as interest-bearing deposits and federal funds sold. On a longer-term basis, the
Company invests funds not used for maintaining and expanding the loan portfolio in securities, historically
mortgage-~backed securities. Given the current low interest rate environment, the Company is investing these
funds predominantly in relatively low yielding assets with estimated average durations of two years or less with
the expectation that the funds will be readily available for investment in higher yielding assets when the
interest rate market turns upward. The Company uses its sources of funds primarily to meet its ongoing
commitments, fund loan commitments, pay maturing certificates of deposit and savings withdrawals, and
maintain a securities portfolio. The Company anticipates that it will continue to have sufficient funds to meet
its current commitments.

The liquidity needs of the parent company, CFS Bancorp, Inc., consist primarily of operating expenses,
dividend payments to. stockholders and stock repurchases. The primary sources of liquidity are securities
available-for-sale and dividends from the Bank. On a parent company-only basis, at December 31, 2003, the
Company had $7.4 million in securities available-for-sale and, for the year ended December 31, 2003 received
$4.8 million in dividends from the Bank. However, these sources can also be supplemented by fees assessed by
the Company to the Bank.

Under certain banking regulations, the Bank is required to file a notice or, under certain circumstances,
an application with the OTS prior to paying any dividends to the Company. In addition, the Bank is required
to maintain certain regulatory capital requirements. At December 31, 2003, the Bank was well-capitalized.
See Note 9 in the consolidated financial statements for more information on the Bank’s regulatory capital.
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Contractual Obligations. The following table presents significant fixed and determinable contractual
obligations to third parties by payment date as of December 31, 2003,

Payments Due By Period

Over One Over Three
One Year Through Through
or Less Three Years Five Years Over Five Years Total

(Dollars in thousands)

Federal Home Loan Bank

advances .................. $ — $§ — $6,500 $411,990 $418,490
Operating leases .............. 562 1,005 342 — 1,909
$562 $1,005 $6,842 $411,990 $420,399

See Note 7 in the consolidated financial statements for further discussion surrounding the Company’s
FHLB advances. The Company’s operating lease obligations reflected above include the future minimum
rental payments, by year, required under the lease terms for premises and equipment. Many of these leases
contain renewal options, and certain leases provide options to purchase the leased property during or at the
expiration of the lease period at specific prices. See also to Note 4 in the consolidated financial statements for
further discussion related to the Company’s operating leases.

The Company also has commitments to fund maturing certificates of deposit which are scheduled to
mature within one year or less. These deposits total $421.2 million at December 31, 2003. Based on historical
experience, management believes that a significant portion of the maturing deposits will remain with the Bank.

Off-Balance-Sheet Obligations. The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet
risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments
involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet.
The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other party to the financial
instrument for commitments to extend credit and letters of credit is represented by the contractual notional
amount of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and
conditional obligations as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

The following table details the amounts and expected maturities of significant commitments as of
December 31, 2003.
Over One Over Three

One Year Through Through
or Less Three Years Five Years Over Five Years Total

{(Dollars in thousands)

Commitments to extend credit:

Residential property ........ $ 29,438 $ — $ — $ — $ 29,438
Nonresidential property . . ... 10,235 — — — 10,235
Commercial loans.......... 1,139 — — — 1,139

Commitments to fund unused
lines of credit ............. 85,837 — — — 85,837
Letters of credit ............. 4,642 749 1,167 — 6,558
Credit enhancements ......... — 6,578 8,487 29,084 44,149
$131,291 $7,327 $9,654 $29,084 $177,356

Commitments to extend credit, including loan commitments, lines of credit and letters of credit do not
necessarily represent future cash requirements, in that these commitments often expire without being drawn
upon.

Letters of credit include credit enhancements which are related to the issuance by municipalities of
taxable and nontaxable revenue bonds. The proceeds from the sale of such bonds are loaned to for-profit and
not-for-profit companies for economic development projects. In order for the bonds to receive a triple-A rating
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which provides for a lower interest rate, the FHLB-IN issues, in favor of the bond trustee, an Irrevocable
Direct Pay Letter of Credit for the account of the Bank. Since the Bank, in accordance with the terms and
conditions of a Reimbursement Agreement between the FHLB-IN and the Bank, would be required to
reimburse the FHLB-IN for draws against the Letter of Credit, these facilities are analyzed, appraised,
secured by real estate mortgages, and monitored as if the Bank funded the project initially.

The Company has not used, and has no intention of using, any significant off-balance sheet financing
arrangements for liquidity purposes. In addition, the Company has not had, and has no intention to have, any
significant transactions, arrangements or other relationships with any unconsolidated, limited purpose entities
that could materially affect the Company’s liquidity or capital resources. The Company has not traded in and
has no intention of trading in derivatives or commodity contracts.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The consolidated financial statements and related financial data presented herein have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, which require the measurement of financial position
and operating results generally in terms of historical dollars, without considering changes in relative
purchasing power over time due to inflation. Unlike most industrial companies, virtually all of the Company’s
assets and liabilities are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates generally have a more significant impact
on a financial institution’s performance than does the effect of inflation.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

The Bank, like other financial institutions, is subject to interest rate risk (IRR). IRR refers to the risk
that changes in market interest rates might adversely affect net interest income or the net portfolio value
(NPV) of its assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet contracts. IRR is primarily the result of an imbalance
between the price sensitivity of the Bank’s assets and its liabilities. These imbalances can be caused by
differences in the maturity, repricing, and coupon characteristics of assets and liabilities as well as options
(such as loan prepayment options).

The Bank maintains a written Asset/Liability Management Policy that establishes written guidelines for
the asset/liability management function, including the management of net interest margin, interest rate risk,
and liquidity. The Asset/Liability Management Policy falls under the authority of the Board of Directors who
in turn assigns its formulation, revision, and administration to the Asset/Liability Committee (ALCO). The
ALCO meets monthly and consists of certain senior officers of the Bank and one outside director. The results
of the monthly meetings are reported to the Board of Directors. The primary duties of the ALCO are to
develop reports and establish procedures to measure and monitor IRR, verify compliance with Board-
approved IRR tolerance limits, take appropriate actions to mitigate those risks, monitor and discuss the status
and results of implemented strategies and tactics, monitor the Bank’s capital position, review the current and
prospective liquidity positions, and monitor alternative funding sources.

While maintaining its interest rate spread objectives, the Bank attempts to reduce interest rate risk with a
variety of strategies designed to maintain what the Bank believes to be an appropriate relationship between its
assets and liabilities. First, the Bank emphasizes real estate mortgage loans and commercial loans with
adjustable interest rates or fixed rates of interest for an initial term of three or five years, that convert to an
adjustable rate based on the one, three and five-year constant maturity of United States Treasury obligations
as the index after the initial terms and for subsequent adjustment periods. At December 31, 2003, the Bank
had approximately $715.8 million of adjustable-rate loans in its portfolio. Second, the Bank’s mortgage-
backed securities portfolio is made up primarily of securities that have expected average lives of five years or
less at time of purchase. Third, the Bank has a substantial amount of savings, demand deposit and money
market accounts which the Bank believes may be less sensitive to changes in interest rates than certificate
accounts. At December 31, 2003, the Bank had $456.4 million of these types of accounts.

The Bank utilizes the OTS NPV model as its primary method of monitoring its exposure to IRR. The
NPV represents the excess of the present value of expected cash flows from assets over the present value of
expected cash flows from liabilities. The NPV model estimates the sensitivity of the Bank’s NPV over a series
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of instantaneous and sustained parallel shifts in interest rates. On a quarterly basis, the ALCO reviews the
calculations of NPV as adjusted for expected cash flows from off-balance sheet contracts, if any, for
compliance with Board-approved tolerance limits.

The table below presents, as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, an analysis of the Bank’s IRR as measured

by changes in NPV for instantaneous and sustained parallel shifts in the yield curve in 100 basis point (1%)

increments, up to 300 basis points and down 100 basis points in 2003 and 2002 in accordance with OTS

regulations. As illustrated in the table, the Bank’s NPV in the base case (0 basis point change) increased

$18.3 million from $119.9 million at December 31, 2002 to $138.2 million at December 31, 2003. The primary

reason for the increase was a reduction in the effective duration of the Bank’s fixed-rate certificates of deposit
and long-term borrowings.

Net Portfolio Value
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002
$ Amount  $ Change % Change $ Amount  $ Change % Change
(Dollars in thousands)

Assumed Change in Interest Rates
(Basis Points)

F300 . $118,872 $(19,316) (14.0)% $127,883 $ 8,001 6.7%
F200 o 130,804  (7,385)  (5.3) 134,727 14845  12.4
F100 © e 147,771 9,582 6.9 133,656 13,775 115

0 138,188 — — 119,882 — —
100 130281  (7,908)  (5.7) 104,896  (14,986) (12.5)

As modeled above, a decrease in interest rates of 100 basis points would have an adverse impact on the
Bank’s NPV while an increase in interest rates of 100 basis points would have a positive impact on the NPV.
As rates begin to rise up to 100 basis points, the adverse change in the value of the Bank’s assets is more than
offset by the positive change in the value of the its liabilities. As rates rise beyond 100 basis points, the
depreciation in the value of the Bank’s assets is not offset by the change in the value of its liabilities. This is
indicated by the negative 5.3% and negative 14.0% change in the +200 and 4300 basis points scenarios,
respectively, at December 31, 2003. At December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, the Bank was within the
Board-approved tolerance limits in each rate scenario.

This NPV model is a static model and does not consider potential adjustments of strategies by
management on a dynamic basis in a volatile rate environment in order to protect or conserve equity values. As
such, actual results may vary from the modeled results. The above analysis includes the assets and liabilities of
the Bank only. Inclusion of Holding Company assets and liabilities would increase NPV nominally at all
levels. ‘




Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
CFS Bancorp, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of condition of CFS Bancorp, Inc. (the
Company) as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of CFS Bancorp, Inc. as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the consolidated
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Sanct ¥ MLLP

Chicago, Illinois
February 27, 2004
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CFS BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION

December 31,

2003

2002

(Dollars in thousands
except per share data)

ASSETS

Cash and amounts due from depository institutions ........................ $ 18,675 § 30312
Interest-bearing deposits . ... 142,139 105,479
Federal funds sold ... ... .. i 17,399 74,350

Cash and cash equivalents ........... .. ..o, 178,213 210,141
Securities available-for-sale. . ........ .. ... .. . .. . 327,789 335,702
Securities held-to-maturity (fair value at December 31, 2002 — $21,977) ..... — 21,402
Loans receivable, net of allowance for losses on loans of $10,453 and $8,674,

TESPECHVELY . . .t e e 971,541 930,348
Investment in FHLB stock, at cost ........ ... .. i, 26,766 25,780
Office properties and equipment. .. ... ..ottt 13,738 13,835
Accrued interest receivable . ... .. e 6,623 6,597
Real estate owned ... ... . i e 206 893
Investment in Bank-owned life insurance . .......... .. . 31,926 31,009
Prepaid expenses and other assets .......... .. ... ... i i, 12,626 9,055

Total ASSEES . o vttt e $1,569,428  $1,584,762
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
D EPOSItS . . . it $ 975755 § 954,222
Borrowed money . ... ... 418,490 449,431
Advance payments by borrowers for taxes and insurance .................... 5,595 4410
Other Labilities. . . ...t 13,635 16,037
Total liabilities .. .......... e 1,413,475 1,424,100
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value:

Authorized shares — 15,000,000

Issued and outstanding shares — none at December 31, 2003 and 2002. ... — —
Common stock, $.01 par value:

Authorized shares — 85,000,000

Issued shares — 23,423,306 at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively

Outstanding shares — 12,200,015 and 12,674,597 at December 31, 2003

and 2002, respectively . ..... .. 234 234

Additional paid-in capital . ...... ... 189,879 189,786

Retained earnings, substantially restricted............................... 106,354 107,598

Treasury stock, at cost: 11,223,291 and 10,748,709 shares at December 31,

2003 and 2002, respectively . ....... ... e (132,741) (125,650)
Unearned common stock acquired by ESOP ............. e (7,158) (8,356)
Unearned common stock acquired by RRP ............................. (1,523) (2,827)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax............... 908 (123)

Total stockholders” equity ... ... ...ttt i 155,953 160,662
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ............................ $1,569,428  $1,584,762

See accompanying notes.
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CFS BANCORP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year ended December 31,

2003

2002

2001

(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

Interest income: : :
Loans . ..ot e $ 59,469

See accompanying notes.
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$ 62,719 $ 71,063

SeCUNItIeS . o 8,859 19,211 29,439
Other . ..o e 2,944 4,631 7,605
Total interest income . . ..., 71,272 86,561 108,107

Interest expense: :

DepositS. . .o 17,276 25,717 40,847
Borrowed Money ...... .. . 26,402 27,351 29,441
Total interest expense ...........c.coiveiiiinnnnnn... 43,678 53,068 70,288

Net interest income before provision for losses on loans. .. ... 27,594 33,493 37,819

Provision for lossesonloans . ............................ 2,326 1,956 1,150

Net interest income after provision for losses on loans .. ... .. 25,268 - 31,537 36,669

. Non-interest income:

o Loan fees .. 1,430 1,393 1,319
Fees on deposit accounts. ................... e 5,301 4,112 2,563
Insurance commissions ... ... — 1,210 1,067
Investment commissions ................... e 651 770 873
Bank-owned life insurance income...................... 1,437 1,524 1,500
Net gain on sale of securities . ......................... 1,780 299 599
Net gain on sale of branches . ...................... ... — — 2,014
Net gain on sale of insurance agency ................... — 1,084 —
Other INCOME . ... ot e e 1,158 921 793

Total non-interest income . ............ ..., 11,757 11,313 10,728

Non-interest expense:

Compensation and employee benefits ................... 19,932 20,070 19,028
Net occupancy eXpense .. .....vvvvivinnvr ... 2,211 2,362 2,471
Professional fees......... ... ... .. i 1,833 1,374 1,972
Data processing . ..........v i 1,804 1,743 1,448
Furniture and equipment eXpense ...................... 1,776 1,925 2,037
Marketing . ... 1,145 904 . 853
Other general and administrative expenses . .............. 4,185 4,296 3,624

Total non-interest €Xpense . ...............couveenn... 32,886 32,674 31,433

Income before income taxes ... .......covvi ... 4,139 10,176 15,964

TRCOme taxX EXPenSe . . oottt 601 2,971 4,791

NEtINCOME . . v oottt e e e $ 3,538 $ 7205 § 11,173

Per share data:

Basic earnings pershare ................ ... ... $ 031§ 060 § 0.80
Diluted earnings per share ............................ 0.30 0.58 0.77
Weighted-average shares outstanding ..................... 11,289,254 12,000,589 14,038,096

Weighted-average diluted shares outstanding ............... 11,702,635 12,492,149 14,453,344



CFS BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Unearned Unearned Accum. Other
Additional Common Stock Common Stock Comprehensive
Common Paid In  Retained  Treasury  Acquired By  Acquired by Income
Stock Capital Earnings Stock ESOP RRP (Loss) Total
{Dollars in thousands)
Balance at January 1, 2001 ......... $234  $188,990 § 98,782 $ (68,829) $(10,766) $(6,019) $(3,024) $199,368
Net income for 2001 .............. — — 11,173 — — — — 11,173
Other comprehensive income, net
of tax:
Change in unrealized appreciation
on available-for-sale securities,
net of reclassification adjustment — — — — — — 5,743 5,743
Total comprehensive income ........ — — — — — — — 16,916
Purchase of treasury stock .......... — — —  (43,634) — — — (43,634)
Shares earned under ESOP......... — 340 — — 1,196 — — 1,536
Amortization of award under RRP. .. — (52) — — — 1,476 — 1,424
Exercise of stock options . .......... —_ 136 —_ 296 — — — 432
Tax benefit related to stock options
exercised .......... ... .. —_ 133 — — — — — 133
Dividends declared on common stock
($0.36 per share) ............... = — (4,891) — — — — (4,891)
Balance at December 31, 2001 ... ... 234 189,547 105,064 (112,167) (9,570) (4,543) 2,719 171,284
Net income for 2002 .............. —_ —_ 7,205 —_ — — — 7,205
Other comprehensive income, net
of tax:
Change in unrealized appreciation
on available-for-sale securities,
net of reclassification adjustment — — — — — — (2,842) (2,842)
Total comprehensive income ........ — — — — — — — 4,363
Purchase of treasury stock.......... — - —  (14,626) — — — (14,626)
Shares earned under ESOP......... — 494 —_ — 1,214 — — 1,708
Amortization of award under RRP. .. — (62) — — — 1,716 — 1,654
Exercise of stock options ........... — (285) — 1,143 — — — 858
Tax benefit related to stock options
exercised ............ ... ... —_ 92 — — — — — 92
Dividends declared on common stock
(30.40 per share) ............... - —  (4,671) — — — — (4,671)
Balance at December 31,2002 ...... 234 189,786 107,598  (125,650) (8,356) (2,827) (123) 160,662
Net income for 2003 .............. — — 3,538 — — — — 3,538
Other comprehensive income, net
of tax:
Change in unrealized appreciation
on available-for-sale securities,
net of reclassification adjustment — — — — — — 1,031 1,031
Total comprehensive income . ....... — — — — — — — 4,569
Purchase of treasury stock .......... — — — (9,273) — — — (9,273)
Shares earned under ESOP......... — 497 — — 1,198 — — 1,695
Amortization of award under RRP. .. — (47) — — — 1,304 — 1,257
Exercise of stock options ........... — (450) — 2,182 — — — 1,732
Tax benefit related to stock options
exercised ............ ... ..., — 93 — — —_ — — 93
Dividends declared on common stock
(30.44 per share) ............... - — (4,782) — — — — (4,782)
Balance at December 31, 2003 ...... $234 $189,879 $106,354 $(132,741) § (7,158) $(1,523) $ 908 $155,953

H

See accompanying notes.
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CES BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net INCOME . ottt e

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Provision for losses on loans ........ ... ... ... .. L
Depreciation and amortization...................... ...
Deferred income taxes . ...t
Amortization of cost of stock benefit plans ............. ...
Tax benefit from exercises of nonqualified stock options . . . ..
Change in deferred income .................... ... ... ...
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable .. ........
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable ............
Proceeds from sale of loans held forsale ..................
Origination of loans held forsale ........................
Gain on sale of branches ......... ... . ... .o,
Net gain on sale of securities available-for-sale ............
Net gain on sale of securities held-to-maturity .............
Purchase of Bank-owned life insurance ...................
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and other assets. . ..
Decrease in other liabilities . ............... ... ...

Net cash provided by operating activities. . ..............

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Available-for-sale securities:

Held-to-maturity securities:

Repayments and maturities . ...........covvviiinernnneen,

Redemption of Federal Home Loan Bank stock................
Loan originations and principal payments on loans, net..........
Additions to real estate owned ....... . ... . o oo
Proceeds from sale of real estate owned............. e
Purchases of properties and equipment .......................
Disposal of properties and equipment......... ...,

Net cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities . . .
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Year ended December 31,

2003

2002

2001

(Dollars in thousands)

$ 3538 § 7205 § 11,173

2,326 1,956 1,150
1,532 1,787 1,944
(2,273) (1,582) (254)
2,952 3,362 2,960
93 92 133
157" 1,327 263
(26) 290 3,728
21 (184) (958)
12,697 12,128 5,873
(15087)  (11,484) (6,229)
— — (2,014)
(348) (299) (599)
(1,432) — —
— — (6,192)
2,764 6,033 (1,441)
(2,797) (3,879) (2,545)
4,117 16,752 6,992
(492,397)  (668,626)  (536,767)
469,588 635,931 502,847
29,751 12,951 34,545
2,727 15,288 211,393
16,805 — —
17 412 856
(42,456)  (53,291) 112,443
— (84) (264)
1,857 2,687 2,069
(2,363) (1,746) (1,262)
928 1,107 693
(15,543)  (55,371) 326,553




CFS BANCORP, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — (Continued)

Year ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from exercise of stock options . . ...................... $ 1,732 % 858 § 432
Dividends paid on common stock ........ ... . e, (4,713) (4,642) (5,143)
Purchase of treasury stock ............ i i (9,273) (14,626) (43,634)
Net increase in checking, savings, and money market accounts . . .. 162 55,729 46,766
Net increase (decrease) in certificates of deposit................ 21,346 (47,312) 4,680
Net increase (decrease) in advance payments by borrowers for

taxes and INSUTANCE . . .. v vttt ettt ittt e i ie i 1,185 87) (1,356)
Decrease in checking, savings and money market accounts in »

connection with sale of branches............................ — — (10,823)
Decrease in certificates of deposit in connection with sale of

branches . ... ... — — (28,252)
Premium on deposits received in connection with sale of branches — — 2,014
Net decrease in borrowed money ..............coivinnnvee.n. (30,941) (13,227) (85,418)
Net cash flows used in financing activities. ..................... (20,502) (23,307)  (120,734)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ............... (31,928) (61,926) 212,811
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ................. 210,141 272,067 59,256
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ...................... $ 178,213, $ 210,141 $§ 272,067
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash activities:

Loans transferred to real estate owned .. ... ... . ... $ 1,170 $§ 2368 $§ 1,875

Cash paid for interest on deposits . . ......................... 17,251 25,860 41,282

Cash paid for interest on borrowings ........................ 26,406 27,392 29,964

Cashpaid fortaxes . ...... ... .. . . i, 2,452 2,023 5,679

See accompanying notes.
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CFS BANCORP, INC.

- NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2003

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization ‘

CFS Bancorp, Inc. (including its consolidated subsidiaries, the Company) is a Delaware corporation,
incorporated in March 1998 for the purpose of becoming the holding company for Citizens Financial Services,
FSB (Bank). The Company is headquartered in Munster, Indiana. The Bank is a federal savings bank offering
a full range of financial services to customers who are primarily located in Northwest Indiana and the south
and southwest Chicagoland area. The Bank is principally engaged in the business of attracting deposits from
the general -public and using such deposits to originate residential and commercial mortgage loans as well as
other types of consumer and commercial loans.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts and transactions of the Company and its
wholly-owned subsidiary, the Bank. The Bank has the following subsidiaries: CFS Insurance Agency, Inc.,
CFS Investment Services, Inc., CFS Holdings, Ltd., and Suburban Mortgage Services, Inc. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain reclassifications have
been made to the 2002 and 2001 consolidated financial statements to conform to the 2003 presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts due from depository banks and federal funds sold. Generally,
federal funds sold are purchased and sold for one-day periods. ’

Securities

Management determines the classification of securities at the time of purchase. Debt securities are -
classified as held-to-maturity and carried at amortized cost if management has the intent and ability to hold
the securities to maturity. Securities not classified as held-to-maturity are classified as available-for-sale and
are carried at fair value, with the unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, included in accumulated other
comprehensive income. The Company has no trading account securities.

The amortized cost of debt securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts
to maturity, or in the case of mortgage-related securities, over the estimated life of the security using the level-
yield method. Such. amortization is included in interest income from securities. A decline in the market value
of any available-for-sale or held-to-maturity security below amortized cost that is deemed to be other-than-
temporary (OTT) results in a charge to earnings thereby establishing a new cost basis for the security. Gains
and losses on sales of securities are determined by specifically identifying the carrying amount of the security
sold.

Loans

Loans are carried at the principal amount outstanding, net of unearned income, including net deferred
loan origination and commitment fees, and portions charged off. Interest on loans is recorded as income as
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CFS BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

borrowers’ payments become due. Interest on loans is not accrued on loans which are 90 days or more past
due, or for loans which management believes, after giving consideration to economic and business conditions
and collection efforts, collection of interest is doubtful. Loans held-for-sale, if any, are carried at the lower of
aggregate cost or market value.

Loan Fees and Costs

Loan origination and commitment fees and direct loan origination costs are deferred and amortized as an
adjustment of the related loan’s yield. The Company is accreting these amounts over the contractual life of the
related loans. Remaining deferred loan fees and costs are reflected in income upon sale or repayment of the
loan.

Allowance for Losses on Loans

The allowance for losses on loans is maintained at a level believed adequate by management to absorb
losses inherent in the loan portfolio. Management’s determination of the adequacy of the allowance for losses
on loans is based on an evaluation of the portfolic and, among other things, the borrowers’ ability to repay,
estimated collateral values, prior loss experience, growth and composition of the portfolio, assessment of
individual problem loans, and current economic events in specific industries and regions including unemploy-
ment levels, regulatory guidance and general economic conditions. Determination of the allowance for losses
on loans is inherently subjective as it requires significant estimates, including the amounts and timing of
expected future cash flows on impaired loans, estimated losses on pools of homogeneous loans based on
historical loss experience, and consideration of current economic trends, all of which may be susceptible to
significant change. Loan losses are charged off against the allowance, while recoveries of amounts previously
charged off are credited to the allowance. A provision for losses on loans is expensed based on management’s
periodic evaluation of the factors previously mentioned. Future changes to the allowance may be necessary
based on changes in economic conditions, financial condition of borrowers, and loan loss experience.

Management considers a loan to be impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to
collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the note agreement, including principal and
interest. Loans subject to impairment valuation are defined as non-accrual and restructured loans exclusive of
homogeneous loans such as single-family residential and consumer loans. Specific allowances are established
for impaired loans for which the recorded investment in the loan exceeds the value of the loan. The value of
the loan is determined based on the fair value of the collateral, if the loan is collateral-dependent, at the
present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate or at the observable
market price of the impaired loan. Interest income on impaired loans is recorded when cash is received and
only if principal is considered to be fully collectible.

Commercial loans and loans secured by real estate are generally charged off to the extent principal and
interest due exceed the net realizable value of the collateral with the charge-off occurring when the loss is
reasonably quantifiable. Consumer loans are subject to mandatory charge-off at a specific date, typically at the
end of the month in which the loan becomes 120 days past due.

Real Estate Owned

Real estate owned is comprised of property acquired through a foreclosure proceeding or acceptance of a
deed in lieu of foreclosure. Real estate owned is recorded at fair value at the date of foreclosure. After
foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management, and the real estate is carried at the lower of
cost or fair value minus estimated costs to sell.
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CFS BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

Office Properties and Equipment

Office properties and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Provisions for
depreciation of office properties and equipment are computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the related assets. Long-lived assets are periodically evaluated for impairment.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding for the period. Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) shares not
committed to be released and Recognition and Retention Plan (RRP) shares which have not vested are not
considered to be outstanding. The basic EPS calculation excludes the dilutive effect of all common stock
equivalents. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue
common stock were exercised or converted into common stock. The Company’s potentially dilutive common
shares represent shares issuable under its stock option and RRP plans. Such common stock equivalents are
computed based on the treasury stock method using the average market price for the period.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for its stock options in accordance with Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (APB No. 25). Under APB No. 25, as the exercise price of
the Company’s employees’ stock options which have been granted equals the market price of the underlying
stock on the date of grant, no compensation expense is recognized. Compensation expense for shares granted
under the RRP is ratably recognized over the period of service, usually the vesting period, based on the fair
value of the stock on the date of grant.

Pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation, as amended {FAS No. 123), pro forma net income and pro forma earnings per share are
presented in the following table as if the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation plans
had been utilized. The effects of applying FAS No. 123 in this pro forma disclosure are not indicative of future
amounts.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in thousands
except per share data)

Net income (as 1eported) .. .......ovuiriuriree e, $3,538  $7,205 811,173
Stock-based compensation expense determined using fair value

method, netof tax. . ... ... . . . 680 763 679
Pro forma net INCOmME . . . o\ ottt $2,858  $6,442  $10,494
Basic earnings per share {as reported) ........... .. . ... ... . $031 $060 $ 030
Pro forma basic earnings per share .. .............. ... .. .. 0.25 0.54 0.75
Diluted earnings per share (as reported) ....................... 0.30 0.58 0.77
Pro forma diluted earnings per share .......................... 0.24 0.52 0.73

The fair value of the option grants for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was estimated
using the Black-Scholes option value model, with the following assumptions: dividend yield of approximately
3.0% in 2003, 2.8% in 2002 and 3.6% in 2001; expected volatility of 28.3% in 2003, 30.2% in 2002 and 30.2% in
2001; risk-free interest of 3.63%, 3.60% and 5.03%, for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively; and an original
expected life of ten years for all options granted.
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CFS BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded
options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. Option valuation models such as the Black-
Scholes require the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. The
Company’s stock options have characteristics significantly different from traded options and, inasmuch as
changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s
opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its
employee stock options.

For additional details on the Company’s stock-based compensation plans, see Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Income Taxes

The Company provides for deferred tax assets and liabilities, which represent the difference between the
financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws
applicable to periods when the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred taxes arise because certain
transactions affect the determination of taxable income for tax return purposes differently than for book
purposes. Current tax expense is provided based upon the actual tax liability incurred for tax return purposes.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is the total of reported net income and all other revenues, expenses, gains, and
losses that under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States are not included in net income.
The Company includes unrealized gains or losses, net of tax, on securities available-for-sale in other
comprehensive income.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are components of a business about which separate financial information is available
and that are evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision-maker in deciding how to allocate resources
and assessing performance. Public companies are required to report certain financial information about
operating segments in interim and annual financial statements. Senior management evaluates the operations of
the Company as one operating segment, community banking, due to the materiality of the banking operation
to the Company’s financial condition and results of operations, taken as a whole. As a result, separate segment
disclosures are not required. The Company offers the following products and services to external customers:
deposits, loans, mortgage-related services, investment services, and trust services. Revenues for the significant
products and services are disclosed separately in the consolidated statements of income. |

New Accounting Pronouncements

Guarantees

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), Guarantor’s Accounting
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others. This
interpretation expands the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its financial statements about its
obligations under certain guarantees and requires the guarantor to recognize.a liability for the fair value of an
obligation assumed under a guarantee. FIN 45 clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the
inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The
disclosure requirements of FIN 45 were effective for the Company as of December 31, 2002 and require
disclosure of the nature of the guarantee, the maximum potential amount of future payments that the
guarantor could be required to make under the guarantee, and the current amount of the liability, if any, for-
the guarantor’s obligations under the guarantee. The recognition requirements of FIN 45 are to be applied
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prospectively to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. Significant guarantees that have been
entered into by the Company are disclosed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company’s adoption of FIN 45 did not have a material impact on its results of operations, financial position, or
liquidity.

Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46), Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities. The objective of this interpretation is to provide guidance on how to identify a variable
interest entity (VIE) and determine when the assets, liabilities, noncontrolling interest, and results of
operations of a VIE need to be included in a company’s consolidated financial statements.

In December 2003, the FASB reissued FIN 46 with certain modifications and clarifications. Application
of this guidance was effective for interests in certain VIEs commonly referred to as special-purpose entities
(SPEs) as of December 31, 2003. Application for all other types of entities is required for periods ending after
March 15, 2004, unless previously applied. The Company does not expect the adoption of FIN 46 to have a
material impact on its results of operations, financial position, or liquidity because the Company has not
identified any VIEs. ‘

Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity

In May 2003, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 150, Accounting for Certain
Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity was issued, establishing standards for
how an issuer classifles and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and
equity. This statement requires that an issuer classify certain financial instruments, which may previously have
been classified as equity, as a liability. This generally includes financial instruments which either 1) require
mandatory redemption at a specified time other than upon liquidation or termination of the entity, 2) include
an obligation to either repurchase the issuer’s equity shares or is indexed to such an obligation and which may
require settlement in cash or 3) require the issuance of a variable number of the issuer’s shares based on a
monetary amount which is generally unrelated to the value of those shares. The Statement was effective for
the Company as of July 1, 2003 and adoption did not have a material impact on the Company’s accounting
and reporting.
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2. Securities

The amortized cost of securities available-for-sale and their fair values are as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

(Dollars in thousands)

At December 31, 2003:
Agency securities, corporate bonds, and

commercial paper.................... ... $132,127 $ 692 $ — $132,819
Participation certificates and collateralized

mortgage obligations ............. .. ... .. 108,468 888 255 109,101
Real estate mortgage investment conduits. . . . . 75,245 626 73 75,798
Trust preferred securities................... ' 4934 — 267 4,667
Equity securities ............c.oveinnnn.. 5,657 178 431 5,404

$326,431 $2,384 $1,026 $327,789

At December 31, 2002:
Callable agency securities, corporate bonds,

and commercial paper ................... $ 30,767 $ 320 $ — $ 31,087
Participation certificates and collateralized

mortgage obligations .................... 64,084 820 136 64,768
Real estate mortgage investment conduits. .. .. 231,752 862 744 231,870
Trust preferred securities................... 4,931 — 531 4,400

Equity securities ... ... ... ... i, 4,400 83 906 3,571
‘ $335,934 $2,085 $2,317 $335,702

At December 31, 2002 the Company had $15.3 million in callable agency securities which had call
features at amounts not less than par and were not purchased with significant premiums or discounts.

The Company had no held-to-maturity securities as of December 31, 2003. The amortized cost of
securities held-to-maturity and their fair values at December 31, 2002 are below.

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(Dollars in thousands)
At December 31, 2002:

Participation certificates and collateralized
mortgage obligations . ..................... $20,651 $520 $10 $21,161

816
$21,977

Real estate mortgage investment conduits . .. . .. 751 65
$21,402 $585

&
—
<o
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The following table presents the period of time for gross unrealized losses and fair value by investment
category at December 31, 2003.

Less than 12 months 12 months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

(Dollars in thousands)
Participation certificates and

collateralized mortgage obligations ..  $34,371 $255 $ — $ — $34,371 $ 255
Real estate mortgage investment

conduits . ... . 5,063 73 — — 5,063 73
Trust preferred securities . ........... — — 4,667 267 4,667 267
Equity securities ................... 49 - 1 2,571 430 2,620 431

$39,483 $329 $7,238 $697 $46,721 $1,026

If management determines that an investment experienced an other-than-temporary (OTT) decline in
value, the loss must then be recognized in the income statement. Any security gains when the same securities
recover in value cannot be recognized in income. Instead, the recovery is recorded as an unrealized gain (as
other comprehensive income in stockholders” equity) and not recognized in income until the security is
ultimately sold. Indications of OTT declines in value include prolonged periods of consistent unrealized losses
or deterioration in the financial condition or near-term prospects of the issuer. Management evaluates its
investments for OTT declines in value on an individual basis.

Management does not believe any individual unrealized loss as of December 31, 2003 represents an OTT
impairment. The unrealized losses reported for participation certificates, collateralized mortgage obligations,
and real estate mortgage investment conduits are, in their entirety, on securities issued by government-
sponsored entities including the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), the Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation (Freddie Mac) and the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA) and
are attributable to changes in interest rates and the current low interest rate environment.

The unrealized losses associated with the trust preferred securities relate to a single issue. This security is
current in its payments, and there has been no history of deferred payments.

Unrealized losses in equity securities relate to a variety of issues which are not related to each other. One
security was determined to be impaired during the third quarter of 2003, and the Company recorded a
$120,000 ($73,000 net of tax) write-down on September 30, 2003 related to this security. No other securities
were deemed to be impaired at December 31, 2003.

Management monitors the Company’s investments with gross unrealized losses daily. The Company has
the intent to recover the costs associated with these securities but can give no assurance that losses will not be
realized if it is deemed that there will be a future economic benefit in realizing the loss.
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The amortized cost and fair value of securities at December 31, 2003, by contractual maturity, are shown
in the table below. Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have
the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties. Securities not due at a
single maturity date are shown separately.

Available-for-Sale

Amortized Cost Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands)

Due in one year or 1ess .. ...t itiieiie $ 5,773 $ 5,773
Due after one year through five years .......................... 126,354 127,046
Due after more than ten years ...........oiiviiiierinnernnn.. 4,934 4,667
Participation certificates and collateralized mortgage obligations . . . . 108,468 109,101
Real estate mortgage investment conduits ...................... 75,245 75,798
Equity securities . . ............... e 5,657 5,404
$326,431 $327,789

For the year ended December 31, 2003, gross gains and gross losses of $469,000 ($299,000 net of taxes)
and $1,000 ($600 net of taxes), respectively, were recorded from sales of available-for-sale securities. The
Company also recorded a realized loss of $120,000 ($73,000 net of tax) related to OTT impairment as
discussed previously.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, gross gains and gross losses of $740,000 ($524,000 net of taxes)
and $441,000 ($312,000 net of taxes), respectively, were recorded from sales of available-for-sale securities.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, gross gains and gross losses of $739,000 ($517,000 net of taxes)
and $140,000 ($98,000 net of taxes), respectively, were recorded from sales of available-for-sale securities.

During 2003, the Company sold $15.3 million of held-to-maturity mortgage-backed securities resulting in
gross gains of $1.4 million ($874,000 net of tax). Market conditions were deemed optimal for selling these
securities and allowed the Company to reinvest the proceeds into structures with anticipated higher total
returns.

In conjunction with the sale of the above held-to-maturity securities, the Company reclassified the
remaining held-to-maturity portfolio totaling $3.2 million to available-for-sale as a reflection of its intent to
hold all investments as available-for-sale. The transfer of these securities to available-for-sale resulted in
$61,000 of additional unrealized gains as of December 31, 2003.
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3. Loans Receivable

Loans receivable consist of the following:

December 31,
2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

First mortgage loans: »
Single-family residential .......... ... .. ... ... .. .. . $317,645  $386,050

Multi-family residential .. .......... .. .. e 87,888 71,170
Commercial real estate .. ... ... .. ... ... . . . 340,807 271,426
Construction and land development:
Single-family residential .............. ... .. ... ... . ... 16,488 12,118
Multi-family residential . . ... ... ... 73,197 63,893
Commercial real estate . ............ i, 92,848 88,951
Home equity loans......... ... i 71,360 45,106
Other loans:
Commercial .. ... . 36,222 40,034
CoOnSUMET . . oot i e e 2,422 2,610
Undisbursed portion of loan proceeds ........ ... ... ... (54,076)  (39,704)
Net deferred yield adjustments ........... ... ... ... ... ... ..., . (2,807) (2,632)
981,994 939,022
Allowance forlosses on loans . ...t 10,453 8,674
Loans receivable, net . ... ... $971,541  $930,348

Thie Bank’s lending activities have been concentrated primarily within its immediate geographic area as
well as the geographic Midwest. The Bank generally requires collateral on loans and loan-to-value ratios of no
greater than 80%.

At December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company serviced $10.8 million, $16.8 million and
$21.1 million, respectively, of loans for others.
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Activity in the allowance for losses on loans is summarized as follows: ;
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at beginning of year . ........ ... ... o $ 8674 § 7662 $7,187
Provision for losses onloans ........... .. v, 2,326 1,956 1,150
Charge-offs .................. R (760)  (1,183) (855)
RECOVEIIES . .ottt i e e e e 213 239 180
Balance atend of year ......... ... ... ... i $10,453 $ 8,674  $7,662
December 31,
2003 2002
(Dollars in
thousands)
Impaired loans:
With a valuation TeServe. . ... ...ttt e $4,306  $3,853
No valuation reserve required ... ...... ..ot 387 2,460
Total impaired 10ans . . ... . $4,693 $6,313
Valuation reserve relating to impaired loans . .......................... $ 798 $ 150
Average impaired loans during year .. ....... . . . i 4,745 3,949
4. Office Properties and Equipment
Office properties and equipment are summarized as follows:
Estimated December 31,
Useful Lives 2003 2002
(Dollars in
thousands)
Cost:
Land . ... $ 2202 § 1,921
Buildings ........ ... ... . 30-40 years . 15,313 15,341
Leasehold improvements . ................... .... Over term of lease 1,511 2,310
Furniture and equipment . .......... ... ... ... 3-15 years 12,421 12,844
Construction in progress. ........oovveeerinernn.. 196 257
31,645 32,673
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization. . . . 17,907 18,838

$13,738  §13,835

Depreciation expense charged to operations in 2003, 2002 and 2001, approximated $1.4 million,
$1.7 million and $1.8 million, respectively.
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Operating Leases

At December 31, 2003, the Company and .its subsidiaries were obligated under certain noncancelable
operating leases for premises and equipment, which expire at various dates throughout the year 2008. Many of
these leases contain renewal options, and certain leases provide options to purchase the leased property during
or at the expiration of the lease period at specific prices. Some leases contain escalation clauses calling for
rentals to be adjusted for increased real estate taxes and other operating expenses, or proportionately adjusted
for increases in the consumer or other price indices. The following summary reflects the future minimum
rental payments, by year, required under operating leases that, as of December 31, 2003, have initial or
remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year (dollars in thousands).

Year ended December 31:

2004 .. $ 562
2005 .. 546
2006 ... 459

22007 o 215
2008 ...\ 127

$1,909

Rental expense charged to operations in 2003, 2002 and 2001, amounted to approximately $405,000,
$605,000 and $640,000, respectively, including amounts paid under short-term cancelable leases.

5. Accrued Interest Receivable

Accrued interest receivable consists of the following:

December 31,

2003 2002

{Dollars in thousands)
U.S. government agency securities and other investments ............. $1,801 $ 349
Participation certificates and collateralized mortgage obligations ... ..... 4717 525
'Real estate mortgage investment conduits. . ...... ..o i 308 1,187
Loans receivable . .. ..o 4,037 4,536
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6. Deposits

Deposits and interest rate data are summarized as follows:

December 31,
2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Checking accounts:

Noninterest-bearing . . .........ouuuirurmrereiiinneeaiinnn. $ 36,358 $ 31,318
Interest-bearing. . . ..o vttt e 91,618 90,905
Total checking accounts .. ...........iiiiriiiiiin i, 127,976 122,223
Savings accounts:
SAVINGS ACCOUNTS. . v\ttt et e i 192,778 197,530
Individual retirement aCCOUnts .. ...ttt i 11,843 14,840
Total savings aCCOUNLS . . .. .ottt e i 204,621 212,370
Money market acCounts. . . ... e 123,851 121,693
Certificate of deposit accounts:
Less than one year .. ... ..ot i i 421,155 377,212
One to tWO YEAIS ..ttt e 55,816 57,119
Two to three years ... ...t e e 20,148 34,367
Three to four years. . ... ..o e 15,429 12,248
Fourtofive years .. ... ... . o 4,847 13,980
Greater than five years. . ... oot i 1,526 2,649
Total certificate of deposit accounts.......... ... ... iiiiiii.. 518,921 497,575
Accrued interest payable . ...... ... ... . 386 361

$975,755  $954,222

Weighted-average cost of deposits ............ .. ..o, 1.69% 2.32%

Interest expense on deposits consists of the following:
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)
Checking accounts ...........couiiiiinie i $ 430 $ 562 $ L1l
Savings aCCOUNTS . . ..ottt e 1,347 2,768 4,591
Money market accounts .. ...ttt 1,744 2,173 2,187
Certificates of deposit........ .. ..o i 13,755 20,214 32,958

$17,276  $25,717  $40,847

The aggregate amount of deposits in denominations of greater than one hundred thousand dollars was
$232.6 million and $215.0 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Deposits in excess of one
hundred thousand dollars generally are not federally insured.
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7. Borrowed Money

Borrowed money consists of the following:
December 31,

2003 2002
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Rate Amount Rate Amount

(Dollars in thousands)
Secured advances from FHLB — Indianapolis: '

Maturing in 2003 — fixed-rate ................ —% $ — 522%  $ 30,748
Maturing in 2010 — fixed-rate . . .............. 5.92 400,000 5.92 400,000
Maturing in 2014 — fixed-rate . . .............. 6.71 1,244 6.71 1,259
Maturing in 2018 — fixed-rate ................ 5.54 2,911 5.54 2,954
Maturing in 2019 — fixed-rate . .. ............. 6.32 7,835 6.32 7,970
Secured advances from FHLB — Chicago:
Maturing in 2008 — fixed-rate ................ 5.26 6,500 5.26 6,500
$418,490 $449,431
Weighted-average interest rate . . ................ 5.92% 5.87%

Advances totaling $400.0 million with final maturities in 2010 contain call dates in 2004. Advances
totaling $6.5 million with final maturities in 2008 contain call dates in 2004.

The advances can be prepaid subject to a substantial penalty which is calculated based on the present
value of the future cash flows at current interest rates. At December 31, 2003, the Company estimated the
prepayment penalty at $54.7 million to pay off the aggregate advances. Should interest rates increase, the
Company expects the estimated prepayment penalty to decrease.

Pursuant to collateral agreements with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Indianapolis (FHLB-IN),
advances are secured by the following assets (dollars in thousands):

Description of Collateral Amount Pledged
FHLB-IN StOCK. . oottt e $ 26,441
First mortgage 1oans . ...ttt 317,826
Mortgage-backed securities .. ...... ..ot 191,389
- FHLB-IN time deposits . . ... oottt 6,000
$541,656

Pursuant to collateral agreements with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicage (FHLB-C), advances
are secured by stock in the FHLB-C, FHLB corporate notes with a carrying value of $15.0 million and certain
mortgage-backed securities having a carrying value of $2.8 million.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had two lines of credit with a maximum of $25.0 million and
$15.0 million, respectively, in unsecured overnight federal funds at the market rate for the purchase of federal
funds at the time of request. The line was not used in 2003.

The Company enters into sales of securities under agreements to repurchase (repurchase agreements).
These repurchase agreements are treated as financings, and the obligations to repurchase securities sold are
reflected as borrowed funds in the consolidated statements of condition. The securities underlying these
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repurchase agreements continue to be reflected as assets of the Company. There were no securities sold under
agreements to repurchase at December 31, 2003 or December 31, 2002.

Interest expense on borrowed money is summarized as follows:
Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)
Advances from FHLBs ............. ... . ... . ... il $26,402  $27,351  $28,366
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase ............... — — 1,075

$26,402  $27,351  $29,441

8. Income Taxes

The income tax provision consists of the following:

Year ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)

Current tax expense:

Federal .. ... . i e $1,046 $ 4,236 $4,454

S o v et e 158 317 591
Deferred tax expense benefit:

Federal .. ... ..o e (433)  (1,423) (262)

S . et (170) (159) 8

$ 601 $ 2971 84,791

A reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate to the effective income tax rate is as follows:
Year ended December 31,

_2003 2002 200
STATUTOTY TALE . .\ v oot e ettt e et et e ettt e et 350% 35.0%  35.0%
) F L C= ¥ S (0.3) 1.8 38
Bank-owned life insurance .. ......... oot (12.2) (5.2) (3.3)
O her . e (8.0) (24) (5.5)

Effectiverate ........ ..o 14.5%  29.2%  30.0%
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Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance forlosses on loans . ... i $4,112 $3,558
Deferred compensation ... ... ... i 895 681
Deferred loan fees ... ... .. ... .. . 1,238 1,129
Other . ... — 18
6,245 5,386
Deferred tax liabilities:
Excess tax accumulated provision for losses over base year ............ —_ 300
Depreciation . ... ...t 98 210
FHLB stock dividends . ........................... S 689 182
O her . o e 474 313
1,261 1,005
Net deferred tax asset . ... .. i e 4,984 4,381
Tax effect of adjustment related to unrealized (appreciation) depreciation
on available-for-sale securities ........... ... . ... il (450) 132
Net deferred tax assets including adjustments . ...... ... ... . ... ..., $4,534 $4,513

The Bank has qualified under provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, which permitted it to deduct from
taxable income an allowance for bad debts, which differs from the provision for such losses charged to income.
Accordingly, retained income at December 31, 2003 includes approximately $12.5 million, for which no
provision for income taxes has been made. If in the future this portion of retained income is distributed, or the
Bank no longer qualifies as a bank for tax purposes, income taxes may be imposed at the then applicable rates.
If income taxes had been provided, the deferred tax liability would have been approximately $4.9 million.

9. Regulatory Capital

The principal source of cash flow for the Company is dividends from the Bank. Various federal banking
regulations and capital guidelines limit the amount of dividends that may be paid to the Company by the
Bank. Future payment of dividends by the Bank is dependent upon individual regulatory capital requirements
and levels of profitability.

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking
agencies. Failure to meet minimum requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possible additional
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank’s
financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets,
liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s
capital amounts and classification are also subject to quantitative judgments by the regulators about
components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain
minimum amounts and ratios, set forth in the table below of the total risk-based, tangible, and core capital, as
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defined in the regulations. As of December 31, 2003, the Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which
it is subject.

As of December 31, 2003, the most recent notification from the OTS categorized the Bank as “weli-
capitalized” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as “well-
capitalized,” the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, tangible, and core ratios as set forth in the
following table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have
changed the institution’s category. At December 31, 2003, adjusted total assets were $1.55 billion and risk-
weighted assets were $1.09 billion.

To Be Well-Capitalized
Under Prompt

For Capital Corrective Action
Actual Adequacy Purposes Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

(Dollars in thousands)

As of December 31, 2003:

Risk-based................. $141,974 13.04% $87,083 >8.00% $108,854 >10.00%

Tangible. .................. 131,521 8.46 23,307 >1.50 31,076 >2.00

Core....o.ovviiii i 131,521 8.46 62,152 >4.00 77,690 >5.00
As of December 31, 2002:

Risk-based................. $140,233 13.97% $80,310 >8.00% $100,388 >10.00%

Tangible................... 131,559 8.42 23,435 >1.50 31,246 >2.00

Core..ovviiiiii 131,559 8.42 62,492 >4.00 78,116 >35.00

10. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company participates in an industry-wide, multi-employer, defined benefit pension plan, which
covers all full-time employees who have attained at least 21 years of age and completed one year of service.
Calculations to determine full-funding status are made annually as of June 30. Pension expense for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $1.6 million, $889,000 and $134,000, respectively. Asset and
plan benefit information is not available for participating associations on an individual basis.

The Retirement Plan benefits were frozen effective March 1, 2003. Although no further benefits will
accrue while the freeze remains in place, the freeze does not reduce the benefits accrued to date. Even though
the benefits are frozen, the Company will review the funding level and will continue to make necessary
contributions to keep the plan adequately funded.

The Company also participates in a single-employer defined contribution plan, which qualifies under
section 401 (k) of the Internal Revenue Code. Participation eligibility in this plan is substantially the same as
in the aforementioned defined benefit pension plan. This plan called for a discretionary contribution within
specified limits and a matching Company contribution equal to a specified percentage of employee
contributions. Plan expense for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was approximately
$230,000, $252,000 and $251,000, respectively.

The Company provides supplemental retirement benefits for certain senior officers in the form of
payments upon retirement, death, or disability. The annual benefit is based on actuarial computations of
existing plans without imposing Internal Revenue Service limits. Expenses related to this plan for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, were $29,000, $87,000 and $97,000, respectively.
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11. Stock-Based Benefit Plans

In 1998, the Company established an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) for the employees of the
Company and the Bank. The ESOP is a qualifying pension plan under Internal Revenue Service guidelines. It
covers all full-time employees who have attained at least 21 years of age and completed one year of service.
Upon formation, the ESOP borrowed $14.3 million from the Company and purchased 1,428,300 shares of
common stock. Expense is recognized based on the fair value (average stock price) of shares scheduled to be
released from the ESOP trust. One-twelfth of the shares are scheduled to be released each year as one-twelfth
of the loan (principal and interest) is scheduled to be repaid each year. Dividends on both allocated and
unallocated shares are used to pay down the loan. Expense related to this ESOP for the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $1.7 million, $1.7 million and $1.5 million, respectively. ESOP shares
not committed to be released are not considered outstanding for purposes of computing EPS.

The following table summarizes shares of Company common stock held by the ESOP:

December 31,

2003 2002

(Dollars in thousands)
Shares allocated to participants ............ ... ovii.. 579,837 533,565
Unallocated and unearned shares ... ....................... 715,680 835,645
1,295,517 1,369,210
Fair value of unearned ESOP shares. ...................... $10,592 $11,950

The Company also provides supplemental retirement benefits for certain senior officers under the ESOP.
This benefit is also based on computations for the existing plan exclusive of Internal Revenue Service limits.
Expenses related to this plan for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, were $72,000, $86,000
and $59,000, respectively.

In February 1999, the Company, with sharcholder approval, established the RRP, which is a stock-based
incentive plan, and a stock option plan. The Bank contributed $7.5 million to the RRP to purchase a total of
714,150 shares of Company common stock. On April 1, 1999, the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors granted 707,000 shares under this plan to 92 participants. On April 1, 2003, the Compensation
Committee also granted 21,000 shares to five participants.

The following table summarizes shares of Company’s common stock held by the RRP at December 31,
2003:

Shares purchased by the plan ........... ... ... i 714,150
Shares granted in 1999 .. .. ... .. . e (707,000)
Shares forfeited in 1999 . . ... .. . . 2,000
Shares forfeited in 2000 . ... ... . 6,800
Shares forfeited in 2001 .. .. ... ... 2,700
Shares forfeited in 2002 . ... ... 2,600
Shares granted in 2003 . .. ... ... .. (21,000)
Shares forfeited in 2003 . ... .. ... . 800
Shares available for grant December 31,2003 ......................... 1,050

The shares granted in the RRP vest to the participants at the rate of 20% per year. As a result, expense for
this plan is being recorded over a 60-month peried and is based on the market value of the Company’s stock as
of the date of grant. The remaining unamortized cost of the RRP is reflected as a reduction in stockholders’
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equity. Expenses under this plan for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $1.3 million,
$1.5 million and $1.4 million, respectively.

The Company has stock option plans under which shares of Company common stock are reserved for the
grant of both incentive and nonincentive stock options to directors, officers, and employees. The dates the
options are first exercisable and expire are determined by the Compensation Committee. The exercise price of
the options is equal to the fair market value of the common stock on the grant date.

The following is a combined analysis of the stock option activity for each of the three years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Number of Exercise Price
Shares Per Share
(In thousands)
Outstanding at January 1,2001 .............................. 1,574 $ 1.85-$13.83
Granted .. ....... ... 308 11.00 - 14.46
EXercised . .. ..ot (70) 1.85- 13.09
Forfeited ....... . .o (40) 8.44 - 13.83
Outstanding at December 31,2000 ....... ... ... ... ......... 1,772 1.85- 14.46
Granted . ... . 159 13.43- 14.24
Exercised ... ... . (99) 1.85- 11.25
Forfeited ... ... e (34) 8.44 - 14.24
Outstanding at December 31,2002 ........................... 1,798 421 - 14.46
Granted . ... . . 280 13.99- 14.76
EXErcised . ...\t e (185) 421 - 14.00
Forfeited . ... oo\t (79) 8.19- 14.25
Outstanding at December 31,2003 ........................... 1,314 $ 4.78 -3%14.76

At December 31, 2003, 1,039,539 stock options were exercisable with a range in exercise price from $4.78
to $14.46. The weighted-average remaining contractual life of the outstanding options was 6.0 years and the
average exercise price was $10.84. At December 31, 2003, there were 428,195 shares available for future
grants.
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12. Other Comprehensive Income

The related income tax effect and reclassification adjustments to the components of other comprehensive
income for the periods indicated are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
- (Dollars in thousands)

Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising during the period: :
Unrealized net gains (losses) ...........cciiiiiiiin... $ 3371 $(3,838) $ 9,588

Related tax (expense) benefit......................... ... (1,241) 1,230 (3,426)

Net...... P .. 2,130 (2,608) 6,162
Less: reclassification adjustment for net gains realized during the

period:

Realized net gains. ............. .. i, 1,780 299 599

Related tax expense . ...t (681) {65) (180)

Nt et 1,099 234 419
Total other comprehensive income (loss) .................... $ 1,031 $(2,842) § 5,743

13. Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Year ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands except per share data)

Net NCOME . . oottt e $ 3,538 $ 7,205  § 11,173
Average common shares outstanding . .. . . e ...... 11,289,254 12,000,589 14,038,096
Common share equivalents — assuming exercise of ,

dilutive stock options . .............. ... ..ol 413,381 491,560 415,248
Average common shares and common share :

equivalents outstanding .......... S SR 11,702,635 12,492,149 14,453,344
Basic earnings per share ...................cc....... $ 031 $ 060 $ 080

Diluted earnings per share . ......... ... ... ... ... .. 0.30 0.58 0.77
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14. Commitments

December 31,
2003 2002
{Dollars in thousands)

Type of commitment
To originate loans on residential property:

Fixed rates (6.50% in 2003 and 6.25% - 6.75% in 2002) ............... $ 1,104 § 5,380

Variable rates .. ...t e e 28,334 5,762
To originate foans on nonresidential property:

Fixed rates (5.75% - 7.25% in 2003 and 6.75% - 7.50% in 2002) ........ 6,834 7,093

Variable rates . ... .o 3,401 23,608
To purchase loans on nonresidential property:

Variable rates .. ..o — 2,500
To originate commercial loans:

Fixed rates (5.90% -9.00% in 2002) .. ........ i, — 1,507

Variable rates .. .. e 1,139 1,825
To purchase commercial loans:

Variable rates . ... ... — 10,000
Unused lines of credit ... .. ... . 0 i 85,837 44,329
Letters of credit:

Secured by cash ........... i 965 1,406

Real estate . ....... i 5,594 5,285

Other — Credit enhancements . .............. .ot 44,149 49,486

Credit enhancements are letter of credit facilities related to the issuance by municipalities of taxable and
nontaxable revenue bonds. The proceeds from the sale of such bonds are loaned to for-profit and not-for-profit
companies for economic development projects. In order for the bonds to receive a triple-A rating, and thus a
lower interest rate, the FHLB-IN issues, in favor of the bond trustee, an Irrevocable Direct Pay Letter of
Credit (Letter of Credit) for the account of the Bank. Since the Bank, in accordance with the terms and
conditions of a Reimbursement Agreement between the FHLB-IN and the Bank, would be required to
reimburse the FHLB-IN for draws against the Letter of Credit, these facilities are analyzed, appraised,
secured by real estate mortgages, and monitored as if the Bank funded the project initially.

The Bank estimates that substantially all commitments will be funded or will expire within one year.
Letters of credit expire at various times through 2008.
15. Related Party Disclosures

The Company has no material related party transactions which would require disclosure. In compliance
with applicable banking regulations, the Company may extend credit to certain officers and directors of the
Company and its subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business under substantially the same terms as
comparable third-party lending arrangements.

16. Legal Proceedings

In 1983, with the assistance of the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation (FSLIC) as set
forth in an assistance agreement (Assistance Agreement), the Bank acquired First Federal Savings and Loan
Association of East Chicago, East Chicago, Indiana (East Chicago Savings), and Gary Federal Savings and
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Loan Association, Gary, Indiana (Gary Federal). The FSLIC-assisted supervisory acquisitions of East
Chicago Savings and Gary Federal were accounted for using the purchase method of accounting which
resulted in supervisory goodwill (the excess of cost over the fair value of net assets acquired), an intangible
asset, of $52.9 million, compared to $40.2 million of goodwill as reported on a generally accepted accounting
principles basis. Such goodwill was included in the Bank’s regulatory capital. The Assistance Agreement
relating to the Bank’s acquisitions of East Chicago Savings and Gary Federal provided for the inclusion of
supervisory goodwill as an asset on the Bank’s balance sheet, to be amortized over 35 years for regulatory
purposes and includable in regulatory capital. Pursuant to the regulations adopted by the OTS to implement
the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 (FIRREA), the regulatory capital
requirement for federal savings banks was increased and the amount of supervisory goodwill that could be
included in regulatory capital decreased significantly. At September 30, 1989, the Bank had approximately
$26.0 million of remaining supervisory goodwill. However, even excluding supervisory goodwill, the Bank
exceeded the capital requirements of FIRREA at such date.

On May 13, 1993, the Bank filed suit against the U.S. government seeking damages and/or other
appropriate relief on the grounds, among others, that the government had breached the terms of the
Assistance Agreement. The suit is pending in the United States Court of Federal Claims and is titled Citizens
Financial Services, FSB, v. United States (Case No. 93-306-C). The Bank was granted summary judgment on
its breach of contract claim, leaving for trial the issue of damages. The case is currently scheduled for trial in
June 2004.

The Bank is secking damages of more than $20.0 million based on the report of its expert witness. The
Government has contended that the Bank suffered no compensable damage as a result of the breach. The
Bank is unable to predict the outcome of its claim against the United States and the amount of damages that
may be awarded to the Bank, if any, in the event that a judgment is rendered in the Bank’s favor.
Consequenily, no assurances can be given as to the results of this claim or the timing of any proceedings in
relation thereto. The cost, including attorneys’ fees, experts’ fees, and related expenses of the litigation was
approximately $183,000, $258,000 and $436,000 in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Other than the above-referenced litigation, the Company is involved in routine legal proceedings
occurring in the ordinary course of business, which, in the aggregate, are believed to be immaterial to the
financial condition of the Company.

17. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether. or not recognized in the
consolidated statement of condition, for which it is practicable to estimate their value, is summarized below.
In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or
other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the
discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. In that regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be
substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, could not be realized in immediate
settlement of the instrument. '

The fair value disclosure of certain financial instruments and all nonfinancial instruments is not required.

Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the
Company.
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The carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments consist of the following:
December 31,
2003 2002

Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value

{Dollars in thousands)

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents ............. $ 178213 § 178,213 § 210,141 $ 210,141
Securities available-for-sale............. 327,789 327,789 335,702 335,702
Securities held-to-maturity ............. — —_— 21,402 21,977
Loans receivable, net of allowance for ‘

lossesonloans ..................... 971,541 1,004,007 930,348 970,158
Investment in Bank-owned life insurance 31,926 31,926 31,009 31,009
Total financial assets .................. $1,509,469  $1,541,935  $1,528,602  $1,568,987
Financial Liabilities .
Deposits. . ... $ 975,755 $§ 983368 § 954,222 § 966,542
Borrowed money ..................... 418,490 474,930 449,431 520,821
Total financial liabilities ............... $1,394,245  $1,458,298  $1,403,653  $1,487,363

Securities

Fair values for securities are based on the lower of quotes receivéd from third-party brokers.

Loans Receivable

The Company determined that for both variable-rate and fixed-rate loans, fair values are estimated using
discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms and
collateral to borrowers of similar credit quality.

Investment In Bank-Owned Life Insurance

The fair value of Bank-owned life insurance is equal to its cash surrender value.

Deposit Liabilities

The fair value of demand deposits, savings accounts, and money market deposits is the amount payable
on demand at the reporting date. The fair value of fixed-maturity certificates of deposit is estimated by
discounting the future cash flows using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Borrowed Money

The fair value of borrowed money is estimated based on rates currently available to the Company for debt
with similar terms and remaining maturities.

The fair value of the Company’s off-balance sheet instruments is nominal.

74




CFS BANCORP, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

18. Condensed Parent Company Financial Statements

The tables on the following pages represent the condensed statement of financial condition as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002 and condensed statement of income and cash flows for the three years ended
December 31, 2003 for CFS Bancorp, Inc., the parent company.

. Condensed Statements of Condition
{Parent Company Only)

December 31,
2003 2002
(Dollars in thousands)

Assets
Cashonhand andinbanks ......... ... . i, $ 2594 § 11,527
Securities available-for-sale. . ... ... .. ... . i 7,374 6,415
Investment in subsidiary .. ........ ... i 134,269 132,289
Mortgage 10ans . . ... e 2,421 1,617
Loan receivable from ESOP . ...... ... ... i 8,580 9,638
Accrued interest receivable. ............ .. ... e 32 47
Prepaid expenses and other assets .............coviviiiiinniiio... 2,236 2,178
Total ASSeTS . .\ttt e $ 157,506 § 163,711
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Liabilities:
Accrued taxes and other liabilities . ......... ... ... .. ... ... ... .. $ 1,553 $ 3,049
Stockholders’ equity:
Common StOCK . ... oot 234 234
Additional paid-in capital ............ ... .. . . 189,879 189,786
Retained earnings. . ... ..o 98,872 97,108
Treasury stock, at cost. .. ... e (132,741)  (125,650)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax ................ (291) - (8l6)
Total stockholders’” equity ......... oo 155,953 160,662
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ..................... ... ... $ 157,506 $ 163,711
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Condensed Statements of Income

(Parent Company Only)

Year ended December 31,

2002 2001

(Dollars in thousands)

$12,500  $10,000
1,682 3,283

200 391
299 599
— 61

(1,190)  (1,259)

13,491 13,075
(288)  (924)

13,203 12,151

(5998)  (978)

2003

Dividends from subsidiary ........... ... .. ... .. L $ 4,344
Interest INCOME . ... .. it e 1,221
Dividend income . ........ . ... e 181
Net (loss) gain on sale of investments....................... (1)
Other income. . .. ..ot e —
Non-interest €Xpense . . ... ...c..ueiierrineeeeea., (1,202)
Net income before income taxes and equity in earnings of

subsidiary . ... . L 5,033
Income tax eXpense ............uiiiiiiiiii (15)
Net income before equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary 5,018
Equity in undistributed dividends in excess of earnings of

SUBSIAIArY . ... (1,480)
NeEt IICOME .« vttt et e e e e e $ 3,538

$ 7,205 $11,173
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

(Parent Company Only)

Year ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)

Operating activities:
Net INCOME ..ottt e e $ 3,538 $ 7,205 $11,173

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used by
operating activities: ‘

Amortization/accretion of premiums/discounts ....... (3) (710) (646)
Equity in undistributed earnings of the Bank ........... 1,480 5,998 978
Net loss (gain) on sale of available-for-sale investment
SECUIHES ... v it e 11 (299) (599)
Decrease in interest receivable ....................... 15 71 214
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets (58) (1,196) 1,609
(Decrease) increase in other liabilities. ................ (1,832) 2,221 (611)
Net cash provided by operating activities................... 3,151 13,290 12,118

Investing activities:
Available-for-sale securities:

Purchases........ ... . i (500) (45) (24,173)
Repayments .......... i . 35 200 919
Sales ... 381 13,002 62,346
* Net loan originations and principal payment on loans .. .... 254 {624) 891
Net cash provided by investing activities . .................. 170 12,533 39,983
Financing activities: ,
Purchase of treasury stock . ......... ... ... oL, (9,273) (14,626) (43,634)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options .................. 1,732 858 432
Dividends paid on common stock . ...................... (4,713) (4,642)  (5,143)
Net cash used by financing activities ...................... (12,254)  (18,410) (48,345)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ........... (8,933) 7,413 3,756
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ............. 11,527 4,114 358
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year .................. $ 2594 $ 11,527 $ 4,114

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the chief executive officer and

chief financial officer, the Company has evaluated the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (Exchange Act)) as
of December 31, 2003.
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Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange
Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reportéd, within the time periods specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation,
controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by the Company in the
reports that it files under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to management, including the
chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information required herein is incorporated by reference from the section of the Registrant’s Proxy
Statement which is expected to be filed on or about March 26, 2004 (Proxy Statement) titled Information
With Respect to Nominees for Director, Continuing Directors and Executive Officers. Information related to
the Company’s Code of Conduct and Ethics is incorporated by reference from page 3 of Item 1 of the
Form 10-K. :

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required herein is incorporated by reference from the section of the Registrant’s Proxy
Statement titled Executive Compensation.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.

The information required herein by Item 403 of Regulation S-K is incorporated by reference from the
section of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement titled Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock by Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management.

Equity Compensation Plan Information. The following table sets forth certain information for all equity
compensation plans and individual compensation arrangements (whether with employees or non-employees,
such as directors), in effect as of December 31, 2003.

Number of Shares Remaining
Number of Shares to be Issued Weighted-Average  Available for Future Issuance
Upon the Exercise of Qutstanding  Exercise Price of  (Excluding Shares Reflected
Plan Category Options, Warrants and Rights  Qutstanding Options in the First Column)

Equity Compensation Plans Approved
by Security Holders . .............. 1,942,329 - $10.85 428,195

Equity Compensation Plans Not .
Approved by Security Holders .. . . .. — — —

Total ... 1,942,329 $10.85 428,195

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information required herein is incorporated by reference from the section of the Registrant’s Proxy
Statement titled Transactions with Certain Related Persons.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required herein is incorporated by reference from the section of the Registrant’s Proxy
Statement titled Auditor Fees and Expenses.
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PART IV

15.  Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K.
(a) Document filed as part of this Report.

(1) All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the SEC
are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or notes thereto.

(2) (a) The following exhibits are filed with the SEC as part of this Form 10-K, and this list includes
the Exhibit Index. -

Certificate of Incorporation of CFS Bancorp, Inc.*

Bylaws of CFS Bancorp, Inc.*

Form of Stock Certificate of CFS Bancorp, Inc.*

Employment Agreement entered into between Citizens Financial Services, FSB and Thomas F.
Prisby**

Employment Agreement entered into between Citizens Financial Services, FSB and James W.
Prisby**

Employment Agreement entered into between Citizens Financial Services, FSB and John T.
Stephens**

Employment Agreement entered into between CFS Bancorp, Inc. and Thomas F. Prisby**
Employment Agreement entered into between CFS Bancorp, Inc. and James W. Prisby**
Employment Agreement entered into between CFS Bancorp, Inc. and John T. Stephens**

CFS Bancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Option Plan***

CFS Bancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated 1998 Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust
Agreement***

CFS Bancorp, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan****

10.10  Employment Agreement entered into between Citizens Financial Services, FSB and Charles V. Cole
10.11  Employment Agreement entered into between Citizens Financial Services, FSB and Thomas L.

Darovic

10.12  Employment Agreement entered into between CFS Bancorp, Inc. and Charles V. Cole
10.13  Employment Agreement entered into between CFS Bancorp, Inc. and Thomas L. Darovic

23.0
311
31.2
32.0

*%

* %k

kK

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Section 1350 Certifications

Incorporated by Reference from the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on March 26,
1998, as amended and declared effective on May 14, 1998.

Incorporated by Reference from the Company’s report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
June 30, 2003.

Incorporated by Reference from the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders filed on March 23, 2001.

Incorporated by Reference from the Company’s Definitive Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders filed on March 31, 2003.
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{(b) Reports filed on Form 8-K.

On October 20, 2003, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K in connection with the
announcement of the retirement of the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and the appointment of his
SUCCESSOT.

On October 27, 2003, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K furnishing its report of earnings
for the quarter ended September 30, 2003 under Item 12.

On December 24, 2003, the Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K in connection with the
announcement of its quarterly dividend.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CFS BaNcorp, INC.

By: /s/  THOMAS F. PRISBY
Thomas F. Prisby

Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below
by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name ml_e E’.tf

/s/ TrOMAS F. PRISBY Chairman of the Board and March 10, 2004

Thomas F. Prisby Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

/s/  JAMES W. PrisBy Vice Chairman, President and March 10, 2004
James W. Prisby Chief Operating Officer

/s/ CHARLES V. COLE Executive Vice President and March 10, 2004
Charles V. Cole Chief Financial Officer

(principal financial and
accounting officer)

/s/ SALLY A. ABBOTT Director March 10, 2004
Sally A. Abbott

/s!/ GREGORY W, BLAINE Director March 10, 2004
Gregory W. Blaine

/s/ THomAs J. BURNS Director March 10, 2004
Thomas J. Burns

/s{ GENE DIAMOND Director March 10, 2004
Gene Diamond

/s/ FrRaNK D. LESTER Director March 10, 2004
Frank D. Lester

/s/  CHARLES R. WEBB Director March 10, 2004
Charles R. Webb
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Thomas F. Prisby, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, certify that:
1. 1 have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of CFS Bancorp, Inc. (the “Registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, resuits of operations and cash
flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
for the Registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(c) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

{b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 2004 /s/ THomas F. PrRISBY

Thomas F. Prisby
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Charles V. Cole, Executive Vice President and Chief Fin‘ancial Officer certify that:
1. T have reviewed this annual rebport on Form 10-K of CFS Bancorp, Inc. (the “Registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances
under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e))
for the Registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating
to the Registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

{c) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the Registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
Registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 2004 /s/ CHARLES V. COLE

Charles V. Cole
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.0

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATIONS

I, Thomas F. Prisby, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, and Charles V. Cole, Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, of CFS Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company™), hereby certify,
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) The Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2003 (the
“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C 78m(a) or 780(d); and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 10, 2004 By: /s/ THOMAS F. PriSBY

Thomas F. Prisby
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 10, 2004 By: /s/ CHARLES V. COLE

Charles V. Cole
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act has been
provided to CFS Bancorp, Inc. and will be retained by CFS Bancorp, Inc. and furnished to the Securities
and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.
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